
1 

City Council Agenda 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

6:00 PM 
35 Cabarrus Avenue, W, Concord NC  28025 

Cell phones are to be turned off or placed on vibrate during the meeting. Please exit the Council 
Chambers before using your cell phone. 

The agenda is prepared and distributed on Friday preceding the meeting to Council and news 
media. A work session is then held on the Tuesday preceding the regular meeting at 4:00 pm. 

I. Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer
III. Approval of Minutes

August 24, September 7, and September 9, 2021.
IV. Presentations

1. Presentation of Proclamation recognizing the week of October 3-9 as Public Power 
Week.

2. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing 30 years of the Concord Sister Cities 
Association.

3. Presentation from Glenda Steele, and members of the Concord Wildlife Alliance, 
recognizing Concord for receiving the Chapter of the Year award from the NC
Wildlife Federation. 

4. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing the 65th anniversary of Logan Daycare.

5. Special recognition of former Electric Systems Director, Bob Pate.

6. Presentation of the Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Financial
Reporting and Triple Crown Award from the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada.  The Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has awarded the City with the Award 
for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Financial Reporting for the City's FY2020 Popular 
Annual Financial Report (PAFR).  This is the first year that the City has prepared a PAFR 
and submitted an application for this award.  Receiving the award on the first submission 
is a reflection of the hard work of the budget and finance staff and their dedication to 
providing transparent financial reporting.  With this award, the City is now a Triple Crown 
Winner, meaning that Concord received the Achievement Awards for our Annual Financial 
Report, Annual Operating Budget Document, and PAFR.  As of 2019, there were 
approximately 290 Triple Crown Award winners across the US and Canada.  Only 13 cities 
or counties in NC earned this distinction.  

7. Presentation of the FY21-22 budget video.

V. Unfinished Business
VI. New Business

A. Informational Items
B. Departmental Reports
C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
D. Public Hearings



2 

1. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance annexing one (1)
parcel located at 789 Bartram Ave, owned by Elmin Joel Reyes Perez and Juan
Jose Reyes Perez.   The subject property consists of approximately 0.1492 acres at 
789 Bartram Ave, in the Hallstead Subdivision, on the northeast side of the Zion 
Church Rd and Zion Church Rd East intersection.  The purpose of annexation is for 
the property owner to receive access to City of Concord Solid Waste Services, for 
which annexation is required.  

Recommendation: Consider a motion to adopt the annexation ordinance and set 
the effective date October 14, 2021. 

2. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending Article 7
(Section 7.9.4.H.) of the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) relative to
Center City Design Standards.   In 2007, as part of a larger re-write of Article 7 of 
the Concord Development Ordinance, a standard was imposed that prohibited 
aluminum colored windows or door frames unless they are trimmed in such a way as 
to give the appearance of wood.  This language has not changed since its adoption; 
however, this building standard has changed with regard to aluminum windows and 
door frames, and City Staff is seeking to revise the language to be more permissible 
of aluminum. A more detailed explanation of the changes is included in the Planning 
and Zoning Commission staff report and will be presented at the Council meeting.  

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance amending Article 7.9.4.H 
regarding Center City design standards. 

3. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending Article 8
(Sections 8.1.8. and 8.3.5.Q.) of the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO)
relative to Food Trucks.   Food Truck standards were developed for the use on a 
temporary basis in the Center City Zoning District. Other Food Trucks would ostensibly 
be considered as mobile food vendors under Temporary Use Permit guidelines from 
8.8.3.B., which would restrict operation to a business or commercial zone, outside of 
the public right of way, for a period of not more than twenty-one (21) consecutive days, 
which could be renewed once during a calendar year, for a maximum of forty-two 
calendar days per year. Temporary Use Permits have a fee of $100 plus a $5 
technology fee. The proposed amendment to the Use Table and Section 8.3.5.Q. 
establishes a new regulatory structure for food trucks: it requires a COC for property 
owners to establish food truck service areas subject to a variety of supplementary 
standards. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended that the COC be 
subject to annual renewal. For sites not wishing to establish a food truck service area 
or food trucks, but have food trucks in conjunction with an event, a temporary use 
permit would still be the method of processing the request. Simple site plans would be 
required for either approach. The ordinance imposes some separation requirements 
from single family residential uses and bricks and mortar restaurants during regular 
service hours, but removes the time restrictions that were imposed for the Center City 
District.  The draft ordinance does limit the number of food trucks on a site at one time, 
restricts them to designated parking spaces, requires two parking spaces for the use, 
establishes that clean up responsibility rests with the food truck operators, prohibits 
amplified music in conjunction with the food truck operation, and places limits on 
signage. These regulations were drafted after reviewing requirements from Durham, 
Carrboro, Asheville, Charlotte, and Wilmington. The system proposed most closely 
resembles that of Charlotte.  A more detailed explanation of the changes is included 
in the Planning and Zoning Commission staff report.    

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance amending Sections 8.1.8. and 
8.3.5.Q. of the CDO relative to Food Trucks. 

E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
1. Consider approving the City of Concord's Downtown Municipal Service District

Facade Grant Program. The City of Concord's Municipal Service District Facade
Grant Program is designed to encourage business and property owners within the 



3 
 

municipal service district to make exterior improvements to their property. The 
Program acknowledges that facade improvements are critical to maintaining the 
uniqueness of the Municipal Service District (MSD) while supporting creative 
placemaking within the Center City District. It is designed to encourage private 
investment along with the City's downtown streetscape improvements. Areas that are 
highly impacted by streetscape construction during a given year would be eligible for 
greater funding. The program provides a framework for use of the $50,000 allocated 
to Facade Grant Improvements within the MSD. The attached copy of the MSD Facade 
Grant Program details the proposed framework and review criteria for grant awards. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the City of Concord’s Downtown Municipal 
Service District Facade Grant Program. 

2. Receive a presentation on the Norcott Mill-Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10, 
concerning the property owner's request to list the property on the National 
Register of Historic Places. (Work Session - action needed). The applicant has 
submitted an application to the United States Department of Interior National Park 
Service through the North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office, for designation 
of the site on the National Register of Historic Places.  Because the City of Concord is 
a Certified Local Government with the State Historic Preservation Office, both the 
Historic Preservation Commission and the City Council must provide a response to 
the State, either supporting or declining support of the property owner's request to list 
the property on the National Register of Historic Places. 

Recommendation: Receive a presentation from City Staff and consider adopting 
a statement to be forwarded to the North Carolina State Historic Preservation 
Office either supporting or declining to support the site for listing on the National 
Register of Historic Places. 

3. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the sale of a 0.08 Acres parcel off of 
Melrose Drive SW.  The City acquired this property on September 30, 1966.  All City 
departments have confirmed that the property is not needed for any purpose with the 
exception of a stormwater easement, which will be reserved.  On or about September 
30, 2021, the City received an Offer to Purchase the Property from Clarence and Betty 
Davis (“Buyers”) for $1,125. The buyer wishes to use a small portion of the property, 
as shown on the attached survey, to construct an addition to their home on the 
neighboring lot in order to accommodate their care of their two grandchildren.  The tax 
value of the property is $2,250; however, the stormwater easement over the majority 
of the property makes it unbuildable other than the small sliver carved out to 
accommodate the addition to the home.   The proposed resolution directs the City 
Clerk to publish the required notice under NC General Statute 160A-269 and begin 
the upset bid process. In the event one or more upset bids are received, this matter 
will be placed back on the Council agenda for approval of the final bid. In the event no 
upset bids are received, the proposed resolution directs the City Attorney and City staff 
to take all necessary steps to convey the property. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution authorizing the sale of a 0.08 
Acres parcel off of Melrose Drive SW, directing the City Clerk to advertise for upset 
bids and directing the City Attorney to take all necessary actions to complete the 
sale in the event no upset bids are received. 

4. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an eminent domain action for certain 
easements on property located on parcel PIN 5519-21-4980, 4400 Concord 
Pointe Ln SW.  Title to this property is held by Concord Pointe Harmony Housing, 
Delaware Limited Liability Company.  Certain easements are necessary in order to 
construct and maintain a sanitary sewer line.  The value of the easements is appraised 
at a total of $80,575. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution authorizing an eminent domain 
action for easements as depicted on the attached plat. 



4 
 

 

5. Consider accepting a donation of an easement from Epworth United Methodist 
Church of 0.854 acres (approximately 37,220 sq. feet) for future McEachern 
Greenway development along Three Mile Branch.  The easement is located 
adjacent to the David Phillips Activity Center along Three Mile Branch, where a future 
phase of McEachern Greenway is planned to connect the David Phillips Activity Center 
to the Atrium Hospital. The greenway will connect to existing sidewalks on Burrage 
and Lake Concord Roads, thereby creating a future one-mile loop. 

Recommendation: Motion to accept an easement of 0.854 acres (approximately 
37,220 sq. feet) for future greenway development along Three Mile Branch from 
Epworth United Methodist Church. 

6. Consider accepting the conveyance of 13.733 acres located at 385 Transport 
Place NW Concord from Cabarrus County. (PIN) 5620-45-9496-0000.  The 13.733-
acre property under consideration for conveyance would be developed as part of the 
Irish Buffalo Creek Greenway, approximately .25 miles of greenway, potential for 
future restrooms and trailhead parking. This property will provide connectivity to 
Cabarrus Ave with future connectivity to the Downtown Loop and area neighborhoods.  
Parks & Recreation would explore the potential to provide connectivity to the existing 
Brown Mill Mountain Bike Trail and the future Irish Buffalo Creek Greenway connecting 
to Gibson Mill. 

Recommendation: Motion to accept the conveyance of 13.733 acres located at 
385 Transport Plan NW, from Cabarrus County (PIN) 5620-45-9496-0000. 

7. Consider approval for the acquisition of 2 parcels from Murdock Holdings LLC 
for the future development of Irish Buffalo Creek Greenway.  The two parcels for 
consideration to purchase are critical needs for the future development of Irish Buffalo 
Creek Greenway.  The first parcel (PIN# 5620-63-8212-0000) has a purchase price of 
$34,500. This parcel is 13.0749 acres and is located near Glen Rae Street to the 
northwest (diagonally) from Caldwell Park across Irish Buffalo Creek. The second 
parcel (PIN# 5620-37-7325-0000) has a purchase price of $99,810. This parcel is 
16.0055 acres and is directly south and adjacent to Gibson Mill and properties owned 
by Southpaw Investors and Fig Tree Development LLC. Once developed, this 
greenway corridor will provide connectivity to Cabarrus Ave, the Martin Luther King 
Plaza, Caldwell Park, and Gibson Mill. It is also part of a key linkage via Cabarrus 
Avenue to the Brown Mill Mountain Bike Trail, Barber Scotia and Downtown Concord. 
The total cost for acquisition of the 29 acres (2 parcels) including due diligence is 
$141,255. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the acquisition of 2 parcels (PIN#’s 5620-
63-8212-0000 and 5620-37-7325-0000) for a total of 29.0804 acres from Murdock 
Holdings LLC along the Irish Buffalo Creek Greenway for $134,310, and to adopt 
ordinances to amend the Parks and Recreation Capital Reserve Fund and 
Recreation Capital Project Fund to complete transfers for approved property 
purchases including due diligence a total of $141,255. 

8. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with 
C Design for pre-design services of the new Fleet Services Facility.  Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ's) was advertised for architectural and engineering design firms 
for work on a new Fleet Services facility.  The Fleet Services facility design was 
approved in the current fiscal year capital improvement plan.   C Design was selected, 
via committee, based on their proposed project team and project experience relative 
to Fleet Service operations.   The architects have submitted a proposal for pre-design 
work consisting of surveys, locates, space needs verification, conceptual plans and 
cost estimating.  The contract with C Design would be a fixed fee not to exceed 
$131,900. 



5 
 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
a contract with C Design for pre-design services on the new Fleet Services Facility. 

9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate a contract with Stewart 
Engineering Inc. for Construction Materials Testing and Special Inspections 
related to the new Electrical Operations Center.  The new Electrical Operations 
Center site-work and building construction will require Materials Testing and Special 
Inspections. City staff developed a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and solicited 
qualifications-based proposals. After reviewing all proposals, Stewart Engineering was 
deemed to be the most qualified firm for this project. City and Stewart Engineering 
staff both reviewed the project plans and developed a not to exceed estimate of 
$160,000 for the services. Testing and inspections is historically performed on a per 
hour basis, as the exact quantity of hours is adjusted as field conditions change. The 
budgetary estimate was based on comparable projects of similar nature and 
complexity. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
a contract with Stewart Engineering Inc. for Construction Materials Testing and 
Special Inspections related to the new Electrical Operations Center. 

10. Consider awarding bid for twelve (12) steel transmission poles, and 100 Kv 
switches and miscellaneous hardware to Klute Inc and WESCO Distribution, Inc.  
Electric Systems staff received bids on September 23, 2021 for twelve (12) steel 
transmission poles, 100 kV switches and miscellaneous hardware required for 
interconnection of Delivery Point #4 (Bootsmead property) and Substation T (Concord 
Parkway S.). The poles are required to extend current 100KV transmission facilities to 
the new sites and for interconnection to Duke Energy supply lines. Eight bids were 
received and evaluated for responsiveness. Electric Staff determined that the two 
lowest bidders, CHM Industries and WESCO High Voltage, for Schedule I (12 steel 
transmission poles) were non-compliant with the specifications. Electric staff 
determined the third lowest bidder, Klute Inc, was responsive and compliant in meeting 
the required specifications. Klute, Inc submitted a bid in the amount of $452,963.95.  
The lowest bidder for Schedule II, (100 kV switches and miscellaneous hardware), 
WESCO Distribution, Inc, was responsive and compliant. They submitted a bid in the 
amount of $162,831.02.  The two Schedules combined total $615,794.97.  Funding 
will be derived from the existing Delivery 4 project account with a standing balance of 
$15,675,166. 

Recommendation: Motion to award a bid for twelve (12) steel transmission poles 
and 100 Kv switches and miscellaneous hardware to Klute Inc and WESCO 
Distribution, Inc. 

11. Consider awarding a bid to Blythe Brothers Asphalt Co LLC in the amount of 
$332,237.00 to make emergency repairs to the Runway at Concord-Padgett 
Regional Airport, authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract 
and adopt the capital project ordinance amendment.  During a routine runway 
inspection last month, it was discovered that approximately 1,650 square yards of 
asphalt is showing signs of distress. This area of pavement is at the touchdown zone 
for our commercial airline operations.  In addition, at the intersection of Taxiway A and 
Runway 20 the pavement is also showing signs of distress.  The project will consist of 
milling, paving, grooving of runway and taxiway pavement. With upcoming winter 
months approaching the repairs cannot be delayed.  The engineers estimate for the 
project was $492,810.  Bids were received on 9/31/21 and a total of three bidders 
submitted bids on the project. Blythe Brothers Asphalt Co, LLC submitted the low bid 
in the amount of $332,237. The project will be funded using funds from the Aviation 
Department Budget. 

Recommendation: Motion to accept the bid and to authorize the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute a contract with Blythe Brothers Asphalt Co, LLC and 
approve the capital project ordinance  amendment. 



6 
 

12. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with 
Ike's Construction, Inc for the renovation of the former Cabarrus County 
Maintenance building located at 242 General Services Dr S.W., Concord, NC to 
become the new Administrative offices of the Transportation Department.  The 
project involves the demolition of existing plumbing and walls and new installation of 
new plumbing, walls, electrical, HVAC, insulation, fixtures, sheetrock, ceiling tiles, 
flooring, and paint. The project was bid under the formal bidding process.  Bids were 
taken on September 30, 2021 and three (3) bids were received. Ratzlaff Construction 
Company, LLC was the low bid in the amount of $694,357.  Within seventy-two (72) 
hours of the bid opening, Ratzlaff Construction Company, LLC notified the City that a 
substantial mathematical error existed in the calculation of the bid amount and 
requested to withdraw their bid as permitted in G.S. 143-129.1.  The second low bid 
was Ike's Construction, Inc in the amount of $815,850. This amount was over the 
available funds and the City value engineered the project and negotiated with the 
contractor to reduce the bid amount to $708,015. The largest reductions were the 
elimination of sliding glass doors and replacing them with standard doors, replacing 
the HVAC controls with standard thermostats, replacing the bathrooms partitions with 
standard partitions, and performing all the exterior concrete work with City forces.  
Additional funding for the difference between the budgeted amount and the actual 
project cost will be taken from unspent funds associated with the Traffic Management 
Center (TMC).  A project amendment is needed to appropriate the additional amount 
of $125,746. 

Recommendation: Motion authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
a contract with Ike’s Construction, Inc. in the amount of $708,015 for the renovation 
of the former Cabarrus County Maintenance building and to adopt a Transportation 
Project amendment. 

13. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with 
McKim & Creed for Design Services for the Hwy 29 Pump Station Project.  McKim 
& Creed was selected from three total responses to a recent design RFQ. McKim & 
Creed has a history of successful projects with the City of Concord. The total fee for 
the scope of services is $348,948 which is below the $450,000 in design funding 
already in place. This project is a traditionally design/bid/build project and will come 
back to council for construction contract approval after bidding. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
a contract with McKim & Creed for Design Services for the Hwy 29 Pump Station 
Project in the amount of $348,948. 

14. Consider approving a modification to the Interlocal Agreement with Cabarrus 
County administering the Central Area Plan.  The City entered into an Interlocal 
Agreement with Cabarrus County administering the Central Area Plan.  Under the 
Agreement, the City agreed not to extend utilities into certain areas east of the then 
exiting City limits except under certain limited circumstances.  Michael Smith  has 
requested an exception to the Agreement in order to obtain water service for a 
proposed single-family home at 7121 Hwy 601S (PIN 5547-84-7683-0000) . 

Recommendation: Motion to approve a modification of the Interlocal Agreement 
regarding the Central Area Plan to allow the provision of water to 7121 Hwy 601 
S. 

15. Consider a Preliminary Application from Mark Schroeder. In accordance with City 
Code Chapter 62, Mark Schroeder has submitted a preliminary application to receive 
sewer service outside the City limits.  The property is located at 78 Scalybark Trail.   
The parcel is approximately 5.11  acres, zoned LDR and is currently developed with a 
single family home.  The applicant in the future wants to divide the property to create 
two new lots.  Public sewer is not currently available to this parcel however it may be 
available in the future due to a sewer extension to be installed by the developer of 



7 
 

Annsborough Park. There is not City water available to the parcel.  The applicant would 
like to know whether this parcel will have access to the sewer once it is installed. 

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase excluding annexation. 

16. Consider a Preliminary Application from Thornridge Investment Group, LLC.  In 
accordance with City Code Chapter 62, Thornridge Investment Group, LLC has 
submitted a preliminary application for water and sewer service outside the City limits.  
The property is located at 10799 and 10825 Poplar Tent Road.  The property is 
currently zoned LDR and developed with an abandoned single family home but the 
owner intends to construct a new residential structure and renovate existing structure 
to a non-residential use.   Water is available in Poplar Tent Road and developer would 
have to extend sewer from the Skybrook subdivision approximately 200’. 

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase including annexation. 

17. Consider approving a reduction in the ABC Board's pay.  Since the recent Board 
Member pay increase approved in June 2021, one Board Member has retired and one 
Board Member has resigned.  The remaining ABC Board Members feel the pay 
increase approved in June was too much and are requesting approval of the following 
reduction: Chairman to $275 from $325 and Member to $225 from $275.  This amount 
is still an increase from the original rate and is more in line with other appointed boards 
by the City. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the following pay rate change for the ABC 
Board: $275 for the Chairman and $225 for each Member. 

18. Consider making appointments to the Historic Preservation Commission.  A 
subcommittee of the City Council has reviewed the applications on file in the City 
Clerk's office. 

Recommendation: Motion to make appointments to the Historic Preservation 
Commission. 

VII. Consent Agenda  
A.  Consider approving one additional "Personal Day Off" to be raffled for the City's 

United Way fundraiser. The City's United Way Committee coordinates various 
fundraisers each year that provide opportunities for employees to raise money for 
charitable causes.  One activity that the committee has found to be successful over 
the years is a "Personal Day Off Raffle," providing the winning employee with an extra 
personal day off to be used by June 30, 2022. 

Recommendation:  Motion to approve one additional personal day off as a benefit 
to one employee, to be used by June 30, 2022. 

B.  Consider adopting a concurring Municipal Ordinance (Reference Ordinance No. 
1077179) with the North Carolina Department of Transportation for speed limit 
modifications declaring a 55-mph speed zone on NC 49 between 0.0148 miles 
west of SR 1139 (Old Charlotte Rd.) and 0.087 miles west of SR 1484 (Lippard 
Ln.). Per a letter from the NCDOT Division Engineer's office, NCDOT is requesting a 
Municipal Ordinance and Request for Concurring Ordinance to NCDOT from the City 
of Concord for a speed limit zone of 55-mph on NC 49 between 0.0148 miles west of 
SR 1139 (Old Charlotte Rd.) and 0.087 miles west of SR 1484 (Lippard Ln.).  City 
Transportation staff have reviewed the study and are in concurrence that the 
determined speed limit, which matches the current posting along NC 49, is sufficient. 

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt NCDOT Ordinance No. 1077179 and to 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk execute the Certificate of Municipal Ordinance 
Declaring Speed Limit Modification and Request for Concurring Ordinance by the 
Department of Transportation. 

C.  Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of an access easement and approval 
of the maintenance agreement.  In accordance with the CDO Article 4 the following 
access easements and maintenance agreements are now ready for approval: Niblock 



8 
 

Homes, LLC (PIN 5611-50-6377) 2845 Eva Drive and Concord Greenway 
Townhomes, LLC (PIN 5630-08-4607) 62 Woodsdale Place SE.   Access easements 
and SCM maintenance agreements are being offered by the owners. 

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the maintenance agreements and accept 
the offers of dedication on the following properties: Niblock Homes, LLC and 
Concord Greenway Townhomes, LLC. 

D.  Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of utility easements and public rights-
of-ways in various subdivisions.  In accordance with CDO Article 5 the following 
final plats and easements are now ready for approval: Odell Corners Outparcel 3, 
Spring Meadow Phase 2 Map 1, and 129 Arizona Place Townhomes. Various utility 
easements and public rights-of-ways are offered by the owners. 

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the offer of dedication on the following plat 
and easements: Odell Corners Outparcel 3, Spring Meadow Phase 2 Map 1, and 
129 Arizona Place Townhomes. 

E.  Consider accepting an offer of infrastructure at Popeye's-US 29, Heritage at 
Moss Creek Subdivision, Phase 1, Concord Medical Office at Afton Village.  In 
accordance with CDO Article 5, improvements have been constructed in accordance 
with the City's regulations and specifications.  The following are being offered for 
acceptance: 1499 LF of 8-inch water line, 1280 LF of 6-inch water line, 13 valves, 4 
Fire Hydrants, 2251 LF of 8-inch sanitary sewer line, 11 Manholes. 

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the offer of infrastructure acceptance in the 
following subdivisions and sites.  Popeye’s-US 29. Heritage a Moss Creek 
Subdivision Phase 1, Concord Medical Office at Afton Village. 

F.  Consider authorizing Housing Department staff to submit an application for the 
Family Self-Sufficiency Program grant.  The Family Self-Sufficiency Program 
provides grant funding to pay the salary and benefits of the program coordinators 
whose primary responsibility is to guide and connect participants to needed training 
and resources. Participants in the program gain access to the support they need in 
order to achieve their self-sufficiency goals and move up the economic ladder.  A City 
match is not required. 

Recommendation:  Motion to authorize Housing Department staff to submit an 
application for the Family Self-Sufficiency Program grant. 

G.  Consider accepting North Carolina Department of Transportation - Division of 
Aviation (NCDOT) grant award and to adopt a budget ordinance to amend the 
FY2021/2022 budget for the Airport capital projects to appropriate NCDOT grant 
funds received.  Concord-Padgett Regional Airport has received notice from the 
Division of Aviation NCDOT that grant funds in the amount of $2,056,051 have been 
allocated under the commercial service appropriation funding for Concord-Padgett 
Regional Airport in FY 2022. These grant funds will be used for the purpose of funding 
improvements to the airport and paying debt service or related financing costs and 
expenses on revenue bonds or notes issued by the airport. 

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the grant award and adopt an ordinance to 
amend the FY2021/2022 Budget Ordinance for the Airport Operations to 
appropriate NCDOT grant funds. 

H.  Consider adopting a project ordinance amendment for the CDBG 2021 grant to 
reflect an increase from budgeted to actual amount awarded.  The CDBG 2021 
grant was budgeted at $675,769 for FY22, but the actual awarded amount is $685,728, 
an increase of $9,959. 

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt the project ordinance amendment to the 
CDBG 2021 grant to reflect actual grant awarded. 

I.  Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of August 2021.  
The Tax Collector is responsible for periodic reporting of revenue collections for the 
Tax Collection Office. 



9 
 

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the Tax Office collection reports for the 
month of August 2021. 

J.  Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for 
the month of August 2021.  G.S. 105-381 allows for the refund and/or release of tax 
liability due to various reasons by the governing body.  A listing of various 
refund/release requests is presented for your approval, primarily due to overpayments, 
situs errors and/or valuation changes. 

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the Tax releases/refunds for the month of 
August 2021. 

K.  Receive monthly report on status of investments as of August 31, 2021.  A 
resolution adopted by the governing body on 12/9/1991 directs the Finance Director 
to report on the status of investments each month. 

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the monthly report on investments. 
 

VIII. Matters not on the agenda  
• TAC 
• MTC 
• Centralina Regional Council 
• Concord/Kannapolis Transit Commission 
• WSACC 
• Public Art Advisory Committee 
• Concord Family Enrichment Association 
• PTT Committee 
• Barber Scotia Community Task Force Committee 
• Concord United Committee 

IX.       General comments by Council of non-business nature 
X.       Closed Session (if needed) 
XI.       Adjournment 
 
*IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADA REGULATIONS, PLEASE NOTE THAT ANYONE WHO NEEDS 
AN ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING SHOULD NOTIFY THE CITY 
CLERK AT (704) 920-5205 AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 
 
 
 



 
 
Meeting Date 
October 14, 2021 
 

Annexation Staff Report 
The subject property consists of approximately 0.1492 acres at 789 Bartram Ave, in the 
Hallstead Subdivision, on the northeast side of the Zion Church Rd and Zion Church Rd East 
intersection. 
 
The purpose of annexation is for the property owner to receive access to City of Concord 
Solid Waste Services, for which annexation is required. 
 
The 2030 Land Use Plan designates the subject property as “Suburban Neighborhood.”  If 
annexation is approved, staff intends to administratively petition to rezone the property from 
Cabarrus County MDR (Medium Density Residential) to R-CO (Residential County 
Originated).  It would be a corresponding zoning district to the Land Use Category, and 
would match the R-CO (Residential County Originated) zoning district surrounding the 
subject property. 

 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



764 768

769

772

773

776

777

780

781

784

785

786

789

790

793

797

760
764 768 772 776

780

784

788

792

BARTRAM AVE

NANNYBERRY LN

NCCGIA

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

Ü

ANX-12-21
789 Bartram Ave

PIN#: 5539-30-7948
Subject Property 

Map
Annextion Request

Legend
PROPERTY REQUESTED FOR ANNEXATION
CONCORD CITY LIMITS

21



 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA TO INCLUDE +/- 0.1492 ACRES LOCATED 

789 BARTRAM AVE, CONCORD, NC 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-58.1 by 
Elmin Joel Reyes Perez and Juan Jose Reyes Perez, on October 14th, 2021 to 
annex the area described below; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petitions; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petitions and 
a public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Concord City Hall, 
35 Cabarrus Avenue West, on October 14, 2021 after due notice by The 
Independent Tribune on October 3rd, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the petitions meet requirements of 
G.S. 160A-58.1; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-58.1, the 
following described territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of 
Concord, as of the 14th day of October 2021: 
 
BEING all of Lot 131 in Final Plat of HALLSTEAD Phase 1, Map 2 recorded in 
Map Book 54 at Page 6 in the Cabarrus County, North Carolina Public Registry. 

 
SECTION 2. Upon and after the 14th day of October, 2021 the above 

described territory and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, 
ordinances and regulations in force in the City of Concord and shall be entitled to 
the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the City of Concord.  Said 
territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-58.10. 

 
SECTION 3. The Mayor of the City of Concord shall cause to be recorded 

in the office of the Register of Deeds of Cabarrus County, and in the Office of the 
Secretary of State in Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed 
territory, described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this 
ordinance.  Such a map shall also be delivered to the County Board of Elections, 
as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 
 

SECTION 4. Notice of adoption of this ordinance shall be published once, 
following the effective date of annexation, in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the City of Concord.  
 

Adopted this 14th day of October 2021. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
___________________  

William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:               APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________ ___          _______________________  
Kim Deason, City Clerk VaLerie Kolczynski, City 

Attorney 

22



   
 
 

                                                                                                        Staff Report             
 Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
DATE:   September 21st, 2021 
 
CASE: TA-09-21 Text Amendment (Center City Design Standards) 
 
PREPARED BY: Scott Sherrill, AICP –Development Review Manager 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2007, as part of a larger re-write of Article 7 of the Concord Development Ordinance, a 
standard was imposed that required: 

H. Window glass shall be recessed a minimum of two (2) inches from the building 
face rather than flush. Aluminum colored windows or door frames are not 
permitted. Metal and/or aluminum window or door frames are permitted if trimmed 
in such a way as to give the appearance of wood. Synthetic material that gives the 
appearance of wood (i.e. fiberglass with a wood grain pattern) is permitted. All 
materials shall identified on the architectural drawings submitted for review. 

 
This language has not changed since its adoption; however, this standard has been 
inconsistently enforced and applied in the Center City District with regard to aluminum 
windows and door frames, and City Staff is now seeking to revise the language to: 
 

H. Window glass shall be recessed a minimum of two (2) inches from the 
building face rather than flush.  Aluminum colored windows or door frames are not 
permitted. Metal and/or aluminum window or door frames are permitted if trimmed 
in such a way as to give the appearance of wood. Synthetic material that gives the 
appearance of wood (i.e. Fiberglass with a wood grain pattern) is permitted. Vinyl 
windows are not permissible on the first floor of any building in the CC district, nor 
on any commercial space, nor on contributing or pivotal structures in the CC 
National Register Districts. All materials shall be identified on the architectural 
drawings submitted for review. 

 
This language is permissible with regards to aluminum, but establishes a new standard 
regarding vinyl windows. The presentation at the meeting will include Center City images.  
     

23



1 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official Zoning 
Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute §§160D-601 through 160D-605, 160D-701 
through 160D-706, 160D-801 through 160D-808 and 160D-901 through 160D-951, may 
from time to time as necessary amend, supplement, change, modify or repeal certain 
of its zoning regulations and restrictions and zone boundaries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute 160D-601 through 160D-605, 160D-701 
through 160D-706, 160D-801 through 160D-808 and 160D-901 through 160D-951 does 
hereby recognize a need to amend the text of certain articles of the City of Concord 
Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, 
North Carolina: 
 
SECTION 1: That the following section of Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) Article 
7 “Base Zoning Districts”, Section 7.9.4. “General Design Standards” as it relates to the 
Center City Zoning District, be amended in relevant part: 
 

H. Window glass shall be recessed a minimum of two (2) inches from the building 
face rather than flush.  Aluminum colored windows or door frames are not 
permitted. Metal and/or aluminum window or door frames are permitted if 
trimmed in such a way as to give the appearance of wood. Synthetic material 
that gives the appearance of wood (i.e. Fiberglass with a wood grain pattern) is 
permitted. Vinyl windows are not permissible on the first floor of any building 
in the CC district, nor on any commercial space nor on contributing or pivotal 
structures in the CC National Register Districts. All materials shall be identified 
on the architectural drawings submitted for review. 

 
SECTION 2: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

Adopted in this October 14th, 2021. 

 

        CITY COUNCIL 

        CITY OF CONCORD 

        NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

ATTEST:      _________________________          

William C. Dusch, Mayor 

______________________________ 

Kim Deason, City Clerk 

______________________________ 

VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney                            

24



   
 
 

                                                                                                        Staff Report             
 Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
DATE:   September 21st, 2021 
 
CASE: TA-08-21 Text Amendment (Food Trucks) 
 
PREPARED BY: Scott Sherrill, AICP –Development Review Manager 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
Via TA-02-19, Food Truck standards were developed for the use on a temporary basis in 
the Center City Zoning District. Other Food Trucks would ostensibly be considered as 
mobile food vendors under our Temporary Use Permit guidelines from 8.8.3.B., which 
would restrict operation to a business or commercial zone, outside of the public right of 
way, for a period of not more than twenty-one (21) consecutive days, which could be 
renewed once during a calendar year, for a maximum of forty-two calendar days per year. 
Temporary Use Permits have a fee of $100 plus a $5 technology fee.  
 
Consideration of food trucks under 8.8.3.B. has proven problematic: in the first place, 
trying to track an individual food truck, which is mobile, and ensure that they have a permit 
for operating in an individual location is extremely challenging for Code Enforcement; in 
the second place, requiring a food truck to pay $1,825 dollars or more in fees annually for 
Temporary Use Permits (365/21*$105) is extremely challenging; in the third place, several 
local breweries and other sites have regular food truck presence, and requiring them to 
alter the food truck vendors every twenty-one days without flexibility seems overly punitive; 
and in the fourth place, community members of the City of Concord generally seem to 
support the presence of food trucks.  
 
On the other hand, charging no fee for food trucks and allowing them to operate without 
regulation puts them at a competitive advantage to brick and mortar restaurants, which 
bear the responsibility for fee payment and site improvements associated with their use. 
Since City Planning has not been supporting the enforcement of Section 8.8.3.B. 
recognizing that it is overly burdensome for all of the reasons set forth in the paragraph 
above, the City has essentially allowed food trucks to operate at will except in the Center 
City District, which is technically the only district where food trucks are allowed under the 
current use table.   
 
Therefore, Staff is seeking to amend the Use Table and Section 8.3.5.Q. to adopt a more 
defensible regulatory structure: it would require a COC for property owners to establish 
food truck service areas subject to a variety of supplementary standards: 
  

1. Subject to a certificate of compliance 
2. Up to two food trucks on the site at one time 
3. Site plan required 
4. If more intermittent, for example in conjunction with an event, subject to 8.8.3.B 
5. Remove limitation on times in Center City at CDDC request 
6. All food trucks shall be located within a surface parking lot or within a 

designated parking space or spaces on public streets. 

25



   
 
 

7. Food Truck Vendors outside the Center City District shall not locate within 50ft 
of an existing single-family use. 

8. Foot truck vendors shall have a minimum of 2 dedicated parking spaces per 
operation. 

9. Food truck operators are responsible for the proper disposal of waste and trash 
associated with the operation.  

10. No amplified music, microphones or bullhorns shall be permitted as part of the 
food truck operation.  

11. The only signage permitted for food trucks shall be a menu board, measuring 
no larger than 32sf, and placed no further than 10ft from the wall of the food 
truck.  Menu boards shall not be illuminated.  

12. Pennants, balloons, facsimile signage, or other items barred by Article 12 are 
expressly prohibited.   

13. 75’ of separation is required from the main entrance of the nearest restaurant 
during the restaurant’s posted hours of operation.  
 

 
These regulations were drafted after reviewing requirements from Durham, Carrboro, 
Asheville, Charlotte, and Wilmington. The system proposed most closely resembles that 
of Charlotte.  
 
Other regulations that may be considered from the sample ordinances, but not included in 
a draft:  
 

1. Specify that the property owner will be issued a notice of violation if no permit has 
been issued for the location, however, the mobile food vendor will be cited if 
located on a property without property owner approval (Charlotte) 

2. Reinforce that health code requires food trucks be removed from a site overnight 
(Asheville, Charlotte) 

3. Limit hours of operation like Asheville (6 am – 3 am)  
 
Additional considerations: We have recently had an inquiry for a food truck parking lot, 
and our response was that they were required to have a principal structure on site, had to 
be paved, and was subject to site plan review and COC in C-1 and C-2 zoning districts.  
 
   
     

26



1 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official Zoning 
Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute §§160D-601 through 160D-605, 160D-701 
through 160D-706, 160D-801 through 160D-808 and 160D-901 through 160D-951, may 
from time to time as necessary amend, supplement, change, modify or repeal certain 
of its zoning regulations and restrictions and zone boundaries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute 160D-601 through 160D-605, 160D-701 
through 160D-706, 160D-801 through 160D-808 and 160D-901 through 160D-951 does 
hereby recognize a need to amend the text of certain articles of the City of Concord 
Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, 
North Carolina: 
 
SECTION 1: That the following section of Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) Article 
8 “Use Regulations”, Section 8.1.8. “Use Table”, be amended in relevant part: 

 
 
 
SECTION 2: That Section 8.3.5.Q. be amended to read as follows: 

 

Q. FOOD TRUCK VENDORS 
Food truck vendors may operate within all commercial, industrial, and 
mixed-use zoning districts provided that they adhere to the conditions 
of applicable conditional zoning approval or the standards set forth 
below. They may also operate within multi-family developments where 
parking is provided.  

 
1. Food Truck Service Areas: 

A. Food Truck Service Areas are defined as sites permitted for the 
operation of food trucks on a permanent or semi-permanent 
basis.  Accessory Food Truck Service Areas are secondary to the 
primary nonresidential use on the subject property and may 
contain a food truck use multiple times throughout the week 
over the course of a year. 

B. For locations outside the Center City Zoning District, where food 
trucks are not specifically addressed by conditional zoning, 
property owners may apply for a Certificate of Compliance to 
locate up to two Food Trucks on an existing site on a regular 
basis.  This would permit up to two food trucks to operate on 
the site, daily, throughout the year. The COC is subject to 
annual renewal. 

 

 
AG RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND  

 A
G

 

RE
 

RL
 

RM
-1

 

RM
-2

 

RV
 

RC
 

O
-I

 

B-
1 

CC
 

C-
1 

C-
2 

I-
1 

I-
2 Standards

Food Truck, Temporary      PS PS PS PS PS PS PS PS PS 8.3.5.Q 

27



2 
 

C. For special events, a Temporary Use Permit, described in 
Section 8.8, may be acquired to allow more than 2 food trucks 
on a permitted site.  Time limits for temporary food trucks apply 
in accordance with Section 8.8. 

D. Certificate of Compliance and Temporary Use Permit 
applications for Food Truck Service Areas shall include a site 
plan indicating the location of each food truck, seating, 
allocated parking for both the food truck and the primary non-
residential use so that: 

• Parking standards for principle use of the site are not reduced 
below minimum required standards; 

• Vehicle circulation in parking lots and drive isles are not 
obstructed; 

• Fire lanes or pedestrian walkways are not encroached upon 
or blocked; 

• All operations associated with the food truck are a minimum 
of ten feet from all public rights-of-way. 
 

2. Temporary Food Truck Operations: 
A. For sites wishing to allow Food Trucks on a more intermittent 

basis, a Temporary Use Permit under the terms of Article 8 must 
be obtained. A site plan, as detailed under section (REFERENCE 
SECTION C ABOVE) must be obtained by either the property 
owner or the food truck vendor.  If the Temporary Use Permit is 
applied for by the vendor, written permission from the property 
owner must be provided in addition to the required site plan. 

B. Food trucks hired by firms or individuals for private events are 
not required to receive a temporary use permit from the City, 
but are not authorized to use public right of way for service.   

3. Special Standards for the Center City Zoning District:  

A. All food trucks shall be located within a surface parking lot or 
within a designated parking space or spaces on public streets. 
However, no Food truck shall be located within designated 
parking on Union Street.  
 

4. Special Standards for Mixed-Use or Conditional District Zoning 
Districts: 

A. Special Standards for Mixed-use or conditional commercial 
zoning districts: Food trucks shall adhere to specific conditions 
set forth in the approved rezoning documents. If food trucks are 
not specifically addressed in the approved rezoning documents, 
they shall adhere to the standards of the commercial district 
regulations.  
 

5. Other Regulations Applying to All Food Truck operations: 

A. All food trucks shall be located within a surface parking lot or 
within a designated parking space or spaces on public streets. 

B. Food Truck Vendors outside the Center City District shall not 
locate within 50ft of an existing single-family use. 

C. Foot truck vendors shall have a minimum of 2 dedicated parking 
spaces per operation. 

D. Food truck operators are responsible for the proper disposal of 
waste and trash associated with the operation.  

E. No amplified music, microphones or bullhorns shall be 
permitted as part of the food truck operation.  

F. The only signage permitted for food trucks shall be a menu 
board, measuring no larger than 32sf, and placed no further 
than 10ft from the wall of the food truck.  Menu boards shall 

28



3 
 

not be illuminated.  
G. Pennants, balloons, facsimile signage, or other items barred by 

Article 12 are expressly prohibited.   
H. 75’ of separation is required from the main entrance of the 

nearest restaurant during the restaurant’s posted hours of 
operation.  

   

SECTION 3: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

Adopted in this October 14th, 2021. 

 

        CITY COUNCIL 

        CITY OF CONCORD 

        NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

ATTEST:      _________________________          

William C. Dusch, Mayor 

______________________________ 

Kim Deason, City Clerk 

         

 

__________________________ 

VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney                            

29



FAÇADE
GRANT
UPDATE

OCT. 2021

 

30



The purpose of the Façade Grant Program is to encourage owners or

business tenants to improve their properties and to provide the ways to

activate the cityscape. The program helps to increase the vibrancy of

Downtown Concord and the City's identity by highlighting the uniqueness of

the community's core. It also supports small business development, artistry,

and creative placemaking.

Grant recipients may use funds for specified exterior building improvements

including, but not limited to, lighting, signage, or awnings. Businesses must

adhere to certain design guidelines and meet all program requirements

detailed below to be eligible. 

FAÇADE GRANT UPDATE FY 21-22

PURPOSE

31



Removal of false fronts (such as

aluminum panels)

Repair or replacement of windows, doors,

and cornicesRepair or replacement of

facade materials

New permanent signage and new

awnings (signage cannot be painted on

the windows)

Exterior painting (new associated with a

planned/funded rehabil itation effort)

Design and construction costs

Grant applications  wil l  be accepted and

reviewed on a "f irst-come, f irst-served"

basis .  Grants are only available to for-profit

businesses and property owners within the

Municipal Service District (MSD).

Grant amounts are up to $5,000 within the

MSD. Projects within the High Impact Area

that align with current streetscape

improvement construction are eligible for

up to $10,000 in grant money.  The High

Impact Area for FY 22 is  Union Street North

and South between Kil larney Ave.  and

Corban Ave.  Payments will  not exceed

$5,000 ($10,000 in  High Impact Area) or

50% of the exterior rehabil itation costs,

whichever is  less.  

Applicants may apply separately for

multiple addresses.  Applications will  be

reviewed for adherence to Center City

Design Standards and the Secretary of the

Interior Standards for Redevelopment.  All

applications will  be reviewed by a

committee of staff  appointed by the

Planning Director.

Qualified improvements for façades
include:

Property must be located within the MSD

Building must be a for-profit  business or

mixed-use development

If  the applicant is  a tenant,  they must have

written approval from the property owner

supporting the improvements to be made

and agree to the terms and conditions of

the grant award

Building must be a pre-existing structure

that cannot be less than ten (10) years old

at the time of the application submittal

Building must have an active ground floor

area and be accessible to the primary street

Project must adhere to City zoning

requirements 

Building must have street frontage

Applicant must have all  required permits

Façade must adhere to predetermined

guidelines:  

Secretary of the Interior Standards for

Redevelopment

City of Concord Center City Design

Standards

Improvements made must remain with the

property for a minimum of four (4) years

following the disbursement of grant funds.

If  the funded improvements are removed

from the property or damaged and not

repaired within the four-year occupancy

period,  funds shall  be repaid to the City.  A

monthly repayment plan may be util ized in

ten (10) percent increments of the original

grant reward. 

Eligibility Criteria

PROGRAM
DETAILS

Downtown Façade Grant

FAÇADE GRANT UPDATE FY 21-22

32



PROGRAM
DETAILS CONT.

Downtown Façade Grant

FAÇADE GRANT UPDATE FY 21-22

Properties shall  not qualify for a grant if

located outside the MSD, the building is

newer than ten (10) years old,  or i f

construction of the project starts before

submittal  or approval of application

Design guidelines and standards are not

adhered to in proposed projects or

constructed project did not adhere to

approved plans

Applicant stops responding to City staff  for

inquiry on project.  Grant process will  be

suspended until  communications resume.

The applicant must obtain all  appropriate

permits 

Applicant must fully complete a grant

application,  including submitting the

required documents before staff  wil l

review application

The City of Concord Planning and

Neighborhood Development Department

will  review all  applicants and determined

eligibil ity

Applicant has twelve (12) months to

complete construction from the date of

staff  approval and notif ication

Project Design

Project is  well-planned and ready for

implementation

Cost is  realistic and clearly described 

Application includes clear plans and a

professional rendering,  upon staff

request

Disqualifying Factors

Application Details

Approval Criteria

Project Impact,  Need, Visibil ity

Project is  within the MSD

Project provides a response to a

recognized need or opportunity

Project provides substantial  and lasting

benefit  

Historic Preservation

Project meets Secretary of the Interior

Standards for Redevelopment

Innovation and Beautif ication

Project is  distinctive and attractive and

complements the character of Downtown

Itemized receipts for project cost 

Satisfactory proof that the project is

completed according to plans submitted at

the time of grant application

Form W9 completed in full  

Grant Payments
The City of Concord will  only make a grant

payment upon the completion of the project.

Applicants must provide the following for a

grant payment from the City:

If  the project is  completed below cost,  the City

will  not reimburse more than 50% of the total

project cost.

33



 
 
Meeting Date 
October 14, 2021 
 

Staff Report 
The subject property consists of one parcel, addressed as 580, 594, and 598 Cabarrus Ave. 
W., and 569-581 Flora Ave. NW.  The property is +/- 6.6945 acres and is zoned PUD 
(Planned Unit Development).   
 
The applicant/property owner (Michael Phillipps, E3 Catalyst) has submitted an application 
to the United States Department of Interior, National Park Service, through the North 
Carolina State Historic Preservation Office, for designation of the site on the National 
Register of Historic Places.  According to the North Carolina Department of Natural and 
Cultural Resources “The National Register of Historic Places is the nation’s official list of 
buildings, structures, objects, sites and districts worthy of preservation for their significance 
in American history, architecture, archaeology, and culture.”  Properties and districts listed in 
the National Register sometimes also receive local designation in jurisdictions where local 
preservation commissions have been established according to the state enabling legislation, 
but there is no direct correlation between National Register listing and local designation. 
 
Because the City of Concord is a Certified Local Government with the State Historic 
Preservation Office, both the Historic Preservation Commission and the City Council must 
provide a response to the State, either supporting or declining support of the property 
owner’s request to list the property on the National Register of Historic Places.  Designation 
of properties on the National Register of Historic Places allows the property owner to apply 
for federal and state income tax credits in conjunction with State Historic Preservation Office 
approved rehabilitation efforts.  National Register designation does not impact local tax 
status and would not establish any additional zoning regulations that would require added 
review by the City of Concord or Concord’s Historic Preservation Commission.  On 
September 13th, the Historic Preservation Commission unanimously voted to provide the 
State Historic Preservation Office with a signed endorsement, supporting the property’s 
inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places.   
 
The staff packet, presented to the Historic Preservation Commission, has been included in the 
Council’s agenda items.  This document contains the application and historic summary report 
submitted to the State for National Register nomination.  The summary report contains 
photographs and a description of the +/- 6.6945 acre site and a history of the of the eight (8) 
buildings once utilized for industrial manufacturing.   
 
The request, along with the Historic Preservation Commission and City Council’s 
recommendations, is scheduled to be presented to the North Carolina National Register 
Advisory Committee on October 14th.  The Committee and will then provide a 
recommendation to the U.S. Department of Interior, National Park Service for a final 
decision on National Register listing. 

34



Historic Preservation Commission 
Case # NR-1-21 

Agenda Memorandum 
Historic Preservation Commission 

DATE:  September 8, 2021 
SUBJECT: 

NR-01-21 
Michael Phillipps 

National Register Designation Request: 
Applicant:  
Location of subject property:  580, 594, 598 Cabarrus Ave. W, 

569-581 Flora Ave. NW
Staff Report prepared by: Katherine Godwin, Sr. Planner

BACKGROUND: 
• The subject property is the former Norcott Mill-Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10. Located at

580, 594, 598 Cabarrus Ave. W and 569-581 Flora Ave. NW PIN 5620-23-7893 (Exhibit A)
• Dates of Construction: 1916, 1923, 1938-1947, 1956-1963, 1964
• Applicant is seeking inclusion on the National Register for Historic Places for Norcott Mill-Cannon

Mills Company Plant No. 10’s entire exterior and interior as well as the warehouses, water tower,
and pump house on the site including:

o 1916 Mill
o 1916 Cotton Warehouse
o 1923 Addition
o 1938-1947 Warehouse
o 1938-1947 Water Tower
o 1938-1947 Pump House
o 1956-1963 Warehouse
o 1964 Warehouse and Office Addition

• The applicant states that “Norcott Mill- Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10 is locally significant
both as one of the primary textile manufacturers that drove Concord’s economic and physical
growth during the twentieth century” as well as a piece of architecture that “displays character-
defining elements of early- to mid-twentieth century industrial design.” “The complex includes
three originally freestanding warehouses erected circa 1916, between 1938 and 1947, and
between 1956 and 1963, a 1927-1938 opening room, a circa 1916 cotton conditioning room, and
circa 1916 and 1938-1947 hose houses.” (Exhibit A).

DISCUSSION: 
According to the North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural Resources “The National Register of 
Historic Places is the nation’s official list of buildings, structures, objects, sites and districts worthy of 
preservation for their significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, and culture.  The 
National Register was established by the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966. The purpose of the 
Act is to ensure that as a matter of public policy, properties significant in national, state, and local history 
are considered in the planning of federal undertakings, and to encourage historic preservation initiatives 

35



2 
 

by state and local governments and the private sector. Though the National Register is a federal program, 
nominations are submitted by the states through state historic preservation offices.” (Exhibit D).  
 
At the August 11, 2021 meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission, information about Norcott Mill- 
Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10 was shared as part of the Local Landmark Designation process. 
“National Register listing should not be confused with local historic property and historic district 
designations. These designations are made by a local governing board on the recommendation of a local 
historic preservation commission.” (Exhibit D). “Properties and districts listed in the National Register 
sometimes also receive local designation in jurisdictions where local preservation commissions have been 
established according to the state enabling legislation, but there is no direct correlation between National 
Register listing and local designation.” (Exhibit D). 
 
There are tax benefits associated with obtaining National Register status including a “20% federal income 
investment tax credit claimed against the costs of a qualified rehabilitation of the building. The federal 
credit applies only to income-producing, depreciable properties, including rental residential properties. 
The federal credit does not apply to owner-occupied residential properties. The cost of the rehabilitation 
must exceed the adjusted basis of the building. Plans for the rehabilitation are reviewed by the North 
Carolina Historic Preservation Office and the National Park Service, and work on the building must meet 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation.” (Exhibit D). 
 
National Register Criteria for Evaluation: 
“The following criteria are designed to guide the states, federal agencies, and the Secretary of the 
Interior in evaluating potential entries for the National Register. 
 
The quality of significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, and culture is present in 
districts, sites, buildings, structures, and objects that possess integrity of location, design, setting, 
materials, workmanship, feeling, and association, and: 
 

A. that are associated with events that have made significant contribution to the broad patterns of 
our history; or 

B.  that are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or 
C.  that embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or that 

represent the work of a master, or that possess high artistic values, or that represent a 
significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack individual distinction; or 

D.  that have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.” 
(Exhibit D). 

 
“The two principal issues to consider in determining eligibility for the National Register are “significance” 
and “integrity.” A property may have "significance" for association with important events or patterns of 
history (criterion A); for association with an important historical figure (criterion B); as an important 
example of period architecture, landscape, or engineering (criterion C); or for the information it is likely 
to yield (criterion D, applied to archaeological sites and districts, and sometimes applied to certain types 
of structures). A National Register nomination must demonstrate how a property is significant in at least 
one of these four areas. Properties are nominated at a local, state, or national level of significance 

36



3 
 

depending on the geographical range of the importance of a property and its associations. The level of 
significance must be justified in the nomination. The majority of properties (about 70%) are listed at the 
local level of significance. The level of significance has no effect on the protections or benefits of listing. 
Besides meeting one or more of the above criteria, a property must also have "integrity" of "location, 
design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association." This means that the property must 
retain enough of its historic physical character (or in the case of archaeological sites, intact archaeological 
features) to represent its historic period and associations adequately.” (Exhibit D). 
 
The Process: 
Nominations to the National Register are submitted from each of the states by the State Historic 
Preservation Officer (SHPO). In North Carolina, the SHPO is the Deputy Secretary of the Office of Archives 
and History and the section that administers the program is the State Historic Preservation Office. The 
National Register Advisory Committee of North Carolina meets in February, June, and October to consider 
the eligibility of properties. If recommended for nomination, the application is forwarded to the SHPO and 
the Keeper of the National Register with the National Park Service in Washington, DC. (Exhibit D). 
 
As a Certified Local Government (CLG), the Historic Preservation Commission has sixty (60) days in which 
to comment on the proposed nomination (Deadline October 13, 2021). The HPC is supposed to provide 
an opportunity for public comment on this nomination according to the terms specified in the certification 
agreement with the State Historic Preservation Office (Exhibit C). A public hearing on the National Register 
nomination of Norcott Mill- Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10 has been properly advertised and public 
comments will be collected on September 8, 2021. The nomination will also need to be brought before 
Mayor Dusch and/or the City Council for additional comment (Exhibit C).  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Exhibit A: Draft National Register of Historic Places Registration Form 
Exhibit B: Subject Property Map 
Exhibit C: Letters from SHPO 
Exhibit D: National Register Fact Sheets  
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
1.  Hold a public hearing to collect public comment regarding the National Register Nomination of 

Norcott Mill-Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10.  
2. Discuss/ make a determination regarding the appropriateness of recommending the site for 

National Register Nomination and submitting the public comments and one of the following 
statements to the State Historic Preservation Office. 

3. Make a motion to adopt one of the following paragraphs: 
 
We, the Concord Historic Preservation Commission, have reviewed and discussed the nomination for 
Norcott Mill-Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10 and find that the property meets the criteria for listing 
in the National Register of Historic Places as stated in Section 8 of the report. We therefore, recommend 
that the property be submitted for listing in the Register.  

37



4 
 

 
______________________________________________ 

Commission chair’s signature and date 
 

OR 
 

We, the Concord Historic Preservation Commission, have reviewed and discussed the nomination for 
Norcott Mill-Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10 and find that the property does not meet the criteria for 
listing in the National Register of Historic Places as stated in Section 8 of the report. We therefore, do not 
recommend that the property be submitted for listing in the Register.  The reasons for our findings 
concerning this nomination are stated below (use additional sheet if necessary). 
 

______________________________________________ 
Commission chair’s signature and date 

 
 

38



39

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



40

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



41

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



42

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



43

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



44

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



45

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



46

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



47

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



48

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



49

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



50

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



51

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



52

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



53

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



54

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



55

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



56

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



57

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



58

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



59

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



60

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



61

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



62

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



63

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



64

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



65

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



66

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



67

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



68

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



69

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



70

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



71

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



72

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



73

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



74

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



75

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



76

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



77

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



78

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



79

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



80

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



81

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



82

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



83

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



84

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



85

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



86

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



87

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



88

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



89

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



90

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



91

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



92

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



93

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



94

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



95

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



96

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



97

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



98

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



99

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



100

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



101

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



102

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



103

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



104

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



105

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



106

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit A



!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

6

7
4

50
48

45
3936

3332

3128
2722

18
16 15

88

84

80

78

75

59
55

49
43

37

31
29

93
96

95
82

79 76

75

71

70

62

29
25

21
12

46
42

38
34

32

28

85 82

8079
75 60

45
44

39
38

33 30
27

22
21

101

316

314
312

311

310
309

307

628 620
590

581
579

577
575

573
569

528

106
100

673

668

663
659

658

655

650
636

626 607

598

597

594

593 591

590

587 583

580

577576

574
570

565

560

557

550

540

530

217
215

103

1ST ST NW

CABARRUS AVE W

WHITE ST NW

FLORA AVE NW

WHITE ST SW

BROWN ST SW

2ND ST NW

GRACE AVE NW

KERR ST NW

WARREN C COLEMAN BLVD S

OL
D 

CH
AR

LO
TT

E 
RD

 SW

UNION CEMETERY RD SW

CONCORD PKWY N CABARRUS AVE W

GE
OR

GI
A S

T S
W

GROFF ST NW

CONCORD PKWY S

SU
NDER

LA
ND RD SW

WILSHIRE AVE SW

CORBAN AVE SW

UNION ST N

SPRING ST NW

MA
IN

 S
T S

W

CR
OW

EL
L D

R 
SW

FR
ANKLI

N AVE
 NW

WHITE ST NW

YOUNG AVE SW

ANN ST NW

LISKE AVE NW

CED
AR

 DR NW

POPLAR TENT RD

BROWN ST SW

HELEN DR NW

1ST ST NW

RAMDIN CT NW

AMBER CT SW

LINDEN AVE SW

2ND ST NW
EPWORTH ST NW

ALLIANCE AVE SW

WILSHIRE CT SW

DULIN DR SW

GUY AV
E NW

ANDREWS ST NW

MAGNOLIA ST NW

4TH ST NW

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

NR-01-21

Cabarrus Ave W & 
White St SW

PIN: 5620-23-7893

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

² 0 200100
Feet

Subject Property
! Addresses

Parcels

Subject
Property

107

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit B



108

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



109

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



110

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



111

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



112

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



113

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



114

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



115

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



116

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



117

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



118

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



119

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



120

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit C



STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE 
OFFICE OF ARCHIVES AND HISTORY 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES 

NATIONAL REGISTER FACT SHEET 1 

 
WHAT IS THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES? 

 
The National Register of Historic Places is the nation's official list of buildings, structures, objects, sites, and 
districts worthy of preservation for their significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, and culture. 
The National Register was established by the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966. The purpose of the Act 
is to ensure that as a matter of public policy, properties significant in national, state, and local history are 
considered in the planning of federal undertakings, and to encourage historic preservation initiatives by state and 
local governments and the private sector. 
 
What the National Register Means for the Private Property Owner 
 
The listing of a property in the National Register places no obligation or restriction on a private owner using 
private resources to maintain or alter the property. Over the years, various federal incentives have been 
introduced to assist private preservation initiatives. A private owner of a National Register property becomes 
obligated to follow federal preservation standards only if federal funding or licensing is used in work on the 
property, or if the owner seeks and receives a special benefit that derives from National Register designation, 
such as a grant or a tax credit described below. 
 
When a National Register nomination is prepared, all buildings, objects, structures and sites on each property 
must be categorized as contributing or noncontributing. Contributing resources are those constructed during the 
period of significance which substantially convey their appearance from that period. Noncontributing resources 
are those that do not date from the period of significance or date from the period of significance and have been 
substantially altered.  
 
National Register listing should not be confused with local historic property and historic district designations. 
These designations are made by a local governing board on the recommendation of a local historic preservation 
commission. This program of local designations is an option available to local governments under North 
Carolina enabling legislation (G.S. 160A-400). Properties and districts listed in the National Register sometimes 
also receive local designation in jurisdictions where local preservation commissions have been established 
according to the state enabling legislation, but there is no direct correlation between National Register listing 
and local designation. 
 
National Register listing means the following: 
 
1. Consideration and Protection in Public Planning:  
 
All properties and districts listed in or eligible for listing in the National Register are considered in the planning 
of federal undertakings such as highway construction and Community Development Block Grant projects. 
"Federal undertakings" also include activities sponsored by state or local governments or private entities if they 
are licensed or partially funded by the federal government. "Federal undertakings" do not include federal farm 
subsidies or loans made by banks insured by the FDIC.  
 
National Register listing does not provide absolute protection from federal actions that may affect the property. It 
means that if a federal undertaking is in conflict with the preservation of a National Register property, the North 
Carolina Historic Preservation Office will negotiate with the responsible federal agency in an effort to eliminate 
or minimize the effect on the historic property. This review procedure applies to properties that are determined 
eligible for the National Register in the day-to-day environmental review process as well as those actually listed 
in the National Register. 
 
Similarly, North Carolina law (G.S. 121-12a) provides for consideration of National Register properties in 
undertakings funded or licensed by the state. Where a state undertaking is in conflict with the preservation of a 
National Register property, the North Carolina Historical Commission is given the opportunity to review the case 
and make recommendations to the state agency responsible for the undertaking. The commission's 
recommendations to the state agency are advisory.  
 

121

http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/nhpa.htm
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/localdes.htm
godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



                                                                                                   National Register Fact Sheet 1, Page 2 
 
2. Incentives for the Preservation of National Register Properties: 
 
Tax Benefits. Under the federal Tax Reform Act of 1986, a privately owned building that is listed in the National 
Register or is a contributing building in a National Register historic district may be eligible for a 20% federal 
income investment tax credit claimed against the costs of a qualified rehabilitation of the building. The federal 
credit applies only to income-producing, depreciable properties, including rental residential properties. The 
federal credit does not apply to owner-occupied residential properties. The cost of the rehabilitation must exceed 
the adjusted basis of the building. Plans for the rehabilitation are reviewed by the North Carolina Historic 
Preservation Office and the National Park Service, and work on the building must meet the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation.  
 
Please note that the former North Carolina State Historic Credit program expired for rehabilitation expenses 
incurred after December 31, 2014. New state historic tax credit programs go into effect on January 1, 2016 for 
both income-producing properties and non-income-producing properties, including private residences.  
 
This new program allows taxpayers who receive the federal income tax credit for rehabilitating certified historic 
structures to take a state credit against North Carolina income taxes on income-producing properties. Also these 
new North Carolina tax credits provide a state income tax credit for non-income-producing properties listed in 
the National Register or as a contributing building in a National Register historic district, including private 
residences. For more information and applications, contact the Tax Credit Coordinator at the address given 
below, or call 919/814-6585 for income-producing projects or 919/814-6574 for non-income-producing projects. 
 
The Tax Treatment Extension Act of 1980 provides federal tax deductions for charitable contributions of partial 
interests (easements) in historically significant properties for conservation purposes. Interested individuals should 
consult legal counsel or the local Internal Revenue Service office for assistance in determining the tax 
consequences of the provisions of this act. 
 
Grants and Loans. A limited program of matching grants for the rehabilitation of National Register properties, 
including those that are privately owned, was authorized by the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, but 
has not been funded to a significant degree since the early 1980s. A loan program authorized by the Act has never 
been funded.  
 
In some years, the North Carolina General Assembly has made funds for preservation projects available to local 
governments and nonprofit groups through one-time discretionary appropriations. Such appropriations may or 
may not be repeated in coming years. The only private properties that have received state appropriations are those 
owned by non-profit organizations. Listing in the National Register has not been a precondition for receipt of a 
state grant.  
 
Owner Consent: A privately owned individual property may not be listed in the National Register over the 
objection of its owner or, in the case of a property with multiple owners, over the objection of a majority of 
owners. A district may not be listed in the National Register over the objection of a majority of owners of private 
property within the proposed district. For a complete description of procedures for objecting to a National 
Register nomination, see National Register Fact Sheet 5: "Procedure for Supporting or Objecting to National 
Register Listing." 
 
See also the following numbered National Register Fact Sheets: 
  2: "National Register Criteria for Evaluation"  
  3: "How Historic Properties Are Listed in the National Register of Historic Places"  
  4: "The National Register of Historic Places in North Carolina: Facts and Figures" 
 

See the handout entitled "A Comparison of the National Register of Historic Places With Local Historic 
Landmark and District Designations" for a review of the differences between these two programs. 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION: 
Historic Preservation Office website at http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov 
Historic structures and the National Register: Survey and National Register Branch, 919/814-6570 
Archaeological sites and the National Register: Office of State Archaeology, 919/814-6554  
Preservation tax credits and technical restoration assistance: Restoration Services Branch, 919/814-6570  
Environmental protection and planning: Environmental Review Branch, 919/814-6570 
Written inquiries to each of these branches may be sent to the State Historic Preservation Office, 4617 Mail Service 
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-4617. 
The National Register program is governed by the following federal and state rules and regulations: 36CFR Part 60 (interim 
rule), 36CFR Part 61 (final rule), and North Carolina Administrative Code T07: 04R .0300.                                           

10/2018 122

http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts5-Object.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts2-Criteria.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts3-How.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts4-FactsFigures.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/compare.htm
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/compare.htm
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/spbranch.htm
http://www.archaeology.ncdcr.gov/
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/rebranch.htm
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/er.htm
godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE 

OFFICE OF ARCHIVES AND HISTORY 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES 

NATIONAL REGISTER FACT SHEET  2 

NATIONAL REGISTER CRITERIA FOR EVALUATION 
 

The following criteria are designed to guide the states, federal agencies, and the Secretary of the Interior 

in evaluating potential entries for the National Register.  

 

The quality of significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, and culture is present in districts, 

sites, buildings, structures, and objects that possess integrity of location, design, setting, materials, 

workmanship, feeling, and association, and: 

 

A.   that are associated with events that have made significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history; 

or 

 

B.   that are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or 

 

C.   that embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or that represent the 

work of a master, or that possess high artistic values, or that represent a significant and distinguishable 

entity whose components may lack individual distinction; or 

 

D.   that have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. 

 

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions): Ordinarily cemeteries, birthplaces, or graves of historical figures, 

properties owned by religious institutions or used for religious purposes, structures that have been moved from 

their original locations, reconstructed historic buildings, properties primarily commemorative in nature, and 

properties that have achieved significance within the past 50 years shall not be considered eligible for the 

National Register. However, such properties will qualify if they are integral parts of districts that do meet the 

criteria or if they fall within the following categories: 

 

A.   a religious property deriving primary significance from architectural or artistic distinction or historical 

importance; or 

 

B. a building or structure removed from its original location but which is significant primarily for 

architectural value, or which is the surviving structure most importantly associated with a historic person 

or event; or 

 

C.   a birthplace or grave of a historical figure of outstanding importance if there is no other appropriate site or 

building directly associated with his or her productive life; or 

 

D.  a cemetery that derives its primary significance from graves of persons of transcendent importance, from 

age, from distinctive design features, or from  association with historic events; or 

 

E.   a reconstructed building when accurately executed in a suitable environment and presented in a dignified 

manner as part of a restoration master plan, and when no other building or structure with the same 

association has survived; or 

 

F.   a property primarily commemorative in intent if design, age, tradition, or symbolic value has invested it 

with its own historical significance; or 

 

G. a property achieving significance within the past 50 years if it is of exceptional importance. 

(see other side)

123

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



National Register Fact Sheet 2, Page 2 

                                                           11/2015 

 

APPLYING THE CRITERIA 

 

The two principal issues to consider in determining eligibility for the National Register are "significance" and "integrity." 

 

A property may have "significance" for association with important events or patterns of history (criterion A); for association with 

an important historical figure (criterion B); as an important example of period architecture, landscape, or engineering (criterion C); 

or for the information it is likely to yield (criterion D, applied to archaeological sites and districts, and sometimes applied to certain 

types of structures). A National Register nomination must demonstrate how a property is significant in at least one of these four 

areas. For properties nominated under criterion A, frequently cited areas of significance are agriculture, community planning and 

development, social history, commerce, industry, politics and government, education, recreation and culture, and others. For 

technical reasons, criterion B (significant person) nominations are rare. Criterion C (architecture) is cited for most, but not all, 

nominations of historic buildings. Archaeological sites are always nominated under criterion D, but may also have significance 

under one or more of the other three criteria. 

 

Properties are nominated at a local, state, or national level of significance depending on the geographical range of the importance 

of a property and its associations. The level of significance must be justified in the nomination. The majority of properties (about 

70%) are listed at the local level of significance. The level of significance has no effect on the protections or benefits of listing. 

 

Besides meeting one or more of the above criteria, a property must also have "integrity" of "location, design, setting, materials, 

workmanship, feeling, and association." This means that the property must retain enough of its historic physical character (or in 

the case of archaeological sites, intact archaeological features) to represent its historic period and associations adequately. 

 

All properties change over time, and in some cases past alterations can take on historical significance in their own right. The 

degree to which more recent, incompatible, or non-historic alterations are acceptable depends on the type of property, its rarity, 

and its period and area of significance. Buildings with certain types of alterations are usually turned down by the National Register 

Advisory Committee. For example, 19th and early 20th century wood frame buildings that have been brick veneered in the mid-

20th century are routinely turned down for loss of historic integrity. Similarly, it is extremely rare that buildings covered in 

synthetic materials such as aluminum or vinyl siding are individually eligible for listing in the Register. 

 

Criteria Exceptions 

 

The criteria exclude birthplaces and graves of historical figures, cemeteries, religious properties, moved buildings, reconstructions, 

commemorative properties, and properties less than 50 years old, with certain exceptions. The following exceptions are sometimes 

encountered:  

 

Historic churches that are architecturally significant and retain sufficient architectural integrity can  be successfully nominated 

under criterion C (architecture), sometimes together with criterion A for social or religious history, provided they have not been 

brick-veneered or covered in aluminum or vinyl siding. 

 

Cemeteries may sometimes successfully be nominated under criterion C when they retain important examples of historic stone 

carving, funerary art, and/or landscaping, and they also may be eligible under criterion A or criterion D. However, both the 

National Register Advisory Committee and the National Register have turned down nominations of graves when the historical 

importance of the deceased is the sole basis for the nomination. The National Register was created primarily to recognize and 

protect historic places and environments that represent how people lived, worked, and built in the historic past. Human burials are 

recognized and protected under other laws and programs. 

 

Moved buildings may sometimes be successfully nominated under criterion C for architecture when they remain in their historic 

communities and the new setting adequately replicates the original setting. The point to remember is that the program is called the 

National Register of Historic Places, not Historic Buildings or Historic Things, because significance is embodied in locations and 

settings as well as in the structures themselves. Buildings moved great distances, buildings moved into incompatible settings (such 

as a farmhouse moved into an urban neighborhood or a downtown residence moved to a suburb), and collections of buildings 

moved from various locations to create a pseudo-historic "village" are routinely turned down. In some cases, the relocation of a 

historic building to a distant or incompatible setting may be the last and only way to save it, and such an undertaking may be 

worthwhile. However, sponsors of such a project must understand that the property subsequently may not be eligible for the 

National Register. 

 

If a property is less than 50 years old, it can be nominated only if a strong argument can be made for exceptional significance. For 

example, Dorton Arena on the State Fairgrounds was completed in 1953. It was successfully nominated to the National Register in 

1973 as one of the most important examples of modernism in post-World War II American architecture. 

124

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



(see other side) 

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE 
OFFICE OF ARCHIVES AND HISTORY 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES 

NATIONAL REGISTER FACT SHEET  3 
 

HOW HISTORIC PROPERTIES ARE LISTED IN 
THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 

 
 
Who Administers the National Register Program? 
 
The National Register of Historic Places is a list maintained by the National Park Service of buildings, structures, 
sites, objects, and districts that are significant in American history, architecture, archaeology, engineering, and 
culture, and that meet criteria for evaluation established by the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966. 
Nominations to the National Register are submitted from each of the states by the State Historic Preservation 
Officer (SHPO). In North Carolina, the SHPO is the Deputy Secretary of the Office of Archives and History. The 
section that administers the National Register and related programs is the State Historic Preservation Office 
(HPO). The personnel of the Historic Preservation Office serve as staff for the SHPO in National Register activities 
and duties. 
 
In every state, a review board examines potential nominations and makes recommendations to the SHPO regarding 
the eligibility of properties and the adequacy of nominations. In North Carolina, the review board is called the 
National Register Advisory Committee (NRAC). The NRAC meets thrice annually (February, June, October) to 
consider the eligibility of properties for nomination to the National Register. Nominations prepared under the 
supervision of the HPO staff and recommended for nomination by the NRAC are forwarded to the SHPO for review 
and formal nomination. They are then forwarded to the Keeper of the National Register in the National Park Service 
in Washington, D.C. Final authority to list properties in the National Register resides with the National Park Service. 
 
How are Eligible Properties Identified? 
 
Properties and districts that may be eligible for the National Register are usually brought to the attention of the HPO 
staff and the NRAC either (1) through a county or community survey of historic properties co-sponsored by the 
Historic Preservation Office and a local government or organization; (2) by interested individuals who provide 
preliminary information about properties to the HPO staff; or (3) through historic property surveys conducted as part 
of the environmental review process. 
 
Persons who seek National Register listing for properties that have not been recorded in survey projects co-sponsored 
by the Historic Preservation Office may submit a "Study List Application" to the HPO. If adequate information and 
color views of the property are included with the application, the NRAC will consider the property at its next 
quarterly meeting. If in the opinion of the NRAC the property appears to be potentially eligible for the National 
Register, it is placed on the Study List. This action by the NRAC authorizes the HPO staff to work with the owner to 
coordinate a formal nomination of the property to the National Register. 
 
The NRAC can best evaluate the eligibility of an individual property within the context of a community-wide or 
regional inventory of historic or prehistoric properties. This provides a basis for comparing the relative significance 
of similar types of historic or prehistoric properties in a community or region. In counties or communities where no 
such inventory has been assembled, the NRAC will sometimes find it necessary to defer a decision about the 
eligibility of an individual property until a comprehensive survey of historic properties has taken place. Likewise, the 
NRAC may consider some properties as contributing components within larger districts but not as individually 
eligible. Information about grants to local governments for local historic property surveys and nominations is 
available from the Historic Preservation Office. 
 
 

125

http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/nhpa.htm
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/slhowto.htm
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/grants.htm
godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



National Register Fact Sheet 3, Page 2 

 
10/2018 

What is a National Register Nomination? 
 
A National Register nomination is a scholarly and authoritative document that thoroughly describes and evaluates a 
property's setting and physical characteristics, documents its history, assesses its significance in terms of its historic 
context, and demonstrates how it specifically meets National Register criteria for evaluation. It is supported by 
professional quality photographs, maps delineating the property's boundaries, and other materials and information. 
The nomination must be prepared according to federal and state guidelines. 
 
Who Prepares National Register Nominations? 
 
Most nominations are prepared by private consultants hired either by individual property owners or by local 
governments or organizations. Nominations of archaeological sites are sometimes prepared by professional 
archaeologists as part of their on-going research. HPO National Register staff is responsible for reviewing, editing, 
and processing nominations prepared in these ways. Due to the great demand for National Register nominations and 
the small number of HPO staff, the HPO is unable to prepare nominations as a public service. 
 
An owner of a Study List property who seeks to have it listed in the National Register may hire a private consultant 
to prepare the nomination. A list of qualified consultants is available from the Historic Preservation Office. HPO staff 
cannot quote fees, and fees will vary depending on the consultant and the complexity of the nomination. An owner 
may expect to pay a professional historian, architectural historian, or archaeologist the equivalent of 40 to 80 hours of 
time at a professional hourly wage. 
 
Some owners are interested in preparing their own nominations and are capable of doing so. Practical Advice for 
Preparing National Register Nominations in North Carolina is available on the HPO website. The level of 
description, historical documentation, analysis, and writing in every nomination must meet accepted professional 
standards. The SHPO will not submit substandard nominations to Washington, and HPO staff cannot make major 
revisions or provide detailed critiques of inadequate nominations. Because documentation of archaeological 
properties generally involves data collection, analysis, and interpretation requiring specialized training, nominations 
of archaeological properties are always prepared by professional archaeologists. 
 
What Happens to the Finished Nomination? 
 
The nomination is reviewed by members of the National Register Advisory Committee at one of the regular thrice 
yearly meetings. If the NRAC recommends that the nomination be submitted to the National Register, it is signed by 
the State Historic Preservation Officer and forwarded to the Keeper of the National Register. At the National Register 
office, the nomination is reviewed and the decision to list or not list is made within not less than 15 and not more 
than 45 days of receipt. If the property is listed, the HPO will notify the owner and provide a certificate stating that 
the property has been listed in the National Register of Historic Places. Owners who desire plaques may order them 
from private commercial suppliers. The HPO does not provide plaques or recommend any particular supplier, but a 
list of manufacturers is available on request. 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: National Register Coordinator 

Survey and National Register Branch 
State Historic Preservation Office 

      4617 Mail Service Center  
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-4617        919/814-6587 

 
Offices of the Survey and National Register Branch are at 109 E. Jones Street in Raleigh. For information about 
archaeological sites and the National Register, contact the Office of State Archaeology, 4619 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-4619, telephone 919/814-6554. 
 
Please also see the Historic Preservation Office website at http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov.       

126

http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts2-Criteria.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/PRACTICAL_ADVICE_FINAL_PDF.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/PRACTICAL_ADVICE_FINAL_PDF.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/spbranch.htm
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/
godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



 

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE 
OFFICE OF ARCHIVES AND HISTORY 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES 
 

NATIONAL REGISTER FACT SHEET  4 
 

  
THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 

IN NORTH CAROLINA:  FACTS AND FIGURES 
  . There are more than 90,000 listings of historic buildings, structures, sites, objects, and districts in the 

National Register across the United States and its territories. 
 . The first nominations from North Carolina were submitted in 1969. Today there are approximately 

2,900 National Register listings in the state. In recent years the state has submitted an average of 35 
new nominations per year to the National Register. Most nominations are prepared by private 
consultants working for local governments or for private property owners. Nominations are carefully 
prepared and screened in the review process, and 99% of all nominations from North Carolina have 
been successfully listed. A list of all National Register entries in North Carolina arranged 
alphabetically by county and giving name, town or vicinity, and date listed plus a link to the complete 
nomination, is available on the State Historic Preservation Office web site at 
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NR-PDFs.html. A similar list may be accessed at the National Register 
web site, http://www.cr.nps.gov/nr/research/  

 . Of the approximately 2,900 total listings in North Carolina, about 540 are historic districts, some of 
which contain hundreds of contributing historic buildings or sites. Types of districts include 
residential neighborhoods, commercial districts, prehistoric and historic archaeological districts, 
industrial complexes, mill villages, and rural farming districts. Since the first historic district 
nominations did not include complete lists of all properties within district boundaries, it is not 
possible to determine the precise number of historic properties in North Carolina that are listed in the 
National Register. The National Park Service estimates that more than 75,000 historic resources in 
North Carolina are listed in the National Register either as individual listings or as contributing 
properties within districts. Properties within districts that contribute to the historic character of the 
district are eligible for federal environmental protections and benefits to the same extent as if they 
were individually listed.  

 . Of all North Carolina properties listed in the National Register, approximately 85% are privately 
owned and 15% publicly owned. About 70% are listed at a local level of significance, 25% at a 
statewide level, and 5% at a national level of significance. The level of significance at which a 
property or district is listed does not affect its eligibility for benefits or the consideration it receives in 
environmental review processes. 

 . North Carolina's National Register listings reflect the whole spectrum of the state's human experience 
through its long history: prehistoric Indian sites; shipwreck sites; modest log houses of settlers and 
slaves; houses and outbuildings of ordinary farmers and townspeople; the mansions of wealthy 
planters and merchants; churches of all sizes and denominations; courthouses, schools and other 
public buildings; commercial buildings of many types; and industrial and transportation buildings and 
sites. Listings vary from 10,000-year-old archaeological sites to the 1953 Dorton Arena at the State 
Fairgrounds. What all these places have in common is that they reveal in a tangible way some 
important aspect of past life in North Carolina and its diverse communities. 

 . The State Historic Preservation Office reviews approximately 3,000 federal and state actions annually 
to determine their potential effects on properties listed in or eligible for listing in the National 
Register. Where a federal or state undertaking is in conflict with the preservation of a National 
Register property, the State Historic Preservation Office will negotiate with the responsible agency in 

127

http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NR-PDFs.html
http://www.cr.nps.gov/nr/research/
godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



                                           National Register Fact Sheet 4, page 2 
 
 

10/2018 
 

an attempt to eliminate or minimize the effect under procedures prescribed by federal law (Section 
106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966) or state law (G.S. 121-12a). 

                                                             . From 1976 through December of 2014, 1,398 National Register properties in North Carolina were 
rehabilitated under state and federal historic preservation income-producing tax incentive programs, 
representing an investment of over $1.69 billion in National Register properties in the state. From 
1998 through December 2014, completed rehabilitation projects of 1,750 owner-occupied residences, 
representing $272.25 million in investment, were reviewed for certification under a North Carolina 
historic preservation tax incentive program. 

 . The Restoration Branch of the State Historic Preservation Office offers technical restoration 
consultation services to owners of historic properties, including municipal and county governments, 
churches, businesses, and private property owners. Restoration Branch staff provides consultation 
services to more than 2,000 historic properties in a typical year. Restoration staff is located in Raleigh 
(919/814-6590), Asheville (828/296-7230), and Greenville (252/830-6580).  

 . Since the mid-1970s three-quarters of North Carolina's 100 counties and scores of municipalities have 
participated in survey and planning grant projects co-sponsored with the State Historic Preservation 
Office to conduct comprehensive surveys of historic properties and prepare nominations of properties 
and districts to the National Register of Historic Places. Many other counties have participated in 
regional reconnaissance surveys. The Survey and National Register Branch maintains an estimated 
100,000 survey files with photographs and information about historic structures. The Office of State 
Archaeology maintains information concerning the approximately 41,000 prehistoric and historic 
archaeological sites recorded in the state. Fifty-three counties and thirty-seven municipalities have 
published historic architecture survey catalogues, many of which are still in print and available for 
purchase from the State Historic Preservation Office.  

 
For information about why the National Register was created and what listing means to a property owner, see NATIONAL 
REGISTER FACT SHEET 1, "WHAT IS THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES?" 

For an explanation of National Register criteria for evaluation, see NATIONAL REGISTER FACT SHEET 2, "NATIONAL 
REGISTER CRITERIA FOR EVALUATION." 

For information about how properties and districts are listed in the National Register, see NATIONAL REGISTER FACT 
SHEET 3, "HOW HISTORIC PROPERTIES ARE LISTED IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES." 

See the handout titled "A COMPARISON OF THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES WITH LOCAL 
HISTORIC LANDMARK AND DISTRICT DESIGNATIONS" for an explanation of the differences between the two 
programs. 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION:  
Please Also See The Historic Preservation Office website at http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov 
Historic structures and the National Register: Survey and National Register Branch, 4617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, 

NC 27699-4617; phone 919/814-6570.  
Archaeological sites and the National Register: Office of State Archaeology, 4619 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-

4619; phone 919/814-6554.  
Preservation tax credits and technical restoration assistance: Restoration Branch, 4617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 

27699-4617; phone 919/814-6590.  
Grants to local governments and organizations for historic property surveys and National Register nominations: Grants
 Coordinator, Administration Branch, 4617 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-4617; phone 919/814-6582. 
 
The National Register program is governed by the following federal and state rules and regulations: 36CFR Part 60 (interim 
rule), 36CFR Part 61 (final rule), and North Carolina Administrative Code T07: 04R .0300. 

128

http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts1-What.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts1-What.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts2-Criteria.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts2-Criteria.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts3-How.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/NRfacts3-How.pdf
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/spbranch.htm
http://www.archaeology.ncdcr.gov/
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/rebranch.htm
http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov/grants.htm
godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE 
DIVISION OF HISTORICAL RESOURCES, OFFICE OF ARCHIVES AND HISTORY   
NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES 

NATIONAL REGISTER FACT SHEET   5 
 

PROCEDURE FOR SUPPORTING OR OBJECTING TO 
NATIONAL REGISTER LISTING 

 
Under federal law a privately owned property may not be listed individually in the National Register over the 
objection of its owner or, in the case of a property with multiple owners, over the objection of a majority of 
owners. A district may not be listed in the National Register over the objection of a majority of owners of private 
property within the proposed district. 
 
Supporting a National Register nomination:  
 
Private owners who seek National Register listing for their properties are not required to submit statements of 
concurrence, though letters of support of the nomination are welcomed and become a permanent part of the 
nomination file. Owners who wish to support a nomination are encouraged to submit letters of support to the 
State Historic Preservation Officer prior to the National Register Advisory Committee meeting at which the 
nomination is to be considered. 
 
Objecting to a National Register nomination: 
 
Any owner or partial owner of a nominated private property who chooses to object to listing must submit to the 
State Historic Preservation Officer a notarized statement certifying that he or she is sole or partial owner of the 
private property and objects to the listing. Each owner or partial owner of the property has one vote regardless of 
what part of the property or how much property the individual owns. Owners who wish to object are encouraged 
to submit statements of objection prior to the meeting of the National Register Advisory Committee at which the 
nomination is being considered. However, statements of objection may be submitted and will be counted up until 
the actual date of listing, which usually takes place at least 15 days but not more than 45 days after the 
nomination is mailed to the Keeper of the National Register following the National Register Advisory Committee 
meeting. 
 
If a majority of private property owners should object, the property or district will not be listed. However, in such 
cases the State Historic Preservation Officer is required to submit the nomination to the Keeper of the National 
Register for a determination of eligibility for the National Register. If the property or district is determined 
eligible for listing, although not formally listed, it will be treated as a listed property or district for purposes of 
federal undertakings in the environmental review process. Such properties are not eligible for federal 
preservation grants or tax credits until the objections are withdrawn and the property is listed. 
 
Address letters of support or objection to:  
 
    State Historic Preservation Officer 
    Office of Archives and History 
    4610 Mail Service Center 
    Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-4610 
 
National Register Advisory Committee meetings are open to the public. Meetings normally are held the 
second Thursday of February, June, and October in the conference room on the third floor of the 
Archives/State Library Building at 109 East Jones Street in Raleigh. For more information, call 919/814-
6587. 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION:  
Historic structures and the National Register: Survey and National Register Branch, 919/814-6570.  
Archaeological sites and the National Register: Office of State Archaeology, 919/814-6554.  
Preservation tax credits and technical restoration assistance: Restoration Branch, 919/814-6570. 
 

Please also see the Historic Preservation Office World Wide Web site at http://www.hpo.ncdcr.gov 
 
The National Register program is governed by the following federal and state rules and regulations: 36CFR Part 60 (interim rule), 36CFR 
Part 61 (final rule), and North Carolina Administrative Code T07: 04R .0300 

10/2018 129

godwink
Text Box
Exhibit D



 

Mayor’s Office 
Phone (704) 920-5215 = Fax (704) 920-6909 

35 Cabarrus Avenue West, P.O. Box 308, Concord, NC  28026 – www.concordnc.gov

 
 

October 12, 2021 
 
Jenn Brosz  
National Register Coordinator  
Survey and National Register Branch  
North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office  
4617 Mail Service Center  
Raleigh, NC 27699-4617  
 

Dear Ms. Brosz, 

I, Mayor William C. Dusch, or We, the Concord City Council, have reviewed the 
nomination for Norcott Mill- Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10 and find that the 
property does not meet the criteria for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 
as stated in Section 8 of the report. We therefore, do not recommend that the property be 
submitted for listing in the Register. The reasons for our findings concerning this 
nomination are stated below: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

 

______________________________________    ________ 

Mayor William C. Dusch, City of Concord, NC          Date 

130

http://www.concordnc.gov


 

Mayor’s Office 
Phone (704) 920-5215 = Fax (704) 920-6909 

35 Cabarrus Avenue West, P.O. Box 308, Concord, NC  28026 – www.concordnc.gov

 
 

October 12, 2021 
 
Jenn Brosz  
National Register Coordinator  
Survey and National Register Branch  
North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office  
4617 Mail Service Center  
Raleigh, NC 27699-4617  
 

Dear Ms. Brosz, 

 

I, Mayor William C. Dusch, or We, the Concord City Council, have reviewed the 
nomination for Norcott Mill- Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10 and find that the 
property meets the criteria for listing in the National Register of Historic Places as stated 
in Section 8 of the report. We therefore, recommend that the property be submitted for 
listing in the Register.  

Additional Comments: 

 

 

 

______________________________________    ________ 

Mayor William C. Dusch, City of Concord, NC          Date 

131

http://www.concordnc.gov


!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

6

7
4

50
48

45
3936

3332

3128
2722

18
16 15

88

84

80

78

75

59
55

49
43

37

31
29

93
96

95
82

79 76

75

71

70

62

29
25

21
12

46
42

38
34

32

28

85 82

8079
75 60

45
44

39
38

33 30
27

22
21

101

316

314
312

311

310
309

307

628 620
590

581
579

577
575

573
569

528

106
100

673

668

663
659

658

655

650
636

626 607

598

597

594

593 591

590

587 583

580

577576

574
570

565

560

557

550

540

530

217
215

103

1ST ST NW

CABARRUS AVE W

WHITE ST NW

FLORA AVE NW

WHITE ST SW

BROWN ST SW

2ND ST NW

GRACE AVE NW

KERR ST NW

WARREN C COLEMAN BLVD S

OL
D 

CH
AR

LO
TT

E 
RD

 SW

UNION CEMETERY RD SW

CONCORD PKWY N CABARRUS AVE W

GE
OR

GI
A S

T S
W

GROFF ST NW

CONCORD PKWY S

SU
NDER

LA
ND RD SW

WILSHIRE AVE SW

CORBAN AVE SW

UNION ST N

SPRING ST NW

MA
IN

 S
T S

W

CR
OW

EL
L D

R 
SW

FR
ANKLI

N AVE
 NW

WHITE ST NW

YOUNG AVE SW

ANN ST NW

LISKE AVE NW

CED
AR

 DR NW

POPLAR TENT RD

BROWN ST SW

HELEN DR NW

1ST ST NW

RAMDIN CT NW

AMBER CT SW

LINDEN AVE SW

2ND ST NW
EPWORTH ST NW

ALLIANCE AVE SW

WILSHIRE CT SW

DULIN DR SW

GUY AV
E NW

ANDREWS ST NW

MAGNOLIA ST NW

4TH ST NW

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

NR-01-21

Cabarrus Ave W & 
White St SW

PIN: 5620-23-7893

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

² 0 200100
Feet

Subject Property
! Addresses

Parcels

Subject
Property

132



MELROSE DRIVE, SW

Line Table
Line #

L1

L2

Direction
S50° 57' 02"E

N33° 15' 40"E

Length

6.39'

34.39'

EXHIBIT A

133

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CLARENCE DAVIS PART OF LOT 26 AND ALL OF LOTS 27 AND 28 BLOCK 'F' MB 6 PG 89 DB 14313 PG 68 PIN: 5620-72-7992 REAL ID: 12-037-0192.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM DRAIN PIPES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WOOD LANDSCAPING TIMBERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM DRAIN PIPES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE LINE NOT TO SCALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENT IRON FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY JEFFREY McMULLEN and wife, ONICKWA McMULLEN AND DAVID McMULLEN LOTS 24 AND 25 BLOCK 'F' MB 6 PG 89 DB 3564 PG 25 PIN: 5620-72-8858 REAL ID: 12-038-0017.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD PART OF LOT 26 BLOCK 'F' MB 6 PG 89 DB 313 PG 276 PIN: 5620-72-8920 REAL ID: 12-038-0018.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENT IRON FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEED LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEED LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD DB 444 PG 662 PIN: 5620-82-1226 REAL ID: 12-038-0001.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAB INLET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AKA FOURTH STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MB 6 PG 89)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY  LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT  LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELROSE  AVE  SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARVER  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKVIEW  CT  SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA ST SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHANNON  DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWELL  AVE SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOGAN  AVE   SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALEM  ST  SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELROSE DR SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MALVERN  AVE  SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIFFIN CIR SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BOOK 313, PAGE 276;

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"= 30'      DATE:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CITY OF CONCORD, CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  PROPERTY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONVEYANCE PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN: 5620-72-8920

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAL ID: 12-038-0018.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 11, 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\ENG\SURVEY PROJECTS\2020\2020-000_MISC\2020-MISC_STORMWATER\2020_290-294 MELROSE DRIVE ROW\DWG FILES\290-294 MELROSE DRIVE ROW.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINES NOT SURVEYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON ROD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY AND ACCURACY STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, CABARRUS COUNTY I, DAVID M. MEDLIN, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION BASED ON THE DEED DESCRIPTIONS, AS NOTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF CLOSURE IS 1:10,000+; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES PLOTTED FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN THE DEEDS REFERENCED HEREON AND THAT THIS MAP WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERAL STATUTE 47-30, AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, REGISTRATION NUMBER AND  SEAL THIS THE 22nd DAY OF SEPT., A.D., 2021. 22nd DAY OF SEPT., A.D., 2021.  DAY OF SEPT., A.D., 2021. SEPT., A.D., 2021. , A.D., 2021.                                               . DAVID M. MEDLIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NORTH CAROLINA REG. NO. L-4286

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 2. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE HORIZONTAL U.S. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE HORIZONTAL U.S. SURVEY FOOT GROUND DIMENSIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 3. AREAS SHOWN WERE DETERMINED BY AREAS SHOWN WERE DETERMINED BY COORDINATE COMPUTATIONS. 4. THE PROPERTY AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT IS THE PROPERTY AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT IS SUBJECT TO ALL RIGHTS OF WAY AND EASEMENTS OF RECORD PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THIS SURVEY. 5. THIS MAP IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR THIS MAP IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND AND DOES NOT CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET. 6. THIS MAP IS AN EXCEPTION TO THE DEFINITION THIS MAP IS AN EXCEPTION TO THE DEFINITION OF SUBDIVISION. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT PREPARED BY: : THE CITY OF CONCORD ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 635 ALFRED BROWN JR. COURT, SW CONCORD, N.C. 28026-0308 (704) 920-5420  FAX (704) 786-4521 WWW.CONCORDNC.GOV/ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCGS MONUMENT  "PENNEY" (NC GRID NAD83/2011) N: 599,937.68' E: 1,530,036.83' (JOB CSF: 0.999847703)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NC GRID DATUM (NAD 83/2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH CITY OF CONCORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPUTED POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.08 Acres Tract

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-4286

AutoCAD SHX Text
(+/- 3,311 Sq.Ft. OF EASEMENT)



134



135



136



MELROSE DRIVE, SW

Line Table
Line #

L1

L2

Direction
S50° 57' 02"E

N33° 15' 40"E

Length

6.39'

34.39'

EXHIBIT A

137

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CLARENCE DAVIS PART OF LOT 26 AND ALL OF LOTS 27 AND 28 BLOCK 'F' MB 6 PG 89 DB 14313 PG 68 PIN: 5620-72-7992 REAL ID: 12-037-0192.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM DRAIN PIPES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WOOD LANDSCAPING TIMBERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM DRAIN PIPES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE LINE NOT TO SCALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENT IRON FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY JEFFREY McMULLEN and wife, ONICKWA McMULLEN AND DAVID McMULLEN LOTS 24 AND 25 BLOCK 'F' MB 6 PG 89 DB 3564 PG 25 PIN: 5620-72-8858 REAL ID: 12-038-0017.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD PART OF LOT 26 BLOCK 'F' MB 6 PG 89 DB 313 PG 276 PIN: 5620-72-8920 REAL ID: 12-038-0018.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENT IRON FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEED LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEED LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD DB 444 PG 662 PIN: 5620-82-1226 REAL ID: 12-038-0001.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAB INLET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AKA FOURTH STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MB 6 PG 89)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY  LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT  LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELROSE  AVE  SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARVER  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKVIEW  CT  SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA ST SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHANNON  DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWELL  AVE SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOGAN  AVE   SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALEM  ST  SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELROSE DR SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MALVERN  AVE  SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIFFIN CIR SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BOOK 313, PAGE 276;

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"= 30'      DATE:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CITY OF CONCORD, CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  PROPERTY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONVEYANCE PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN: 5620-72-8920

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAL ID: 12-038-0018.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 11, 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\ENG\SURVEY PROJECTS\2020\2020-000_MISC\2020-MISC_STORMWATER\2020_290-294 MELROSE DRIVE ROW\DWG FILES\290-294 MELROSE DRIVE ROW.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINES NOT SURVEYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON ROD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY AND ACCURACY STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, CABARRUS COUNTY I, DAVID M. MEDLIN, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION BASED ON THE DEED DESCRIPTIONS, AS NOTED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF CLOSURE IS 1:10,000+; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES PLOTTED FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN THE DEEDS REFERENCED HEREON AND THAT THIS MAP WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERAL STATUTE 47-30, AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, REGISTRATION NUMBER AND  SEAL THIS THE 22nd DAY OF SEPT., A.D., 2021. 22nd DAY OF SEPT., A.D., 2021.  DAY OF SEPT., A.D., 2021. SEPT., A.D., 2021. , A.D., 2021.                                               . DAVID M. MEDLIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NORTH CAROLINA REG. NO. L-4286

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 2. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE HORIZONTAL U.S. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE HORIZONTAL U.S. SURVEY FOOT GROUND DIMENSIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 3. AREAS SHOWN WERE DETERMINED BY AREAS SHOWN WERE DETERMINED BY COORDINATE COMPUTATIONS. 4. THE PROPERTY AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT IS THE PROPERTY AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT IS SUBJECT TO ALL RIGHTS OF WAY AND EASEMENTS OF RECORD PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THIS SURVEY. 5. THIS MAP IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR THIS MAP IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND AND DOES NOT CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET. 6. THIS MAP IS AN EXCEPTION TO THE DEFINITION THIS MAP IS AN EXCEPTION TO THE DEFINITION OF SUBDIVISION. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT PREPARED BY: : THE CITY OF CONCORD ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 635 ALFRED BROWN JR. COURT, SW CONCORD, N.C. 28026-0308 (704) 920-5420  FAX (704) 786-4521 WWW.CONCORDNC.GOV/ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCGS MONUMENT  "PENNEY" (NC GRID NAD83/2011) N: 599,937.68' E: 1,530,036.83' (JOB CSF: 0.999847703)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NC GRID DATUM (NAD 83/2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH CITY OF CONCORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPUTED POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.08 Acres Tract

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-4286

AutoCAD SHX Text
(+/- 3,311 Sq.Ft. OF EASEMENT)



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONSIDERATION of NEGOTIATED OFFER, 
ADVERTISEMENT, AND UPSET BID 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the City to sell real 
property by upset bid after the receipt of an Offer to Purchase Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Concord acquired a parcel of real property parcel being 

approximately 0.08 acres, located off of Melrose Drive SW by deed recorded on August 25, 
1966 in Deed Book 313, at Page 276 of the Cabarrus County Registry; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 0.08 Acres parcel off of Melrose Drive SW (“Property”) is further 

described as follows:  
 

Lying and being in the City of Concord, No. 12 Township, Cabarrus County, North Carolina, 
being all of the property described in Deed Book 313, Page 276 (PIN: 5620-72-8920; Real ID: 
12-038-0018.00) and also known as being a part of Lot 26 Block “F” of HARTSELL ACRES as 
recorded in Map Book 6, Page 89 among the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds; and being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at an existing IRON FOUND on the south side Public Right of Way of Melrose Drive, 
SW (aka Fourth Street) (variable width) at the common corner of Lots 25 and 26 of Block “F” of 
the aforesaid HARTSELL ACRES said IRON FOUND being further described as having NC 
(NAD 83/2011) Ground Coordinates of N: 602,956.17’, E: 1,527,884.16’ and being located 
North 35°29'42" West 3,707.46 feet (ground) from NCGS Monument "PENNEY" and being the 
POINT OF BEGINNING (POB) of the property to be described herein; thence leaving the 
POINT OF BEGINNING (POB) and running along the common lot line of the aforesaid Lots 25 
and 26 Block “F” 
 

1. South 38°55'58" West 148.92 feet to an IRON SET at the common corner of Lots 25 and 
26 of Block “F”, in the line of the property of the CITY OF CONCORD (Deed Book 444, 
Page 662) (PIN: 5620-87-1226; REAL ID: 12-038-0018.00); thence running along the 
common line of said Lot 26 and the CITY OF CONCORD property (Deed Book 444, 
Page 662)   

 
2. North 50°50'45" West 25.00 feet to an existing BENT IRON FOUND in the line of the 

CITY OF CONORD property at the common corner of Lots 26 and 27 of Block “F”; 
thence running along the common line of Lots 26 and 27 of Block “F” 

 
3. North 39°02'58" East 67.86 feet to an existing IRON FOUND in said common line; 

thence leaving said common line and running across Lot 26 along the common deed 
lines of Deed Book 313, Page 276 and the property of Clarence Davis (now or formerly) 
Deed Book 14313, Page 89 (PIN: 5620-72-7992; REAL ID: 12-037-0192.00) 

 
4. South 51°02'07" East 2.92 feet to an IRON SET; thence continuing along the common 

line of Deed Book 313, Page 276 and Deed Book 14313, Page 89 
 

5. North 38°55'58" East 81.02 feet to an existing BENT IRON FOUND on the south side 
Public Right of Way of Melrose Drive, SW (aka Fourth Street); thence running along said 
Public Right of Way of Melrose Drive, SW  

 
6. South 50°55'14" East 21.94 feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 3,470 square 

feet or 0.08 acres of land, more or less, as shown on map titled, “Conveyance Plat, 
Property of City of Concord, 0.08 Acre Tract” dated May 11, 2021 by the City of Concord 
Engineering Department as shown on Exhibit A. 
 
BEING the same property conveyed to the City of Concord by Deed recorded August 25 
1966 in Deed Book 313, at Page 276 of the Cabarrus County Registry. This Property is 
to be conveyed SUBJECT TO a variable width storm drainage easement to the City of 
Concord. 
 
WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, the City received an Offer to Purchase the 

Property from Clarence J. Davis and wife, Betty D. Davis (“Buyer”) for $ 1,125.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Buyer have deposited a 5% deposit of $56.25 with the City Clerk; and  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CONCORD, THAT: 

138



     1.  The City Council intends to accept the offer described above through the upset bid 
 procedure outlined in North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269. 

2.  The Offeror shall submit Fifty-Six Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents ($56.25) as a deposit 
to be held by the City Clerk; and  

3.  The City Clerk shall cause to be published a notice of the proposed sale of the Property, 
that being further described as a parcel of land, 0.08 Acre located off of Melrose Drive 
SW (“Property”) is further described as follows: Lying and being in the City of Concord, 
No. 12 Township, Cabarrus County, North Carolina, being all of the property described 
in Deed Book 313, Page 276 (PIN: 5620-72-8920; Real ID: 12-038-0018.00) and also 
known as being a part of Lot 26 Block “F” of HARTSELL ACRES as recorded in Map 
Book 6, Page 89 among the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds; and being more 
particularly described as follows: Beginning at an existing IRON FOUND on the south 
side Public Right of Way of Melrose Drive, SW (aka Fourth Street) (variable width) at the 
common corner of Lots 25 and 26 of Block “F” of the aforesaid HARTSELL ACRES said 
IRON FOUND being further described as having NC (NAD 83/2011) Ground 
Coordinates of N: 602,956.17’, E: 1,527,884.16’ and being located North 35°29'42" West 
3,707.46 feet (ground) from NCGS Monument "PENNEY" and being the POINT OF 
BEGINNING (POB) of the property to be described herein; thence leaving the POINT OF 
BEGINNING (POB) and running along the common lot line of the aforesaid Lots 25 and 
26 Block “F”; thence South 38°55'58" West 148.92 feet to an IRON SET at the common 
corner of Lots 25 and 26 of Block “F”, in the line of the property of the CITY OF 
CONCORD (Deed Book 444, Page 662) (PIN: 5620-87-1226; REAL ID: 12-038-
0018.00); thence running along the common line of said Lot 26 and the CITY OF 
CONCORD property (Deed Book 444, Page 662); thence North 50°50'45" West 25.00 
feet to an existing BENT IRON FOUND in the line of the CITY OF CONORD property at 
the common corner of Lots 26 and 27 of Block “F”; thence running along the common 
line of Lots 26 and 27 of Block “F”; thence North 39°02'58" East 67.86 feet to an existing 
IRON FOUND in said common line; thence leaving said common line and running 
across Lot 26 along the common deed lines of Deed Book 313, Page 276 and the 
property of Clarence Davis (now or formerly) Deed Book 14313, Page 89 (PIN: 5620-72-
7992; REAL ID: 12-037-0192.00); thence South 51°02'07" East 2.92 feet to an IRON 
SET; thence continuing along the common line of Deed Book 313, Page 276 and Deed 
Book 14313, Page 89; thence North 38°55'58" East 81.02 feet to an existing BENT 
IRON FOUND on the south side Public Right of Way of Melrose Drive, SW (aka Fourth 
Street); thence running along said Public Right of Way of Melrose Drive, SW; thence 
South 50°55'14" East 21.94 feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 3,470 square 
feet or 0.08 acres of land, more or less, as shown on map titled, “Conveyance Plat, 
Property of City of Concord, 0.08 Acre Tract” dated May 11, 2021 by the City of Concord 
Engineering Department. 

 
BEING the same property conveyed to the City of Concord by Deed recorded August 25 
1966 in Deed Book 313, at Page 276 of the Cabarrus County Registry. This Property is 
to be conveyed SUBJECT TO a variable width storm drainage easement to the City of 
Concord.  The notice shall describe the property, the amount of the offer, the terms 
under which the sale is to be made, and the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

     4.  Any persons wishing to upset the offer shall submit a sealed bid along with their offer 
 and deposit to the office of the City Clerk within 10 days after the notice of the proposed 
 sale is published.  At the conclusion of the 10-day period, the City Clerk shall open the 
 bids, if any, and the highest bid will become the new offer.  If there is more than one bid 
 in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer. 

     5.  If a qualifying higher bid is received, the City Clerk shall cause a new notice of upset bid 
 to be published and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without 
 any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the amount of the final high 
 bid shall be reported to the City Council. 

     6.  A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent 
 (10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that 
 offer. 

     7.  All bids, including the qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the 
 amount of five percent (5%) of the total bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s 
 check, or certified check to the City Clerk.  The City will return the deposit on any bid not 
 accepted and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid 
 is received.   

139



     8.  The final sale shall include the following terms:  

a.  The City will convey a 0.08 acre real property parcel located off of Melrose Drive 
SW, subject to a variable width storm drainage easement to the City of Concord, 
the Highest Bidder, as stated in the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real 
Property. 

b. The City will convey the property subject to a variable width storm drainage 
easement to the City of Concord, along with any and all existing public utility 
easements, restrictions, rights-of-way, protective covenants, zoning laws, 
conditions, and any ordinance of record. 

c.  The closing shall take place on or before November 30th, 2021.  

     9.   The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time, before the 
 final high bid is accepted and reserves the right to reject, at any time, all bids. 

10. The City Attorney is directed to take all necessary steps to complete the sale in the    
event no upset bids are received. The City Manager is authorized to execute the 
necessary instruments to effectuate the sale of a 0.08 acre real property parcel located 
off of Melrose Drive SW in accordance with this resolution. 

    Adopted this ________ day of October, 2021.  

             
        CITY COUNCIL   
        CITY OF CONCORD   
        NORTH CAROLINA   
             
        _____________________________ 

        William “Bill” Dusch, Mayor 
 ATTEST: 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Kim J. Deason, City Clerk 
 
 

4813-7508-5109, v.  2 

 

140



IRON ROD
GRID COORDS (NAD 83/2011)

N: 619,096.53'
E: 1,524,378.14'

FOR REVIEW ONLY NOT FOR CONVEYANCE

OR RECORDATION

141

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY EPWORTH UNITED METHODIST CHURCH, INC., A NORTH CAROLINA CORPORATION DB 11224 PG 330 PIN: 5621-48-4876 REAL ID: 12-001A-0025.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY C.J. MOSS REAL ESTATE, INC. DB 580 PG 171 PIN: 5621-49-0155 REAL ID: 12-001A-0023.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY MONKEY BALLS PROPERTIES, LLC a North Carolina limited liability company LOT 9 MB 18 PG 31 DB 9587 PG 326 PIN: 5621-49-6315 REAL ID: 12-001A-0020.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY WALTER SHIELDS VUCHNICH and wife, CAROL DORST VUCHNICH LOT 10 MB 18 PG 31 DB 2115 PG 308 PIN: 5621-49-7384 REAL ID: 12-001A-0020.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY GAB Properties, LLC. a North Carolina limited liability company LOTS 7 & 8 MB 18 PG 31 DB 9537 PG 67 PIN: 5621-49-3485 REAL ID: 12-001A-0020.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CITY OF CONCORD 10.387 ACRES TRACT MB 67 PG 78 DB 11230 PG 225 PIN: 5621-59-3025 REAL ID: 12-001A-0028.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 30' CITY OF CONCORD SANITARY SEWER R/W DB 400 PG 451

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF  FEMA FLOODPLAIN LINE NOT FIELD LOCATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY EAST WEST PROPERTIES #1 LLC. DB 3414 PG 211 and DB 2557 PG 275 PIN: 5621-59-3492 REAL ID: 12-001A-0028.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
LE PHILLIP CT., NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF TOP OF BANK (NOT FIELD LOCATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
THREE MILE BRANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF TOP OF BANK (NOT FIELD LOCATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURRAGE RD., NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LE PHILLIP CT., NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL., NE (PRI)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODBROOK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSING THE PROPERTY OF EPWORTH UNITED METHODIST CHURCH, INC. REAL ID 12-001A-0025.10; PIN: 5621-48-4876 DEED BOOK 11224, PAGE 330  CITY OF CONCORD, #12 TOWNSHIP CABARRUS COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA     SCALE 1" = 60'    DATE: APRIL 30, 2019  PREPARED BY: DMM     CHECKED BY: JC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH = 60 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
NC GRID (NAD 83/2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
   REVISIONS:     NO.   DATE                  DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NC GRID (NAD 83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY AND ACCURACY STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, CABARRUS COUNTY I, DAVID M. MEDLIN, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN  UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER  MY SUPERVISION BASED ON THE DEED DESCRIPTIONS, AS NOTED  HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF CLOSURE IS 1:10,000+; THAT THE  BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES  PLOTTED FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN THE DEEDS REFERENCED  HEREON AND THAT THIS MAP WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE  WITH GENERAL STATUTE 47-30, AS AMENDED. I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND AND DOES NOT CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, REGISTRATION NUMBER AND  SEAL THIS THE Xth DAY OF XXXXXX, A.D., 2016.                                               . DAVID M. MEDLIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NORTH CAROLINA REG. NO. L-4286

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT  850 WARREN C. COLEMAN BOULEVARD  CONCORD, NC 28026-0308  704-920-5420   FAX 704-786-4521

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES : 1. PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - PIN 5621-48-4876. 2. TAX MAP IDENTIFICATION NUMBER #12-001A-0025.10. 3. REFERENCES - DEED BOOK 11224, PAGE 330 AND OTHERS AS     SHOWN. 4. SUBJECT PROPERTY IS ZONED - RC. 5. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DIMENSIONS IN US     SURVEY FEET(UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED). 6. AREAS SHOWN WERE DETERMINED BY COORDINATE COMPUTATIONS. 7. SURVEY BASED ON EXISTING MARKERS FOUND AT SITE     AND DEED DESCRIPTION. 8. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONES "X" AND "AE", AS    PER F.E.M.A. F.I.R.M. COMMUNITY PANEL 3710562100K, EFFECTIVE    DATE 11/16/2018. 9. THE PURPOSE OF THIS SURVEY IS TO CREATE A PLAT SUITABLE     FOR RECORDATION IN THE CABARRUS COUNTY LAND RECORDS IN     COMPLIANCE WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE 47-30     MAPPING REQUIREMENTS. 10. THIS IS A BOUNDARY SURVEY OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OF LAND    AND IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS OR RIGHTS OF WAY    OF RECORD.  11. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BASED ON NC STATE GRID DATUM     (NAD 83/2011). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF PLAT APPROVAL IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THIS MAP IS EXEMPT FROM  CITY OF CONCORD APPROVAL AS A SUBDIVISION PLAT AND  IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF CONCORD DEVELOPMENT  ORDINANCE REGULATIONS,           .                                         .                                          .                                . DATE                 DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\ENG\SURVEY PROJECTS\2018\2018-005 MCEACHERN GREENWAY-HOSPITAL PHASE\2018-005 MCEACHERN GREENWAY-HOSPITAL PHASE.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT REVIEW OFFICER CERTIFICATE (AS REQUIRED BY NCGS 47-30.2) STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF CABARRUS I,                                , REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,                                  , REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,   REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,  CERTIFY THAT THE MAP OR PLAT TO WITH THIS CERTIFICATION IS AFIXED MEETS  ALL STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDING.  DATE:             ,         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .             ,         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .                              .

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINES NOT SURVEYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON ROD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON ROD (SET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPUTED POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.I.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP - NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE "AE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE "X"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE



K

I

T

C

H

E

N

1

0

3

P

A

N

T

R

Y

1

0

2

A

R

T

1

0

1

C

O

R

R

I

D

O

R

1

1

0

R

E

C

E

P

T

I

O

N

1

0

9

W

O

M

E

N

S

 

T

O

I

L

E

T

1

1

1

O

F

F

I

C

E

1

1

4

M

E

N

S

 

T

O

I

L

E

T

1

1

5

A

R

T

1

1

6

C

L

O

S

E

T

1

0

4

C

L

O

S

E

T

1

0

5

L

I

F

T

1

0

6

F

O

Y

E

R

1

0

8

C

L

O

S

E

T

1

1

2

C

L

O

S

E

T

1

1

3

A

T

T

I

C

 

S

T

A

I

R

1

0

7

S

T

A

I

R

1

1

7

O

F

F

I

C

E

1

1

8

C

O

R

R

I

D

O

R

1

1

9

2

,

6

1

0

.

5

3

 

s

q

 

f

t

1

0

1

Y

1

1

4

X

1

0

2

X

1

0

9

X

1

1

2

X

1

1

3

X

1

0

5

X

1

0

1

X

1

0

4

X

1

0

6

X

1

1

5

X

1

1

7

X

1

1

1

X

1

1

8

X

1

1

6

X

1

0

3

X

1

2

2

D

N

R

E

F

.

1

0

8

X

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

DAVID PHILLIPS
ACTIVITY CENTER

OUTDOOR PATIO
GATHERING SPACE

TERRACED GARDENS
AND RAMPS/PATHS

ACTIVITY
SHELTER

ACTIVITY
ZONES

PLAYGROUND
BEACH

PROPOSED BRIDGE
CROSSING

OUTDOOR CLASSROOM
AND WORKSPACES

'AVIARY' SHADE SAIL AND
RESTROOMS - OUTDOOR
ACTIVITIES: FITNESS, ARCHERY,
DISC GOLF SKILLS, ETC.

ORCHARD

TREE HOUSE AND SWINGING
BRIDGE/BOARDWALK

BIKE LOOP GOES UNDER
BRIDGE/BOARDWALK

OVERLOOK
SITTING AREA

NEW PARKING
PARKING AREA STORM
WATER CONVEYANCE

RAIN GARDEN

BIKE LOOP/TRAIL

PARKING
AND SERVICE

PROPOSED CONNECTION TO
BRANCHVIEW AND
ADDITIONAL PARKING

PROPOSED MCEACHERN GREENWAY

PROPOSED MCEACHERN MAIN
GREENWAY TRAIL - ASPHALT

PROPOSED BRIDGE
CROSSING

EMERGENCY AND
ACCESSIBLE ACCESS

SCALE

0

1"=50'-0"

25'50' 50' 100'

N
o

r
t
h

Urban Design
Land Planning

Landscape Architecture
www.viz.design

Burrage Road Park - Concept PlanBurrage Road Park - Concept Plan
Concord, NC June 1, 2019Concord, NC June 1, 2019

142

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
THREEMILE BRANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
THREEMILE BRANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
THREEMILE BRANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DI

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX DI

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP-NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
678.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP-NAIL-RTK-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
678.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP-NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP-NAIL-RTK-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

©

U

UU

U

BURRAGE RD NE

LA
KE

 C
ON

CO
RD

 R
D 

NE

BEVERLY DR NE

BRANCHVIEW DR NE

MA
LL

 DR
 NE

SUBURBAN AVE NE

LE PHILLIP CT NE

BRADLEY ST NE

SCENIC DR NE

LE CLINE DR NE

WOODBROOK PL NE

0 500 1,000250 Feet

O
143

paulingj
Text Box
Burrage contains sidewalk & sharrows on both sides

paulingj
Arrow

paulingj
Text Box
DAVID PHILLIPS ACTIVITY CENTER

paulingj
Polygon

paulingj
Text Box
Epworth UMC Easement



R

O

B

E

R

T

A

 

C

H

U

R

C

H

 

R

O

A

D

Line Table
Line #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

Direction

S81° 26' 39"E

S81° 26' 39"E

S52° 54' 01"W

S80° 52' 38"W

S52° 50' 45"W

S52° 50' 45"W

S65° 41' 57"E

N09° 46' 21"E

N00° 50' 17"E

S00° 50' 17"W

S52° 50' 45"W

N89° 09' 43"W

N00° 50' 17"E

N52° 50' 45"E

S81° 26' 39"E

S46° 08' 47"W

S85° 18' 48"W

Length

20.96'

62.87'

18.74'

31.88'

19.85'

14.01'

26.97'

4.26'

50.45'

27.41'

51.48'

15.00'

34.73'

44.17'

7.13'

34.10'

44.86'

Access Easement Line Table
Line #

E19

E20

E21

E22

E23

E24

E25

E26

E27

E28

Direction

N81° 28' 43"W

S37° 35' 04"W

S36° 44' 16"W

S39° 49' 47"W

N11° 16' 13"W

N39° 49' 47"E

N36° 44' 16"E

N37° 35' 04"E

S81° 28' 43"E

S00° 50' 17"W

Length

113.68'

82.93'

55.02'

65.75'

25.70'

49.07'

54.63'

83.08'

110.98'

20.18'

G

E

O

R

G

E

 
L

I
L

E

S

 
B

L

V

D

.

FOR REVIEW ONLY NOT FOR CONVEYANCE

OR RECORDATION

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

144

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' Public R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wooded

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.C.D.O.T. R/W DISC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CONCORD POINTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP an Ohio Limited Partnership DB 1519 PG 299 PIN:5519-21-4980 REAL ID:02-036-0044.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CONCORD POINTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP an Ohio Limited Partnership DB 1519 PG 299 PIN:5519-21-4980 REAL ID:02-036-0044.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 39 MB 44 PG 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 40 MB 44 PG 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE MB 44 PG 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE MB 44 PG 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATIONS OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND PHYSICAL IMPROVEMENTS (AS SHOWN)  HAVE NOT BEEN VERIFIED OR  FIELD LOCATED BY THE CITY OF CONCORD AND ARE SHOWN FOR ILLUSTRATION PURPOSES ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCDOT R/W DISC

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE LINE NOT TO SCALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CONCORD POINTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP an Ohio Limited Partnership DB 1519 PG 299 PIN:5519-21-4980 REAL ID:02-036-0044.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER PAID

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCDOT CHAIN LINK CONTROL ACCESS FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCDOT PROJECT REF. #R-2246B

AutoCAD SHX Text
(HIGHWAY MAP BOOK 66 PG 11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT UTILITY ACCESS EASEMENT LIES WITHIN THE EXISTING PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERTA  CHURCH  RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGE LILES BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINTE LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTRIDGE LN SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMMERTREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH = 50 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
NC GRID (NAD 83/2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
   REVISIONS:     NO.   DATE                  DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NC GRID (NAD 83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\ENG\SURVEY PROJECTS\2020\2020-007 THE GROUNDS AT CONCORD\DWG FILES\2020-007 THE GROUNDS AT CONCORD - CONCORD POINTE EASEMENT PLAT.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP - NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAP BOOK   PAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BOOK  PAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB  PG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB  PG

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROKEN LINES NOT SURVEYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINES SURVEYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPUTED POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCGS MONUMENT  "BUFFALO 2" (NC GRID NAD83/2011) N: 602,892.55' E: 1,520,417.72' (JOB CSF: 0.99984396)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES : 1. PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - PIN: 5519-21-4980. 2. REAL ESTATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER #02-036-0044.30. 3. REFERENCES - DEED BOOK 1519, PAGE 299. 4. SUBJECT PROPERTY IS ZONED - RC. 5. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DIMENSIONS IN US     SURVEY FEET(UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED). 6. AREAS SHOWN WERE DETERMINED BY COORDINATE COMPUTATIONS. 7. SURVEY BASED ON EXISTING MARKERS FOUND AT SITE     AND DEED DESCRIPTION. 8. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONES "AE" AND "X" AREAS    AS PER F.E.M.A. F.I.R.M. COMMUNITY PANEL 3710551900K, EFFECTIVE 3710551900K, EFFECTIVE , EFFECTIVE    DATE 11/16/2018. 11/16/2018. . 9. THE PURPOSE OF THIS SURVEY IS TO CREATE A PLAT SUITABLE     FOR RECORDATION IN THE CABARRUS COUNTY LAND RECORDS IN     COMPLIANCE WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE 47-30     MAPPING REQUIREMENTS. 10. THIS IS A NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OF     LAND AND IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS OR RIGHTS OF    WAY OF RECORD.  11. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BASED ON NC STATE GRID DATUM     (NAD 83/2011). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF PLAT APPROVAL IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THIS MAP IS EXEMPT FROM  CITY OF CONCORD APPROVAL AS A SUBDIVISION PLAT AND  IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF CONCORD DEVELOPMENT  ORDINANCE REGULATIONS,           .                                         .                                          .                                . DATE                 DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT REVIEW OFFICER CERTIFICATE  STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF CABARRUS I,                                , REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,                                  , REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,   REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,  CERTIFY THAT THE MAP OR PLAT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATION IS AFFIXED MEETS  ALL STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDING.  DATE:             ,         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .             ,         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .                              .

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PERMANENT UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF THE PROPERTY OF CONCORD POINTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP an Ohio, Limited Partnership DEED BOOK 1519, PAGE 299; PIN: 5519-21-4980; REAL ID # 02-036-0044.30  CITY OF CONCORD, # 2 TOWNSHIP CABARRUS COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA     SCALE 1" = 50'    DATE: DEC. 02, 2020  PREPARED BY: DMM     CHECKED BY: JS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TEMPORARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WOOD LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-21-2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED ADDITIONAL PERMANENT AND T.C.E. AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TEMPORARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
03-30-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY AND ACCURACY STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, CABARRUS COUNTY I, DAVID M. MEDLIN, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS DRAWN  UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER  MY SUPERVISION BASED ON THE DEED DESCRIPTIONS, AS NOTED  HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF CLOSURE IS 1:10,000+; THAT THE  BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES  PLOTTED FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN THE DEEDS REFERENCED  HEREON AND THAT THIS MAP WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE  WITH GENERAL STATUTE 47-30, AS AMENDED. I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND AND DOES NOT CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, REGISTRATION NUMBER AND  SEAL THIS THE 30th DAY OF MARCH, A.D., 2021.                                               . DAVID M. MEDLIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NORTH CAROLINA REG. NO. L-4286

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT  635 ALFRED BROWN JR. COURT, SW  CONCORD, NC 28026-0308  704-920-5420   FAX 704-786-4521

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-4286



1 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING NEGOTIATED PURCHASE 
OR EMINENT DOMAIN TO ACQUIRE PROPERTY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Concord, North Carolina, hereby 
determines that it is necessary and in the public interest to acquire property interest 
identified and defined, as follows: 
 
Property Descriptions: 
30’ Wide Permanent Utility Easement: 
 
Lying and Being in Township Number Two (2), City of Concord, Cabarrus County, North 
Carolina and being a 30-foot Utility Easement Area, approximately 17,485 Square Feet 
or 0.401 Acres,” as shown on as shown on the “Easement Plat, Part of the Property of 
Concord Pointe Limited Partnership,” dated December 21, 2020 and revised March 30, 
2021 by the City of Concord Engineering Department as is shown on Exhibit A. 
 
Variable Width Temporary Construction Easements: 
Lying and Being in Township Number Two (2), City of Concord, Cabarrus County, North 
Carolina and being two (2) Variable Width Temporary Construction Easement Areas 
labeled as follows: (1) “Temporary Construction Easement Area, approximately 1,183 
square feet or 0.027 acres” and (2) Temporary Construction Easement Area, 
approximately 625 square feet or 0.014 acres as shown on the “Easement Plat, Part of 
the Property of Concord Pointe Limited Partnership,” dated December 21, 2020 and 
revised March 30, 2021 by the City of Concord Engineering Department as is shown on 
Exhibit A. 
 
Access Easement: 
Lying and being in Township Number Two (2), City of Concord, Cabarrus County, North 
Carolina and being a Variable Width Permanent Utility Access Easement Area, 
approximately 7,215 Square Fee or 0.166 Acres as shown on the “Easement Plat, Part 
of the Property of Concord Pointe Limited Partnership,” dated December 21, 2020 and 
revised March 30, 2021 by the City of Concord Engineering Department as is shown on 
Exhibit A. 
 

WHERAS, the parcel of property affected by the easements is PIN 5519-21-4980 
(Tax ID No. 02-036-0029.80), is currently owned by Concord Pointe Harmony Housing, 
Delaware Limited Liability Company, and is being acquired to construct and maintain 
new sanitary sewer utility lines; and  

 
 WHEREAS, representatives of the City of Concord are in negotiation with the 
above stated owners to acquire the above-described properties by negotiated 
conveyance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CONCORD, THAT: 
 
 The City of Concord will acquire by condemnation or negotiated conveyances for 
the purposes stated above the property and interest therein described above to the 
Resolution. 
 
 The City Attorney is authorized and directed to acquire by negotiated offer or, in 
the alternative, institute the necessary proceedings under Chapter 40A of the North 
Carolina General Statutes, to acquire the properties described above. 
 

 
Adopted this ________ day of _______________________, 2021. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

145



2 
 

 
 

       CITY COUNCIL 
ATTEST:      CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
 
By:        By: _____________________________ 
 Kim J. Deason, City Clerk    William “Bill” Dusch, Mayor 
 
 [SEAL] 

146



147



CABARRUS AVE W

CORBAN AVE SW

WHITE ST NW

POWDER ST SW

RAMDIN CT NW

GRACE AVE NW

CASCADE DR NW

PINE ST NW

KERR ST NW

YOUNG AVE SW

ANDREWS ST NW

VALLEY ST NW

POWDER ST NW

FR
AN

KL
IN 

AV
E N

W

PRIOR DR NW

EPWORTH ST NW

GOLD ST NW
GOLD ST SW DO

RL
AN

D 
AV

E 
SW

CROWELL DR SW

GUY AV
E NW

FENIX DR SW

ROBBINS ST SW

FLORA AVE NW
TR

AN
SP

OR
T P

L N
W

SYCAMORE AVE SW

BA
Y A

VE
 NW

ME
LR

OS
E D

R S
W

GLEN RAE ST SW

SKIPWITH ST SW

VEITOR AVE NW

HAWTHORNE ST SW

PECAN AVE SW

SCOTT ST SW

BAY
 CT N

W

CAMEO CT NW

CRANFORD PL SW

YOUNG CT SW

CABARRUS AVE W

ROBBINS ST SW

0 500 1,000250 Feet O 148



September 18, 2017 (Regular Meeting) 

o.p.tmm1 Pto,cdlGnw -lommutioo Aranm1 lnfarauhan 
Orl}ObJcd.,.O)Cd °'1!-0t,«rl'n,«I 

~Yl1 GL CoJ,, FYIUGLCodN 
Bo111I oCCouu1u;-aonn1 Fmuru1r P\11clu~ 001911 10.9.UI 00191 1HJ.9Jll 

lnfonn.u1on Tf'dmolo,i!)' S«\"ICI!~ 5r2l'VUl'lj PrOJKf OOJ911 1Mlj1 1 00191810.9311 

Intonn,mon TfChnolon• StrtlCts Mobllt Dt\ic'ts for Tax 0019ll10-93Jl 00191910-93-U 
Drp1nmf.nl 

informatioa T~·Smic~ Fiba npp-w wilh 1be Ciry of 00191110-~WOI 00191SI0-9JW0I ,_ .... 
lnfonniiuon Ttthnolof}'Stnictt Conu~LUI~ 00191810-9605 00191810.960) 

lnfamutton Tf'Cbnolo~• Seriites OHS B~ck,-q:, Cetl!!! 00191110-9JJl 0019111 0-PJJI 

lnfmtmcnire md As,e1 Mlffl·ei·PurCM;e 0019 1 9◄0.9S60 001919, 0,9160 
l~Lm.ii,me:u 

,r~n . I 

Shm!t J0!6ct11.tl1 Sutt C'rWWul Alitu Aul Gnsni 00192130.98'3 0019~110,9U} 

Publir'i:aftn• 
DtplUlmt'lu of Hunan St1i.ict"! IC luld Wt.l!m ScMnmJ OCH 9.Sfi l0.93!1 -! U).J 00193611MDJ.J IO. I 

Dqnmnm, o(R\111W1 Sen.ices Sc-~nning Eq1Uptllffll for Unh'ft"'11 0019l610-9l4)-JSJ- I 0019l610-9J-IJ.Jl)-I 
warbt 

·~, .... 

Accnml Oesaiphno 

Mtmr Offict: Equ1ptutnt ind 
F111uflue 
lmlpnf Elp,n,;e 

Mmor T«hnologyEquipmtnl 

T tl«omim1ni:carions 

Ccnmlwus 

EttthawS.m"1Ces 

£.quipmtn1 and Fumuurt 

~CMPOnm 

1u~,rui1upe11~ 

M!OOr T«httofon· Eq11ip111ent 

TOTAL 

C:ur;ton-
Omn-,1 Oo\ 'alUOffil 

Public Safery 
Hlmll11~n'lt'fl 
1 .. ~ 

\ 

' 

! 

' IS 

Page 3302 

AJJDstl Iu,tilfo,_ 

P,00000 Fumitl.lrP p\l'CNlr.t fOflfw: t\nl floor ('0Wnt1)Cf! roomw111no1 1r«n1"'by 
tMF\' 17 dndlti• U11e1,rcunttffl1obt- 1, . --,..t 

)0,00000 ";oilandtv,t.uccffllWl{lll. lnpn,jl'GI nu,u-w bl! c,xnplt1tdu.1 Jym 
FYIS. 

l l,000 00 BiTek applK-arion n·•~ nOf complttffl ~- Jnl}· bt and thmfure v.e didn"I 
wmu 10 pun:Mw lw.'\1eec Mf0tt !ht wltmrt w:i-. r~y Thi! pl.ui i~ 10 

d,plo)·., FYII 

J0,000 00 Ci1y of C<ffOl'd n·n belund an ~·ml projttr. md \\"Ht nai ~blt 10 gtt er.tr 
~itt11- - .i. bffMll>}uh: I. 

JS 000 00 Aa:t-b f'"'JK:t1 me !rill pmdmJ. We .:UP Qtln@'. Aa:eb :er.,ce; to mtp:rO\'f 

tbt- Aa:~l• 1 "lrtm. Atctb drl•Jtd the tdnte ciftbc •ofm'm' upi?W unnl 
Jww, \l'hkb ldl uo Nnt u1 f'Yl i to C'QlUPWtt tbt unm«r~n ra..l:~ sull 

""'""'~ 
l5 000 00 Ccmiplete rfflO\"Jt'°m to 1eioc,31e ~ OHS 911 cmto 

l0,60SI-O PO fot G~tnOO P!wn WO\\"tl w~ pw~ m FYI i . bu! llClt recovtdmul 
FYU TI11i PO w•~ o-."trlookfll dwwp , nd of yea: proc~. wiuch 
mncm1111uUy10U, open PO', 111d «inlf~ 101M ot1,· fr;.,:,J } t..V, 

'"0. fiDll.11,4 

lll ~l'6l ~~tn:.:!r:~/i:r;~~tdc=:-~t~:=:a~~nnwW 
(5CAAP) ln c«1jmtti.:m ,-, jth dr Bureau a( lmmi@ntiaJ:i and C'unow, 
Eniott~nl OCE> and Citi::ib1;hip and lnllWSJtbOO Scr\'ices, Drpmmtm 
of Hamtlmd S« un • (DHS} S.C'AAP pmidt-. t'tderal pa;intnu 10 m11N 
mil kialitin Wt 1ncurrrd ccnec:boni11 olfKf'I ul.uy cCMn for inwttnnn,: 
uudocummlffl cnwmaJ aUrm ,\1th l! lu,1 aua falally m rwo aww.tuwncr 
Con\ltUOU: for nobnons cf tli\1 ot Joc-,'11 Ltw • .md iDC'lrtrn ttd for ill W~t J 
t:Cll1,f('\11i \ 't days dunng!M r~.n!ptriod 

11071.65 
JQ,00000 Comp\ie:1e~JfC1"Cluld\\'t.lureframF'Yl 1. 

3-1,000 00 Eqwpmmt nttded to cunplelc' tht ;;witth back to tUU\<mal \\ul.ei 

! GOO.DO 
J◄ .a 61! •. ,9 

170,60i SJ 
ll l ,07J.6S 
6J,00000 

Sipurun: p;1ltt Mcniton, llUd 1c~ Pttd to bt ordcn:d_ rr:s. wu un.,b~ 
10 C.Ol np.lcic tlvi m F\"17 

(F-3 ) County Manager Transfer of Property to the City of Concord 

The Board of Commissioners had previously discussed the possible transfer 
of property to the City of Concord for the purpose of constructing a recreational 
facility . A letter from the city is attached requesting the property . In 
addition , staff and the Board discussed transferring a parcel off Transport 
Place in addition to the requested property since the Transport property may be 
used to connect bicycle and greenway facilities. Maps of both properties are 
attached . 

(This section intentionally left blank.) 

149



September 18, 2017 (Regular Meeting) Page 3303 

UPON MOTION by Vice Chairman Honeycutt , seconded by Commissioner Shue and 
unanimously carried, the Board approved the transfer of property to the City of 
Concord as shown on the attached maps including authorization for the County 
Manager to sign the transfer documents subject to review and revision by the 
County Attorney . 

(F-4) Finance - CIP Funding of Prime Farmland per the FY2018 Budget 

Note : This item was removed from the agenda to discuss at a later date. 

(F-5) Finance - Project Ordinance Update - Construction and Renovation Fund 

Per the Construction and Renovation Project Ordinance Section II . B. 2 ., 
the County Manager may transfer amounts up to $500 , 000 between functions within 
the same fund . This authority allows the Manager to approve a budget amendment 
without Board action . During August 2017 , a budget amendment was prepared by 
staff and approved by the County Manager transferring $475.68 from the 
Construction and Renovation available funds to the Senior Center Parking Lot 
budget. The $475 . 68 represents closing costs for the purchase of land located 
at the Concord Senior Center. For administrative purposes , the Project Ordinance 
details have been updated for this transfer of funds and is included for the 
Chairman of the County Commissioner ' s signature . 

UPON MOTION by Vice Chairman Honeycutt , seconded by Commissioner Shue and 
unanimously carried, the Board approved the revised Project Ordinance for the 
Construction and Renovation Fund and authorized the Chairman to sign the 
ordinance . 

Date : 8/28/2017 Amount : $475 . 68 
Dept. Head: Susan Fearrington (prepared by staff) Department : 343 Construction & Renovation Fund 
D Internal Transfer Within Department~ Transfer Between Departments/Funds D Supplemental Request 

Purpose : Move funds from Available to the ALP Parking Lot project in the Construction & Renovation 
Fund. 

Account Number Account Name Approved Budget Inc Amount Dec Amount Revised Budget 

34360000-6921-AVAIL Cont'd from CRF $80,638.10 $475.68 $80,162.42 

34368145-6921-PLot Cont'd from CRF ALP $0.00 $475.68 $475 . 68 

34390000-9830-AVAIL Other Improvements $80,638.10 $475 . 68 $80,162.42 

34398145-9830-PLot Other Improvements ALP $64,000 . 00 $475.68 $64,475.68 

150



Exhibit A

(Transport Place Property)

Beginning at an iron stake in the center of the branch running between the plant of the Cannon
Manufacturing Co., and the Kerr Bleachery to Irish Buffalo Creek, said iron stake being a new corner on
the line of Morris Bros. property and runs thence with Morris Brothers line S. 32 E. 344 feet to an iron
stake, thence with the lines of F.C. Niblock and the Texas Oil Company S. 23 ¾ E. 373.5 feet to an iron
stake, A. B. Pounds' corner; thence with Pounds' line and it prolonged S. 9 ½ E. 447 feet to an iron stake,
a new corner on the old line; thence with the old line S. 55 ¾ W. 389 feet to an iron stake on the east
bank of Irish Buffalo Creek, and old corner; thence up the creek N. 34 ½ W. 938 feet to old corner:
thence N. 32 ½ W.38 feet to a stake on east bank of creek; thence up the creek N. 29 ½ W. 79 feet to an
iron stake in the center of the said creek and in the center of the branch thence up the branch as it
meanders N. 52 ½ E. 175 feet; thence N. 37E.63 feet; thence N. 49 ¾ E. 145.5 feet; thence N. 54 E.
251.5 feet to the beginning, containing 13.68 acres.

The said parties of the first part reserve, however, a right of way through this property, said
right of way to remain theirs absolutely and may be disposed of by them at any time, its description
being as follows:

Beginning at iron stake, A.B. Pounds and Texas Oil Co., corner and runs thence N. 29 ¼ W. 276
feet to a stake in edge of a ditch on the North side of the present right of way; thence N. 49 W. 133.5
feet to a telephone pole; thence N. 56 ½ W. 119 feet to a telephone post; thence N. 62 W. 200 feet to an
iron stake in the center of the branch, a new corner on J. L. Brown's line; thence with the said Brown's
line and in the center of the branch S. 54 W.16.5 feet to an iron stake a new corner in the center of the
branch and on the said Brown's line; thence S. 62 E. passing an iron stake at seven feet set on the bank
of the branch, said stake having a bearing of S. 62 W. 51 feet from a sycamore tree, standing on the east
side the east side of said right of way 206 feet to a stake; thence S. 56 ½ E. 119.8 feet to an iron stake;
thence S. 49 E. 131 feet to a stake on the bank of the ditch; thence S. 29 ¼ E. 269 feet to a stake
opposite A. B. Pounds' corner; thence N. 60 % E. 4 feet to a stake; thence parallel within 12 feet of A. B.
Pounds' line S. 9 ½ E. 449 feet to an iron stake in the line of the Brown Power House, lot; thence with
the Power House line N. 55 ¾ E. 12.4 feet to an iron stake; thence N. 9 ½ W. 447 feet to the Beginning,
the intention of this description is to reserve a right of way across the said property from the entrance at
the Peerless Brick Yards across the property sixteen feet in width to a point at A. B. Pounds' line; thence
with A. B. Pounds' line, a right of way twelve feet wide, along a parallel to his line to a point where it
intersects with the line of the Brown Power House lot.

All rights in this right of way owned or possessed by the granter in this deed are transferred to
the grantee with this deed.

151



Excise Tax 0.00 Recording Time, Book and Page

Tax Lot No. Parcel Identifier No. 5620459469
Verified by County on the day of
by

Mail after recording to Valerie Kolczynski, P.O. Box 308 Concord, NC 28026-0308
..... ·······--······

This instrument was prepared by RichardM. Koch, Cabarrus County Attorney
Brief description for the Index 385 Transport Place, Concord

NORTH CAROLINA SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

THIS DEED made this day of September

GRANTOR

CABARRUS COUNTY (a body politic and political
subdivision of the State of North Carolina)

,2021 ,by and between

GRANTEE

CITY OF CONCORD (a North Carolina municipal corporation)
Post Office Box 308
Concord, North Carolina 28026-0308

Enter in appropriate block for each party: name, address, and, if appropriate, character of entity, e.q. corporation or partnership.

The designation Granter and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs, successors, and assigns, and
shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as required by context.

WITNESSETH, that the Granter, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and convey unto the Grantee in fee simple, all that

certain lot or parcel of land situated in the City of Concord Township,
Cabarrus County, North Carolina and more particularly described as follows.

See Exhibit A, attached.

152



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and al privileges and appurtenances thereto belonging to the
Grantee in fee simple.
And the Granter covenants with the Grantee, that Granter has done nothing to impair such title as Granter received, and
Granter will warrant and defend the title against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, under or through Granter,
except for the exceptions herein with stated.
Title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions:

All easements, rights of way andrestrictions of record.

A map showing the above described property is recorded in Plat Book page

The property hereinabove described was also conveyed by instrument recorded in Book 102, Page 52.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set his hand and seal, or if corporate, has caused this instrument to be signed in its
corporate name by its duly authorized officers and its seal to be hereunto affixed by authority of its Board of Directors, the day and year first
above written.

County Manager"3Rook. tto............. -· (lw..... . ·········· ······· _____:,_
Clerk to the Board (Corporate Seal)··---- ..

B

····························~·gfy}":,

» 1..... ·•·· ····························..,.,.···• .. .,·-·· ...

>-
vvoNTY z
r rt bksr·~ ················ z

x-

3
OJ
LI
0
:::J

(SEAL)

( SEAL)

(SEAL)

(SEAL)

County.NORTH CAROLINA,
I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that

Grantor,
~ personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument. Witness my
c

xc

SEAL-STAMP

g9, hand and official stamp or seal, this day of
::,

My commission expires: . Notary Public

NORTH cARou. (',baurtu>county
I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that l-area -ke{

Clerk to the-------6 he is

, and that by authority dulyCabarrus County
personally came before me this day and acknowledged that

x
C

5 given and as the act of the Board, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its County Manager
U

seaewan is coroorate sear and ates.tea »y Lo«top»per as ts clerk to U%,99gd
wtess my hand and official stamp or seal, this ) day orJy cptebes , 2021
My commission expires: Q~- \1_: io~~--- ~~~ Notary Public

The foregoing Certificate(s) of

SEA-g(Rn,,,
Le '·'jL/. 9,''8'....... 9,v... ·,o·' '.o<

·OTA5,+zs; i??' r: _
2>io, i. s<2:.VO.gs.%2.... ·s
,0·., .·,
•y,···,,«'/,/8 coU!6°
'nun'

is/are certified to be correct. This instrument and this certificate are duly registered at the date and time and in the Book and Page shown on the
first page hereof.

REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR COUNTY

By Deputy/Assistant - Register of Deeds

153



  

 

 
ORD.  #  

 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

Parks & Recreation Projects-Irish Buffalo Creek Greenway 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina that pursuant to Section 13.2 
 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following project ordinance is hereby 
 adopted/amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The projects authorized are the projects included for the Irish Buffalo Creek Greenway. 
 
SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the implementation and amendments 

of the projects within the terms of the plans and specifications for the projects. 
 
 SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City of Concord for the 

completion of the projects: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease) 
 Increase 

420-4501280 
420-4501280 Transfer from P&R Reserve $985,561 $1,126,816 $141,255 
     
    $141,255 

 
SECTION 4. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 
Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease) 
 Increase 

8300-5811018 
8300-5811018 

 
McEachern-Hospital Phase 

 
$0 

 
$141,255 

 
$141,255 

 Total    $141,255 
 
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance Department of the City of Concord in 

such manner as (1) to provide all information required by the project agreement and other agreements executed or to 
be executed with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this capital projects ordinance shall be filed with 
the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for direction in carrying out this project. 

 
 SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of this project in accordance 

with the existing City policy, and shall also report to the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 14th day October, 2021. 
        
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA  
    
                                                                               ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________  ______________________________ 
              Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

154



ORD.   

 

PARKS & CAPITAL RESERVE FUND ORDINANCE  
AMENDED 

 
  

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 18-22 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North 
Carolina, the following Capital Reserve Fund ordinance is hereby amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The purpose authorized is to accumulate funds for future capital 
projects and capital outlay.  Funds will be accumulated until such time the City 
Council designates the funds for projects or capital outlay.  These funds may only be 
designated for projects that are listed in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan or 
capital outlay approved in the City’s operating budget ordinance.  The General Fund 
will serve as the funding source for the Capital Reserve Fund upon City Council 
approval and withdrawals must be approved by City Council through an ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the project/projects within the terms of the plans 
and specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues & expenditures are anticipated to be 

available to the City of Concord for this fund: 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

 
8100-5987000 
8100-5987000 

 
8100-5811082 
8100-5811082 
 

 

 
Transfer to Project 
Fund 
 
 
Future Projects 
 
 

 
$762,705 

 
 
 

$2,002,977 
 
 

 
$903,960 

 
 
 

$1,861,722 
 

 

 
$141,255 

 
 
 

$(141,255) 
 

 
 

SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the capital reserve fund and (2) to comply with the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this capital reserve 
fund amendments/adoption shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, 
and City Clerk for direction in carrying out the purpose of this fund. 
 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this fund in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the City 
Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 
14th day of October, 2021.  

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

155



156



157



158



159



160



161



LIN
CO

LN
 ST

 SW

GEORGIA ST SW

MELROSE DR SW

OLD CHARLOTTE RD SW

SUNDERLA
ND RD SW

CROWEL
L D

R SW

MALVERN DR SW

SWINK ST SW
SA

LE
M 

ST
 SW

BOOKER DR SW

HILL
TO

P AVE SW

RONE AVE SW

POWDER ST SW

ROBBINS ST SW

CABARRUS AVE W

RAMDIN CT NW

MEADOWVIEW AVE SW

PARKVIEW AVE SW

FO
X S

T S
W

LOGAN AVE SW

FAIRVIEW AVE SW

HAWTHORNE ST SW

CORBAN AVE SW

PENROD DR SW

YOUNG AVE SWCASCADE DR NW

SHANNON DR SW

SYCAMORE AVE SW

FERN AVE SW

ALBERTA CT SW

LAWINGS DR SW

LIBERTY DR SW

BOST AVE SW

HIGH AVE SW

GLEN RAE ST SW

KL
UT

TZ
 C

T S
W

CYPRESS ST SW
PH

AR
R 

DR
 SW

GR
IFF

IN
 C

IR
 SW

MELCHOR CT SW

CARVER AVE SW

HAROLD GOODMAN CIR SW

WHITMIRE LN SW

0 500 1,000250 Feet

O

162



0 250 500125 Feet

O

163



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Fee Proposal for Construction 
Materials Testing and Special 
Inspections 
 
 

Concord Electric Operations Center 
505 Alfred Brown Jr. Court SW 

Concor, North Carolina 
 

 

 
September 22, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 

Stewart 
9801-E Southern Pine Blvd, Charlotte, NC 28273 
o:  704/334/7925 

 

164



 
 

 

Charlotte – Geotech/CMT Lab  9801-E Southern Pine Blvd. 

 704.334.7925   Charlotte, NC 28273

   

 
 

           

 

 

 

September 22, 2021 

 

City of Concord 

Scott Chunn, Deputy Director of Electric Systems 

P.O. Box 308 

Concord, NC 28026 

 

Re: Concord Electric Operations Center - Sitework 

 505 Alfred Brown Jr. Court SW 

Concord, North Carolina 

Construction Materials Testing and Special Inspections Fee Proposal 

 

Dear Scott, 

 

Stewart is pleased to provide you with this proposal for Construction Materials Testing (CMT) and Special 

Inspections (SI) during the sitework phase for the above-mentioned project. Stewart has enjoyed working with 

your team on past projects and we now hope to have the opportunity to provide our services to the City of 

Concord again on this project. Stewart has the capacity, capability, and experience to perform the services 

necessary to make this a quality project for the City of Concord. 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

 

The project consists of the construction of the new Concord Electric Operations Center located in Concord, NC. 

The planned development consists of a 1-story, approximately 47,000± square foot office building and an 

approximately 47,000± square foot truck canopy. The project will also include a stormwater pond, site utilities, 

concrete and/or asphalt-paved parking lots, segmental block retaining walls, and gravel laydown yards. 

 

Our understanding of the project is based upon the following: 

• Structural Design Development drawings prepared by LHC Structural Engineers, dated 7/28/2021; 

• Civil Early Site Package drawings prepared by Stewart, dated 7/28/2021; 

• Architectural Design Development drawings prepared by sfL+a Architects, dated 7/28/2021; 

• Geotechnical Engineering Report prepared by Stewart, dated 5/24/2021; and 

• Geotechnical Addendum No. 1 prepared by Stewart, dated 8/12/2021. 

 

FIRM INFORMATION 

 

Stewart’s Geotechnical & Construction Services group is comprised of three primary services: Special 

Inspections, Construction Materials Testing (CMT), and Geotechnical Engineering. Our unique talents and 

experience stemming from our cross-collaborative approach sets Stewart apart from our competition. 

 

When North Carolina adopted the International Building Code (IBC) in 2002, Stewart established a department 

solely dedicated to providing Special Inspections (SI) referenced in Chapter 17 of the Code. Because of Stewart’s 

expertise in the field, the firm was asked by the State Construction Office (SCO) to serve on the task force that 

developed the first special inspections guidelines for the state. Stewart’s Special Inspections program is 

specifically designed to help meet those mandates and thereby enhance efforts to alleviate structural failures 

resulting from improper construction. We pride ourselves on making sure that all of our structural inspectors are 

thoroughly trained and properly certified by the International Code Council (ICC) and/or other governing body. 

 

165



 

Page 2 of 10 

In 2004, Stewart began providing services for the SCDOT in Gaffney, South Carolina. After years of success with 

our Gaffney operations, which included a testing laboratory, Stewart decided to move the Construction Materials 

Testing (CMT) operations to the Triangle in 2008, and to Charlotte in 2017 in an effort to round out our 

construction services group. Our testing and inspections personnel are well-trained and experienced in many 

different types of construction: from multi-story structures to bridges and roadways. 

 

Stewart’s CMT laboratory is located just minutes from downtown Charlotte at 9801-E Southern Pine Blvd. At this 

facility, we perform the testing on soil, aggregate, concrete, grout, mortar, asphalt, sprayed fire-resistive 

materials and other construction materials. Our laboratory is routinely inspected by AASHTO’s Materials 

Reference Laboratory (AMRL) and Cement and Concrete Reference Laboratory (CCRL) and maintains AASHTO R-

18 certification. The construction materials testing and special inspection services for this project will 

be staffed by personnel working from our Charlotte laboratory. 

 

EFFECTIVE PROJECT MANAGEMENT, STAFFING, AND SCHEDULING 

 

Stewart is committed to providing quality services to this project as well as being a contributing team member. 

Our team consists of construction administrators, geotechnical/professional engineers, special inspectors, welding 

inspectors, and engineering technicians with a wealth of knowledge and experience. Each member of our team is 

experienced in both horizontal and vertical construction and the associated testing/inspection protocols. We 

commit that the personnel serving you will hold the appropriate NCBELS, NCDOT, ACI, ICC, AWS, and 

PTI certifications relevant to the subject work. 

 

The proposed testing/inspection services for this project will be managed by Justin B. Nance, PE of Stewart. 

Justin has visited the proposed project site to become familiar with the site conditions, as well as, assist in the 

completion of Stewart’s Geotechnical Engineering services during the initial subsurface exploration, and 

supplemental test pit explorations. Justin will serve as the single point of contact for testing and inspections 

during construction. Justin will coordinate our services with the contractor’s representative(s) and schedule the 

appropriate field staff as necessary. Don Brown, PE will assist Justin as needs as it relates to the earthwork and 

soil testing. Having a senior geotechnical engineer such as Don readily available will enable swift decisions to be 

made if challenging soil conditions are encountered. In fact, Don is the Geotechnical Engineer-of-Record for 

the project. 

 
To be responsive and efficient, proper scheduling of testing/inspection services will be important. Therefore, at 

the onset of construction Justin will sit down with the contractor to discuss the forecasted testing/inspections and 

review scheduling protocol. This can be done in the preconstruction meeting so that the Owner, and any 

subcontractors or trades, can also be made aware of scheduling requirements. We will also take this time to 

discuss our planned number of site visits and the importance of efficient scheduling in maintaining our 

testing/inspection budget. 

 

For daily inspections and tests, Stewart will ask that the contractor email in a request for services by 3 p.m. on 

the day prior to the need. For weekend or holiday work, we request at least 48 hours’ notice. We understand that 

unforeseen situations occur in construction, so we stay flexible to cover “emergency” tests or inspection when 

needed. 

 

CLOSE PROJECT OVERSIGHT 

 

Justin will provide daily directives for our field staff and will handle issues that arise in the field. Justin will keep 

in close communication with the contractor’s representative, Owner, and appropriate design team members. 

Justin will also attend construction progress meetings and make any necessary site visits to observe ongoing 

work firsthand. He will also review our inspectors’ daily field reports and test data, as discussed in the next 

section, to stay abreast of the project progression. 

166



 

Page 3 of 10 

 
MOBILE REPORTING 

 

One of the most important duties of an inspector responsible for overseeing project activity is clear and concise 

documentation (reporting). The daily activities of both the contractor and inspector are critical to the project’s 

overall success and thus the inspector’s proper reporting of construction activities is invaluable. Quality reporting 

is important when it comes to progress tracking, pay application approval, and even dispute resolution should it 

be necessary.  

 

Stewart utilizes a mobile reporting system called Metafield that allows our field personnel to log all tests, 

inspections, and observations from their mobile device. This system enables the inspector to submit typed daily 

field reports to approved recipients at the end of the workday with the touch of a button – no more illegible, 

hand-written reports. This method of mobile reporting also reduces office administrative time, resulting in direct 

cost savings to our client. 

 

During daily report preparation, we will also log re-inspection time as well as excessive standby and wasted time 

due to late (on-site) cancellation of services. This allows us to easily determine the amount of time that the 

Owner may be able to back charge the subcontractor (at their discretion). 

 

The Metafield system stores our field and laboratory information in a secure cloud-based database that can be 

accessed by Stewart field and office staff at any time from any location that has an internet connection available. 

This accessibility proves helpful when a new or assisting field inspector visits the site and he/she can review past 

test results and also follow-up on a previous visit’s failed tests or discrepancies. Metafield automatically compiles 

a real-time log of all discrepancies reported from the field.  

 

The system’s desktop “dashboard” allows management to closely monitor testing/inspection results and field 

activities from their office computer or mobile device instantly. This alleviates the need to wait for reports to 

come into the office if critical data needs to be reviewed. 

 

 

Another important aspect of our mobile reporting system is the inherent quality control. Every report that is 

logged by field personnel is queued in the project manager’s desktop dashboard. Metafield requires the project 

manager to read and approve each report before it can be finalized for delivery. This process adds an invaluable 

level of review.  

 

Managers’ Dashboard Interface Field Users’ Mobile Interface 

167



 

Page 4 of 10 

Justin will distribute daily reports, non-conformance logs, photographs, and any other relevant information to 

approved project team members within one week of the respective work date. The contractor and/or their 

subcontractors will be notified immediately of any non-conforming items observed during inspections. Please 

note that we are flexible with reporting and frequency can be increased or decreased depending on your and/or 

the design team’s needs. Our standard is to provide these reports in Adobe Portable Document Format (PDF), 

unless otherwise requested. 

 
PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The proposed scope of services will include Special Inspections and conventional Construction Materials Testing 

unless otherwise noted below. The anticipated scope included within is based on our experience with projects of 

similar size and complexity, and the documents previously mentioned in the Project Understanding section of this 

proposal. Special Inspections are anticipated for soils and retaining walls. Materials testing and observations are 

anticipated for soils/retaining walls, and shallow foundations. The list below identifies the inspection and testing 

tasks included in our expected scope of services. 

 

Soils/Foundations 

 

Based on our understanding, testing & inspection of soils are anticipated for various aspects of the project 

including, but not limited to, subgrade/foundation evaluations, retaining wall construction, fill/backfill placement, 

utility/storm drainage installation, etc. Based on information provided by Metcon, we have estimated that an 

inspector will be required full-time over a four-month period between October 2021 and January 2022. Work is 

anticipated to occur six days per week (Monday through Saturday). We have estimated that sitework will require 

an inspector and/or technician for 96 full days for sitework, with overtime hours required for 11 of the 96 days 

related to work on Saturdays. We have estimated an additional 30 full days for foundation evaluations for 

structures. This task includes: 

 

▪ Laboratory testing of fill/backfill materials (four standard proctors and soil classifications estimated) 

▪ Verify proper fill material placement 

▪ Field tests for soil and aggregate density/compaction 

▪ Subgrade evaluations via proofrolling prior to the placement of ABC stone and/or soil fill materials 

▪ Quantification of unsuitable materials, if applicable 

▪ Shallow foundation bearing evaluations via Dynamic Cone Penetrometer (DCP) testing 

▪ Retaining wall construction observations for conformance to approved construction documents 

▪ Verification of design parameters 

▪ Verification of block and geogrid type 

▪ Verification of geogrid placement, length, and orientation 

▪ Foundation bearing evaluations 

▪ Monitor and test retaining wall backfill for density/compaction 

 

Concrete Construction 

 

Testing & inspection of cast-in-place concrete is anticipated for new foundations and slabs-on-grade for 

structures, and concrete pavement. We have assumed that structural cast-in-place concrete work will require a 

total of 30 full days and 10, 10-hour days on-site for structural concrete operations. We have estimated 10 full 

days for additional support for slabs-on-grade, and 10 full days for concrete pavement placements. This task 

includes: 

 

▪ Periodic inspection of formwork for shape, location and dimensions for structural members 

▪ Periodic inspection of steel reinforcement for size, length, quantity, spacing, and placement 

168



 

Page 5 of 10 

▪ Collect approved mix designs and verify appropriate mix is used on-site 

▪ Continuously monitor structural cast-in-place concrete placements per IBC Chapter 17 

▪ Periodic inspections of curing techniques 

▪ Periodic inspections of cold and hot weather concreting techniques 

▪ Sampling of fresh concrete and field testing (slump, air content, unit weight, and temp.) 

▪ Preparation of concrete strength test specimen (120 sets of five cylinders) 

▪ Laboratory compressive strength testing 

▪ Pick-up of concrete specimen after initial site cure 

 

Masonry Construction 
 

Testing & inspection of structural masonry is anticipated for new CMU foundation (below grade) and bearing 

walls. We have estimated 30 half days on-site related to masonry construction. This task includes: 

 

▪ Verify proportions of site prepared mortar conform to contract documents 

▪ Collect approved mix design for grout and verify it conforms to contract documents 

▪ Periodic inspection of construction mortar joints 

▪ Verification of size and location of structural elements 

▪ Verification of size, grade, placement, and lap lengths of reinforcement and connection of masonry to 

structural frame 

▪ Inspection of embeds set in masonry walls 

▪ Inspection of grout spaces to ensure they are clean and free of debris 

▪ Continuous observation of the placement of CMU grout/block fill per IBC Chapter 17 

▪ Verification of protection techniques 

▪ Preparation grout strength test specimens (10 set of four prisms) 

▪ Laboratory compressive strength testing 

 

Steel Construction 

 

We have assumed 15 half days on-site of periodic inspections relating to the structural steel erection and precast 

hollow core plank connections. We have assumed that the steel fabricator will hold the appropriate certification, 

therefore, exempting the requirement for a fabrication shop inspection. This is task includes: 

  

▪ Collect fabricator’s AISC certificate 

▪ Periodic inspection of steel framing joints to confirm member sizes and connections per contract 

documents 

▪ Periodic inspection of high-strength bolts and connections 

▪ Collect material data sheets and Certificate of Compliance for A325 and A490 bolts, nuts, and washers 

▪ Visual inspection of single pass fillet welds 5/16-inch in size and less 

▪ Collect certificate of compliance from fabricator at completion of fabrication. 

 

Asphalt Pavement 

We have estimated that asphalt placement will require six full days of observation (three for the binder course, 

three for the surface course), and one full day to drill and collect asphalt core samples. This task includes: 

 

▪ Monitor asphalt placements and verified approved mix designs are placed 

▪ Monitor and record asphalt material temperatures and tonnage 

▪ Collect asphalt core samples 

▪ Perform laboratory density testing and thickness measurements of core samples (estimated 12 cores) 

 

169



 

Page 6 of 10 

Project Management and Administrative 
A total of 170 hours has been estimated for daily project management responsibilities; 30 hours has been 

estimated for Special Inspector-of-Record (NC PE) report reviews, recommendations, and SI final letters, and a 

total of 3 hours has been estimated for administrative responsibilities. This task includes: 

 

▪ Project set-up and close-out 

▪ Attend/participate in the Special Inspection pre-construction/project kick-off meeting 

▪ Review and report preparation of daily field reports, test results, and non-conformance items for 

distribution to the approved project team 

▪ Sealed SI final letters (North Carolina PE) for project close-out documentation 

 

Exclusions 
Please note that the following items are specifically excluded from our fee; however, if so needed, Stewart can 

provide a cost estimate for these non-covered services. 

 

▪ Special Inspections related to vertical construction of building structures, and associated foundations 

▪ Inspection of welded reinforcing steel 

▪ Fabrication shop inspection(s) 

▪ Overtime, weekend, and/or holiday work, unless otherwise noted 

▪ Re-inspection of non-conformant items 

▪ Sampling and testing of concrete for sidewalks and curb & gutter 

▪ Observation and testing of concrete and/or asphalt pavements 

 

FEE 

 

Based on the durations/visits estimated for the individual testing tasks, we recommend a budget of $160,000. 

You will find a breakdown of this estimated budget below. Please note that our services will be based on a time 

and material basis, so the actual fee may vary up or down depending on the contractor’s needs. However, we 

plan to discuss our scope and planned efficiencies with contractor to help us to stay on budget. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

170



 

Page 7 of 10 

AUTHORIZATION 

 

If this proposal and the attached Conditions of Agreement are acceptable to you, please sign below as notice to 

proceed and return one copy of this proposal in its entirety to our office.  We will proceed with the work after 

receipt of authorization. Should you have any questions relative to this submittal, please feel free to contact the 

undersigned at your convenience.  

 
Respectfully, 

STEWART 

 

 

 

Justin B. Nance, PE        

Manager of Testing & Inspections     

Associate Vice President      

    

 

PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE: 

 

AGREED TO, THIS ____ DAY OF ________________ , 2021 

BY (please print): __________________________________________ 

TITLE: __________________________________________ 

COMPANY: __________________________________________ 

SIGNATURE: __________________________________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

171



 

Page 8 of 10 

Stewart 
Conditions of the Agreement 

 
 
 
1.0 Payments on Account 
 

1.1 Invoices for Stewart’s services shall be submitted, at Stewart’s option, either upon completion of any 
phase of service or on a monthly basis.  Invoices shall be payable when rendered and shall be 

considered PAST DUE if not paid within 30 days after the invoice date. 
 
1.2 Any inquiry or questions concerning the substance or content of an invoice shall be made to Stewart 

in writing within 10 days of receipt of the invoice.  A failure to notify Stewart within this period shall 

constitute an acknowledgment that the service has been provided and is correct. 
  

2.0 Late Payments 
 

2.1 A service charge will be charged at the rate of 1.5% (18% annual percentage rate) per month or the 
maximum allowable by law on the then outstanding balance of PAST DUE accounts.  In the event any 
portion of an account remains unpaid 90 days after billing, the Client shall pay all costs of collection, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

 

2.2 In the event that any portion of an account remains unpaid 30 days after billing, Stewart may, without 
waiving any claim or right against the Client, and without liability whatsoever to the Client, suspend or 
terminate the performance of all services. 

 
3.0 Insurance 
 

3.1 Stewart shall secure and endeavor to maintain professional liability insurance and commercial general 

liability insurance to protect Stewart from claims for negligence, bodily, injury, death or property 
damage which may arise out of the performance of Stewart’s services under this Agreement, and from 
claims under the Worker’s Compensation Acts.  Stewart shall, if requested in writing, issue certificates 
confirming such insurance to the Client. 
 

3.2 The Client and Stewart waive all rights against each other and against the contractors, consultants, 

agents and employees of the other for damages, but only to the extent covered by any property or 
other insurance. The Client and Stewart shall each require similar waivers from their contractors, 
consultants and agents. 

 
4.0 Standard of Care 
 

4.1 The standard of care for all professional services performed or furnished by Stewart under this 

Agreement will be the skill and care used by members of Stewart’s profession practicing under similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.  Stewart makes no warranties, express or 
implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with Stewart’s services. 

 
 
5.0       Indemnifications 
 

5.1 The Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Stewart and all of its     personnel, from and against 
liabilities, damages, losses and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) to the extent they are 
caused by the negligent performance of the Client in performance of its services under this Agreement, 
subject to the provisions in the paragraph below on Risk Allocation. 

 
5.2 Stewart shall indemnify and hold harmless the Client and its personnel from and against liabilities, 

damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) to the extent they are caused 

by the negligent performance of Stewart in performance of its services under this Agreement, subject 
to the provisions in the paragraph below on Risk Allocation. 

 

172



 

Page 9 of 10 

5.3 The Client shall indemnify & hold harmless Stewart and all of its personnel from and against 
liabilities, damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) arising from the 

presence, discharge, release, or escape of asbestos, hazardous waste, or other contaminants at the 
site. 

 
5.4 Neither the Client nor Stewart shall be liable to the other or shall make any claim for any incidental, 

indirect or consequential damages arising out of, or connected in any way to the Project or this 
Agreement. This mutual waiver includes, but is not limited to, damages related to loss of use, loss of 

profits, loss of income, loss of reputation, unrealized saving or diminution of property value and shall 
apply to any cause of action including negligence, strict liability, breach of contract and breach of 
warranty. 

 
5.4 Sub-Consultant(s) shall indemnify and hold harmless Stewart and Client from and against liabilities, 

losses, damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) to the extent they are caused 
by the negligent performance of Sub-Consultant or any person or organization for whom the Sub-

Consultant is legally liable. 
 
 
6.0       Risk Allocation 

 
6.1 In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the Project to both the Client and Stewart, 

the risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
Stewart’s total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages or claim 
expenses rising out of this Agreement, from any cause or causes, shall not exceed the amount of 
$250,000.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, Stewart’s negligence, errors, omissions, strict 
liability, breach of contract or breach of warranty. 

 
 

7.0       Reuse of Documents 
 

7.1 All documents including calculations, computer files, drawings, and specifications prepared by Stewart 
pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of professional service intended for the one-time use in 
construction of this project.  They are and shall remain the property of Stewart. Any reuse without 
written approval or adaptation by Stewart is prohibited. 

 

8.0       Opinion of Probable Construction Costs 
 

8.1 Stewart’s opinion of probable construction costs, if rendered as a service under this Agreement, is 
based on assumed labor costs and approximate quantities of material and equipment, and therefore is 
of a conditional character.  Stewart cannot guarantee the cost of work to be performed by others since 
market or bidding conditions can change at any time and changes in the scope or quality of the Project 

may affect estimates. 

 
9.0 Construction Phase Services 
 

9.1 If this Agreement provides for any construction phase services by Stewart, it is understood that the 
Contractor, not Stewart, is responsible for the construction of the project, and that Stewart is not 
responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor or material supplier; for safety 

precautions, programs or enforcement; or for construction means, construction costs, construction 
schedule, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures employed by the Contractor. 

 
10.0 Mediation 
 

10.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be 
subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to 

or is the subject of a lien arising out of the Stewart’s services, Stewart may proceed in accordance 

with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter 
by mediation or by binding dispute resolution. 

 

173



 

Page 10 of 10 

10.2 The Client and Stewart shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question 
between them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be in 

accordance with the North Carolina Rules Implementing Statewide Mediated Settlement Conferences 
in Superior Court Civil Actions currently in effect and administered by counsel for the parties. A 
request for mediation shall be made in writing and delivered to the other party to the Agreement. 
The request may be made concurrently with the filing of a complaint or other appropriate demand 
for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding 
dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days 
from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. 

If an arbitration proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed 
to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

 
10.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in 

Raleigh, North Carolina, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in 
mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

 
 
10.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 10.0, the method 

of binding dispute resolution shall be the following:  
(Check the appropriate box. If the Client and Stewart do not select a method of binding dispute 
resolution below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method 
other than litigation, the dispute will be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction.) 

 
[ «  » ]   Arbitration pursuant to Section 10.3 of this Agreement 
 
[ «  » ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 
 
[ «  » ]   Other (Specify) 

 

11.0 Termination of Contract 
 

11.1 Client may terminate this Agreement with seven days prior written notice to Stewart for 
convenience or cause. Stewart may terminate this Agreement for cause with seven days prior 
written notice to Client. Failure of Client to make payments when due shall be cause for suspension 
of services or, ultimately, termination, unless and until Stewart has been paid in full all amounts due 

for services, expenses and other related charges. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

174



BID TABULATION
Steel Transmission Poles &

Three-phase Goab Switch with Miscellaneous Hardware

City of Concord Date: 10:00 AM, September 23, 2021
Concord, North Carolina Bid No. 2505

Bidder _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Schedule I, TOTAL $ $ $ $ $

Delivery _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________
Manufacturer _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Schedule II, TOTAL $ $ $ $ $

                                                                                          Meyer                           Summit                           CHM
           Robn                             Klute                           Utility Str.                      Utility Str.                    Industries

   455,800.00                    452,963.95                     542,114.00                     453,628.00                    331,855.06

14-16 Wks.                      20 Weeks                      23 Week                        May 2022                      20 Weeks
    Rohn                             Klute                               Meyer                           Summit                           CHM

      N/A                                 N/A                                 N/A                                N/A                                N/A

175



BID TABULATION
Steel Transmission Poles &

Three-phase Goab Switch with Miscellaneous Hardware

City of Concord Date: 10:00 AM, September 23, 2021
Concord, North Carolina Bid No. 2505

Bidder _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Schedule I, TOTAL $ $ $ $ $

Delivery _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________
Manufacturer _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Schedule II, TOTAL $ $ $ $ $

       WESCO                         Distran                        MD Henry

     404,142.90                        N/A                             454,670.00

    20 Weeks                           N/A                          28-30 Wks.
    Grid Str.                             N/A                          MD Henry

     162,831.02                     178,820.00                     178,848.00

176



177



178



TALBERT, BRIGHT & ELLINGTON
Engineering & Planning Consultants

3525 Whitehall Park Drive, Suite #210  •  Charlotte, NC 28273  •  Tel: 704.426.6070
Charlotte, NC  •  Columbia, SC  •  Atlanta, GA

October 4, 2021

Mr. Dirk Vanderleest, CM
Aviation Director
Concord-Padgett Regional Airport
9000 Aviation Boulevard
Concord, NC 28027

   Re: Bid Tabulation
Emergency Runway Repair
Concord-Padgett Regional Airport
Concord, North Carolina
TBE Project No. 2203-2106

Dear Mr. Vanderleest:

Please find enclosed a copy of the Bid Tabulation for the above referenced project.

Blythe Brothers Asphalt Co., LLC submitted the low responsive base bid in the amount of Three 
Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand, Two Hundred Thirty-Seven Dollars, and Zero Cents 
($332,237.00).  Blythe Brothers Asphalt Co., LLC submitted the low responsive alternate bid in 
the amount of Two Hundred Ninety-Seven Thousand, Three Hundred Seventy-Seven Dollars and 
Zero Cents ($297,377.00).

The engineer’s estimate has been included on the bid tab. By copy of this letter, copies of the Bid 
Tabulation are being forwarded to the bidders.

If you should have any questions concerning this matter, please do not hesitate to contact our 
office.

Sincerely,

Charles Brian Salyers, P.E.

Enclosure

cc:  Matthew Spencer, Blythe Brothers Asphalt Co., LLC Enclosure
Nathaniel Russell, NJR Group, Inc. Enclosure
Vinnie DiProspero, Sealand Contractors Corp. Enclosure

179



ITEM SPEC BASE�BID

NO. NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT�PRICE EXT�TOTAL UNIT�PRICE EXT�TOTAL UNIT�PRICE EXT�TOTAL UNIT�PRICE EXT�TOTAL

1 C-105 MOBILIZATION 1 LS $131,300.00 $131,300.00 $44,000.00 $44,000.00 $76,946.00 $76,946.00 $49,200.00 $49,200.00

2 P-101 COLD�MILLING 1,650 SY $26.00 $42,900.00 $72.72 $119,988.00 * $107.00 $176,550.00 $68.00 $112,200.00

3 P-401 BITUMINOUS�CONCRETE�SURFACE�COURSE 285 TON $133.00 $37,905.00 $363.74 $103,665.90 * $450.00 $128,250.00 $290.00 $82,650.00

4 P-403 BITUMINOUS�CONCRETE�BASE�COURSE 755 TON $126.00 $95,130.00 $237.18 $179,070.90 * $434.00 $327,670.00 $280.00 $211,400.00

5 P-603 EMULSIFIED�ASPHALT�TACK�COAT 34 GAL $3.00 $102.00 $250.00 $8,500.00 $77.00 $2,618.00 $40.00 $1,360.00

6 P-621 GROOVING 1,200 SY $20.75 $24,900.00 $26.00 $31,200.00 $48.00 $57,600.00 $30.00 $36,000.00

$332,237.00 $486,424.80 ** $769,634.00 $492,810.00

ITEM SPEC ALTERNATE�BID

NO. NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT�PRICE EXT�TOTAL UNIT�PRICE EXT�TOTAL UNIT�PRICE EXT�TOTAL UNIT�PRICE EXT�TOTAL

1 C-105 MOBILIZATION 1 LS $116,700.00 $116,700.00 $39,250.00 $39,250.00 $88,000.00 $88,000.00 $45,800.00 $45,800.00

2 P-101 COLD�MILLING 1,650 SY $21.00 $34,650.00 $39.30 $64,845.00 * $123.00 $202,950.00 $68.00 $112,200.00

3 P-401 BITUMINOUS�CONCRETE�SURFACE�COURSE 285 TON $120.00 $34,200.00 $351.11 $100,066.35 * $523.00 $149,055.00 $260.00 $74,100.00

4 P-403 BITUMINOUS�CONCRETE�BASE�COURSE 755 TON $115.00 $86,825.00 $247.14 $186,590.70 * $503.00 $379,765.00 $250.00 $188,750.00

5 P-603 EMULSIFIED�ASPHALT�TACK�COAT 34 GAL $3.00 $102.00 $300.00 $10,200.00 $81.00 $2,754.00 $40.00 $1,360.00

6 P-621 GROOVING 1,200 SY $20.75 $24,900.00 $26.00 $31,200.00 $48.00 $57,600.00 $30.00 $36,000.00

$297,377.00 $432,152.05 ** $880,124.00 $458,210.00

*�ERROR�IN�EXTENDED�TOTAL

**�ERROR�IN�TOTAL�BID�AMOUNT

TALBERT,�BRIGHT�&�ELLINGTON,�INC. DATE

License�#�42840 License�#�77426 License�#�30748

TOTAL�ALTERNATE�BID�AMOUNT

Blythe�Brothers�Asphalt�Co,�LLC NJR�Group,�Inc. Sealand�Contractors�Corp. ENGINEERING�ESTIMATE

Charlotte,�NC Albemarle,�NC Charlotte,�NC

TOTAL�BASE�BID�AMOUNT

Sealand�Contractors�Corp.

Charlotte,�NC

License�#�30748

NJR�Group,�Inc.

Albemarle,�NC

License�#�77426

Blythe�Brothers�Asphalt�Co,�LLC

Charlotte,�NC

License�#�42840

BID�TABULATION�

Thursday,�September�30,�2021

ENGINEERING�ESTIMATE

EMERGENCY�RUNWAY�REPAIR

CONCORD-PADGETT�REGIONAL�AIRPORT

Page�1�of�1

10/04/2021

180



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  
 

  
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 

that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the Runway Repairs. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation of the project. 
 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 

City of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

451-4501680 
451-4501680 

 

Transfer from Aviation 482,906 815,143 
 

332,237 

 Total    332,237 
     

SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   
         

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

6300-5800450 
6300-5800450 

Runway Repairs 
 

0 
 

332,237 
 

332,237 
 

     
 Total   332,237 

  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
14th day of October, 2021. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA     
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

181



Bid Opening September 30, 2021 , 3:00 PM.                                  
Conference Room C of the BOC Ike's Construction

Ratzlaff 
Construction 

Company, LLC
J.G. Coram 

Company, Inc.

Description

Base Bid $777,000.00 $661,292.00 $899,000.00 

5 % Contingency $38,850.00 $33,064.60 $44,950.00 

Total Bid $815,850.00 $694,356.60 $943,950.00 

Alternate No. 1:  In lieu of specified toilet partitions, provide standard 
solid plastic                                                                                                                                                        
overhead braced floor mounted partitions.

($8,700.00) ($8,200.00) ($8,000.00)

Alternate No. 2:  Delete rooms 116, 117, 118, 120, 121.  This includes 
walls, ceilings, electrical, mechanical ducts, flooring, etc.  This space 
would become an open unoccupied shell space for future upfit.  Provide 
emergency light.                                                                                        ($49,600.00) ($45,000.00) ($70,000.00)

Alternate No. 3:  Add backup generator.  See electrical drawings $86,400.00 $86,922.00 $82,000.00 
Bid Security Yes Yes Yes

CERTIFICATION: This is certified to be an accurate tabulation of bids received 
for the project. 

City of Concord Proposed Transportation Department Building Renovations

9-3-2021

182



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
Upfit Cabarrus County Facility 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the Upfit Cabarrus County Facility. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 

City of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

     
     

SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   
         

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

8600-5811279 
8600-5811279 
8600-5811228 
8600-5811228 
 

 
Upfit Cab Co Facility 
 
Traffic Mgmt Center 
 

1,167,232 
 
3,797,500 
 

 
1,292,978 

 
3,671,754 

 

 
125,746 

 
(125,746) 

0 
  

  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
14th day of October, 2021. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

183



 

1 
 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

CITY OF CONCORD 

US HIGHWAY 29 WATER PUMP STATION  

 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING  

 

The City of Concord desires to construct a new water booster pump station near the intersection of US 

Highway 29 and George Lyles Parkway SW.  The approximate location of the station is shown in the 

figure below.  The pump station should be designed to meet future water system demands for multiple 

pressure zones by feeding the new Highway 29 EST (elevated storage tank).  

 

 
 

The following scope/fee is for engineering assistance to perform initial hydraulic analysis, develop 

complete construction contract documents for the new pump station, and provide services during 

bidding and construction.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

184



 

2 
 

 

ITEM 1 – SCOPE  

 

A. Project Management, Data Collection & Project Kickoff 

 

1.  General project management by McKim & Creed (ENGINEER) shall include ongoing 

correspondence with the City of Concord (CITY) and project invoicing and tracking through the 

life of the project. 

 

2.  ENGINEER will assist the CITY in meetings with the City’s planning groups to discuss 

architectural and landscaping options for the new pump station.     

 

3.  ENGINEER will coordinate with the CITY to secure available site information, specifically 

pertaining to existing water infrastructure, including GIS data, record drawings, and other 

documentation that will help verify existing conditions.  ENGINEER will also secure and review 

the latest Water Master Plan from the CITY.   

 

4.  After the collection of data, a project kickoff meeting will be scheduled with the CITY to 

discuss project goals, project schedule, design standards, and administrative topics.  ENGINEER 

will conduct meeting and prepare meeting agenda and minutes and distribute to attendees. 

 

B.  Preliminary Investigations/Design 

 

1.  Following the project kick-off meeting, and the final determination of a pump station site, the 

ENGINEER will perform topographic and boundary surveys of the project site. Survey work will 

be performed to the Standards of Practice for Land Surveying in North Carolina.  Horizontal 

survey control will be referenced to NC Grid NAD 83 or otherwise specified.  Vertical survey 

control will be referenced to NAVD 88 or otherwise specified.  General topography for the route 

will be collected utilizing conventional field survey methods. 

  

 2.  Easement maps will be created for permanent easements and temporary construction 

easements.  Easements will include both the primary pump station site and the new water mains 

connecting the pump station with existing water infrastructure.  A total of two easement maps 

have been assumed as part of this scope of work.   

 

3.  Level B Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) will be performed on existing water mains and 

other existing utilities to at the project site with surface level investigations to better determine 

the horizontal disposition of these lines prior to design. 

 

4.  Geotechnical investigations will be performed by the ENGINEER’S subconsultant.  

Investigations will include two (2) soil borings, a 50-ft (or to refusal) boring at the location of the 

proposed pump station and a 20-ft (or to refusal) boring along the path of the proposed suction 

and discharge water mains.  Borings will be analyzed, and a report of findings provided, with the 

following information included: 

 -  Boring log with field data 

-  Stratification based on visual soil classification 

-  Groundwater levels observed during and after the completion of drilling 

-  Site Location and Exploration Plans 

185



 

3 
 

-  Subsurface exploration procedures 

-  Description of subsurface conditions 

 

5.  Based on the site selected by the CITY, the ENGINEER’s subconsultant will perform updates 

to the CITY’S overall hydraulic water model by adding the new pump station and connections to 

the OWNER’S existing water distribution system.  The model will be used to determine the 

appropriate design hydraulics (flow rates and TDH) for the new station.   

 

6.  Following investigations performed as part of tasks B.1. through B.5. above, a technical 

memorandum will be prepared and submitted for CITY review.  The technical memorandum will 

be representative of 30% design and will include: 

- Preliminary sizing information for pumps, variable frequency drives (VFD), and standby 

generator. 

- Conceptual site plan and station layout to include property boundaries, building and access 

locations, fenced limits, and new piping.   

- A summarized list of design elements proposed to include civil, mechanical/HVAC, structural, 

electrical, and SCADA related improvements.   

- A preliminary engineer’s estimate of probable construction costs (EOPC). 

 

7.  Following submission of the 30% design technical memorandum, a review meeting will be 

conducted by the ENGINEER with the CITY to discuss any comments.  ENGINEER will prepare 

meeting agenda and minutes and distribute to attendees. 

 

C. Final Design 

 

 1.  ENGINEER will prepare 60% design drawings for the improvements listed above.  The 60% 

design will include plan & profile views of mechanical and structural improvements with limited 

detail and construction notes.  Electrical design will also be provided at 60%, including 

evaluation of loadings, development of power/control riser diagrams, grounding/bonding plan, 

panel schedules, and installation details.  HVAC improvements will be included to include 

temperature control through heating and cooling, along with building ventilation. 

 

2.  ENGINEER will develop a draft version of project technical specifications at the 60% design 

stage.  A bid form and measurement and payment will be developed. 

 

3.  The ENGINEER will revise the preliminary EOPC at the 60% design stage. 

 

4.  Copies of all 60% documents will be provided to the CITY in print and electronic format. 

 

5.  ENGINEER will schedule and coordinate and attend a 60% design review meeting with the 

CITY to discuss comments.  Changes and comments will be documented and distributed for 

record. 

 

6.  Based on comments at the 60% design review meeting, ENGINEER will develop 90% design 

drawings.  90% design will include sufficient detail for construction along with a plan for erosion 

control. 

 

7.  Updated versions of project technical specifications, bid form, and measurement and payment 

186



 

4 
 

will be developed at the 90% design stage.  Contract front end documents will be included, and a 

complete set of contract documents developed.   

 

8.  ENGINEER will revise the EOPC at the 90% stage. 

 

9.  Copies of all 90% documents will be provided to the CITY in print and electronic format. 

 

10.  ENGINEER will schedule and attend a 90% design review meeting with the CITY to solicit 

comments.  Changes and comments will be documented and distributed for record. 

 

11.  ENGINEER will finalize bid documents (plans and contract documents) based on comments 

from the 90% design review meeting.  Documents will be signed/sealed, and print and electronic 

copies will be provided to the CITY. 

 

D. Permitting 

 

1.  ENGINEER will prepare a permit application and submit design documents (following 60% 

design review) to the NC DEQ-Division of Water Resources – Public Water Supply Section for 

approval and for acquiring the “Authorization to Construct”. 

 

2.  During the review process, ENGINEER will make appropriate revisions and answer agency 

questions.  

 

E. Bid Phase Services 

   

1.  A representative from ENGINEER will conduct a pre-bid meeting to answer/collect questions.   

 

2.  ENGINEER will assist the CITY with answering of questions and preparation of addenda, as 

necessary during the bid advertisement. 

 

3.  ENGINEER will prepare a tabulation of bids received. 

 

4.  ENGINEER will conduct a bid opening.  

 

5.  ENGINEER will follow up with references and prepare a letter of recommendation of award 

for the apparent low (qualified) bidder. 

 

F. Construction Phase Services 

 

1.  Two representatives from ENGINEER will attend and conduct a preconstruction meeting.  An 

agenda and meeting minutes will be prepared and distributed to attendees. 

 

2.  ENGINEER will schedule and conduct up to six (6) monthly construction meetings with the 

contractor.  Meetings will be scheduled during months of the most active construction.  Agendas 

and meeting minutes will be prepared by ENGINEER and distributed to attendees. 

 

3.  Shop drawings will be received, logged, tracked, and reviewed against the contract documents 

by ENGINEER. 

187



 

5 
 

 

4.  ENGINEER will provide responses to any contractor RFI’s. 

 

5.  Requests for change orders by the contractor will be reviewed and processed by ENGINEER. 

 

 6.  Monthly pay requests will be reviewed by ENGINEER and a recommendation made for 

payment. 

 

7.  ENGINEER will provide a construction observer for limited observation of construction.  

Weekly visits will be made during a five (5) month period of active construction.  A daily report 

will be prepared for each visit to include photos and written documentation of progress/activities 

and of onsite contractor personnel and equipment.   

 

8.  Periodic visits will be made by ENGINEER’S civil, mechanical/HVAC, electrical/SCADA, and 

structural representatives during construction at periods of significant work. 

 

 9.  Two representatives from ENGINEER will attend a substantial completion walk-thru.  A 

punch list of outstanding work items will be prepared.  Upon satisfactory completion of the 

punch list, ENGINEER will provide a substantial completion certification.  

 

10.  Two representatives from ENGINEER will attend a final completion walk-thru.  A punch list 

will be prepared, and upon satisfactory completion of the punch list, a final completion 

certification will be provided. 

 

G. Post-Construction Phase Services 

 

 1.  ENGINEER will provide technical services to work with the contractor, vendors, 

subcontractors, and CITY staff to systematically start-up, test, and commission the new 

pumps/VFD’s.   

 

 2.  Record drawings will be prepared by ENGINEER based off contractor as-built redlines and 

field observations.  Following CITY review and acceptance, print and electronic copies will be 

provided to the CITY for file. 

 

3.  ENGINEER will participate in warranty reviews at the 6-month and 11.5 month periods to 

develop warranty punch lists at these stages.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

188



 

6 
 

ITEM 2 – COMPENSATION  

 

Task         Fee 

A.  Project Management, Data Collection & Project Kickoff  $15,184.00 (L.S.) 

B.  Preliminary Investigations / Preliminary Design   $78,377.00 

 Topographic/Boundary Survey      $4,851.00 (N.T.E.) 

 Easement Mapping       $3,441.00 (N.T.E.) 

 Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE)     $6,095.00 (N.T.E.) 

 Geotechnical Investigations      $7,542.00 (L.S.) 

 Hydraulic Modeling       $10,416.00 (L.S.)  

 Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum    $46,032.00 (L.S.) 

C.  Final Design       $156,802.00 (L.S.) 

 60% Design        $91,200.00 (L.S.) 

90% Design        $56,140.00 (L.S.) 

Final Bid Documents       $9,462.00 (L.S.) 

D.  Permitting        $5,568.00 (L.S.) 

E.  Bid Phase Services       $9,464.00 (L.S.) 

F.  Construction Phase Services      $73,805.00 (N.T.E.) 

G.  Post Construction Services      $9,748.00 (L.S.) 

 
TOTAL FEE        $348,948.00 

 

L.S. – Lump Sum  N.T.E. – Not To Exceed 

 

Reimbursable expenses have been estimated and included in the lump sum fees indicated in the 

compensation schedule above.  Invoicing will be made monthly at the estimated completion percentage 

of the work.  A man-hour budget sheet has been attached. 

 

 

ITEM 3 – SCHEDULE  

 

Milestone/Deliverable     Timeframe from Notice to Proceed (NTP) 

Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum  60 days  

City Review of Prelim. Tech Memo   75 days 

60% Design Submittal     150 days 

City Review of 60% Design Submittal   165 days 

90% Design Submittal     195 days 

City Review of 90% Design Submittal   210 days 

100% Design/Bid Docs     225 days 

 

Permit applications will be submitted following 60% design review.   

 

 

 

 

 

189



 

7 
 

ITEM 4 – EXCLUSIONS 

 

The following items have not been included in this scope of services: 

 

- SUE Level A (potholing). 

- Site storm water, environmental, and cultural assessments 

- SCADA design outside of elements that are specifically requested by ForTech – it is assumed as 

part of this scope that the City’s SCADA integrator will provide all SCADA related equipment 

for the pump station. ForTech will be included as a preselected subcontractor (bid item with set 

amount) to the City’s awarded prime contractor.  The ENGINEER will work with ForTech during 

design to ensure that adequate space and connectivity are included in the ENGINEER’s electrical 

design.   

- Any other items not specifically listed in the scope of services. 

 

 

ITEM 5 - OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The following items shall be the responsibility of the OWNER: 

• Provide the ENGINEER with all criteria and full information as to the OWNER's requirements for the 

PROJECT, including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance 

requirements, flexibility and expandability, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all 

design and construction standards which the OWNER will require to be included in the Drawings 

and Specifications; and furnish copies of the OWNER's standard forms, conditions and related 

documents for the ENGINEER to include in the Bidding Documents, when applicable. 

• The timely provision of all available information, data, reports, records, and maps to which the 

OWNER has access and which are needed by the ENGINEER for the performance of the services 

provided herein. 

• Providing assistance and cooperation for the ENGINEER in obtaining any other needed material 

which the OWNER does not have in its possession. 

• Making available the services of the OWNER as may be necessary to obtain information as needed to 

perform the work program set forth in the Scope of Services. 

• The designation of a single representative who will be authorized to make necessary decisions 

required on behalf of the OWNER and will serve to provide the necessary direction and coordination 

for the project. 

• Advise the ENGINEER of the identity and scope of services of any independent consultants 

employed by the OWNER to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not 

limited to, cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering and constructability review. 

• Attend the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, construction progress and 

other job related meetings and Substantial Completion, final payment, and warranty reviews. 

• The OWNER shall pay all costs for permit fees and application fees. 

• The OWNER shall pay for all costs related to the Advertisement for Bid. 

• The OWNER shall provide for any require legal action and associated required legal notifications. 

 

 

 

ITEM 6 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

190



 

8 
 

• Opinion of Probable Construction Costs: ENGINEER’s opinions of probable construction costs are 

based on assumed labor costs and approximate quantities of material and equipment, and therefore is 

of a conditional character. ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee the cost of work to be 

performed by others since market or bidding conditions can change at any time and changes in the 

scope or quality of the project may affect estimates. City waives and releases ENGINEER from any 

loss, liability, or claim arising out of or in any way related to the ENGINEER’s opinion of probable 

construction costs. 

 

• The attached hourly rate schedule shall be incorporated as part of this agreement. The hourly rate 

schedule is subject to change January 1st of each calendar year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

191



City of Concord
US 29 Pump Station
Budget Fee Sheet
22-Sep-2021

Position
Engineering 

Manager
Project 

Manager 3
Project 

Manager 1
Project 

Engineer 4
Project 

Engineer
Engineer 

Intern CAD Tech
Const. 
Admin. Admin. Asst. Survey PM 1

Survey CAD 
Tech

Survey 2-
Person Crew SUE PM

SUE 2-
Person Crew

Total 
Hours

Total Labor 
Cost

Subs & 
Expenses Task Cost

Rate $260.00 $225.00 $185.00 $215.00 $145.00 $133.00 $75.00 $120.00 $72.00 $175.00 $95.00 $152.00 $188.00 $181.00
A - PM, Data, Kickoff
General PM/billing 32 16 48 $9,328.00 $9,328.00
Planning Group Meetings 4 4 $900.00 $900.00
Data Collection 2 2 4 8 $1,352.00 $1,352.00
Project Kickoff Meeting 8 4 8 20 $3,604.00 $3,604.00

A subtotal 0 46 6 0 0 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 80 $15,184.00 $0.00 $15,184.00
B - Prelim. Investigations / Prelim. Design 0
Topographic and Boundary Surveys 1 2 4 12 16 35 $4,763.00 $88.00 $4,851.00
Easement Maps 1 2 6 20 29 $3,441.00 $3,441.00
Level B SUE 1 2 6 24 33 $5,963.00 $132.00 $6,095.00
Geotechincal Investigations 1 2 3 $491.00 $7,051.00 $7,542.00
Hydraulic Modeling 6 2 8 $1,616.00 $8,800.00 $10,416.00
Prelim. Design Tech Memo 4 30 42 26 48 82 48 4 18 302 $44,392.00 $44,392.00
Prelim. Deisgn Review Meeting 4 4 8 $1,640.00 $1,640.00

B subtotal 4 44 46 26 48 92 48 4 18 10 32 16 6 24 418 $62,306.00 $16,071.00 $78,377.00
C - Final Design 0
60% Design Drawings 48 72 40 70 120 168 6 524 $72,150.00 $72,150.00
60% Technical Specs 16 8 6 16 32 2 80 $13,090.00 $13,090.00
60% EOPC 1 6 2 2 4 10 25 $4,320.00 $4,320.00
60% Design Review Meeting 4 4 8 $1,640.00 $1,640.00
90% Design Drawings 6 28 36 20 32 80 100 302 $41,600.00 $41,600.00
90% Technical Specs and Front Ends 10 10 4 12 24 60 $9,892.00 $9,892.00
90% EOPC 1 3 3 2 2 6 17 $3,008.00 $3,008.00
90% Design Review Meeting 4 4 8 $1,640.00 $1,640.00
Final Bid Docs 8 6 6 6 24 16 66 $9,462.00 $9,462.00

C subtotal 8 127 145 80 142 296 284 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 1090 $156,802.00 $0.00 $156,802.00
D - Permitting 0
NCDEQ Authorization To Construct 6 2 12 6 26 $3,766.00 $3,766.00
RAI's 4 2 4 10 $1,802.00 $1,802.00

D subtotal 0 10 4 0 0 16 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 $5,568.00 $0.00 $5,568.00
E - Bid Phase Services 0
Prebid Meeting 4 4 8 $1,640.00 $1,640.00
Answer Questions and Prepare Addenda 8 6 2 2 8 26 $4,694.00 $4,694.00
Prepare Bid Tabulation 4 4 8 $1,432.00 $1,432.00
Verify Contractor References 2 4 6 $982.00 $982.00
Prepare Letter of Recommendation 2 2 4 $716.00 $716.00

E subtotal 0 20 10 2 2 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52 $9,464.00 $0.00 $9,464.00
F - Construction Phase Services 0
Attend Preconstruction Meeting 8 4 4 4 20 $3,552.00 $3,552.00
Monthly Construction Meetings (6) 20 12 6 18 56 $10,170.00 $10,170.00
Shop drawing review 14 8 8 14 40 40 124 $18,500.00 $18,500.00
Respond to RFI's 10 6 6 8 12 16 58 $9,326.00 $9,326.00
Review CO's 4 4 4 4 16 $2,652.00 $2,652.00
Review monthly pay apps 4 8 12 $1,860.00 $1,860.00
Onsite Observation (6 hrs/wk, 21 wks) 126 126 $15,120.00 $15,120.00
Periodic Site Visits - Engineers 10 10 24 44 $9,260.00 $605.00 $9,865.00
Substantial Completion Walk-thru 4 4 8 $1,380.00 $1,380.00
Final Completion Walk-thru 4 4 8 $1,380.00 $1,380.00

F subtotal 0 78 44 44 22 60 0 224 0 0 0 0 0 0 472 $73,200.00 $605.00 $73,805.00
G - Post Construction Services 0
Pump Station Start-ups 12 12 24 $5,280.00 $5,280.00
Record Drawings 4 2 6 8 20 $2,668.00 $2,668.00
Mid-Year and Final Warranty Review 8 8 $1,800.00 $1,800.00

G subtotal 0 24 2 12 0 6 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52 $9,748.00 $0.00 $9,748.00
Totals 12 349 257 164 214 516 346 234 20 10 32 16 6 24 2200 $332,272.00 $16,676.00 $348,948.00

192



 
Water Market 2021 Schedule of Hourly Rates 

Rates are valid through December 31, 2021   Pg 1/2 
 

 
Employee Classification  (Rate/Hour) 

 

Engineering 

Principal...........................................................................$295.00 

Engineering Manager ....................................................$260.00 

Project Manager III…….............................……………$225.00 

Project Manager II…… ..............................……………$205.00 

Project Manager I………………… ..................……….$185.00 

Technical Specialist ........................................................$270.00 

Project Engineer IV ........................................................$215.00 

Project Engineer III.........................................................$200.00 

Project Engineer II ..........................................................$165.00 

Project Engineer I ...........................................................$145.00 

Engineer Intern ...............................................................$133.00 

Land Planner/Landscape Architect  .............................$140.00 

I&C Specialist III.............................................................$205.00 

I&C Specialist II ..............................................................$175.00 

I&C Specialist I ...............................................................$138.00 

Programmer III ...............................................................$185.00 

Programmer II ................................................................$165.00 

Programmer I..................................................................$130.00 

Designer IV......................................................................$152.00 

Designer III......................................................................$135.00 

Designer II .......................................................................$125.00 

Designer I ........................................................................$105.00 

Sr. CAD Technician..........................................................$90.00 

CAD Technician ...............................................................$75.00 

Sr. Project Administrator ..............................................$103.00 

Project Administrator ......................................................$88.00 

Administrative Assistant ................................................$72.00 

 

Construction 
Construction Administrator IV ....................................$180.00 

Construction Administrator III ....................................$160.00 

Construction Administrator II .....................................$145.00 

Construction Administrator I.......................................$120.00 

Project Representative III ..............................................$142.00 

Project Representative II ...............................................$123.00 

Project Representative I ..................................................$99.00 

 

Field Services 

Field Technician I .............................................................$88.00 

Field Technician II..........................................................$115.00 

Field Services Manager .................................................$138.00 

 

 

Employee Classification  (Rate/Hour) 

 

Surveying 

Sr. Surveyor/Project Manager III ...................................$240.00 

Sr. Surveyor/Project Manager II.....................................$216.00 

Sr. Surveyor/Project Manager I ......................................$175.00 

Project Surveyor ...............................................................$137.00 

Sr. Survey CAD Technician ............................................$111.00 

Survey CAD Technician ....................................................$95.00 

Survey Technician ..............................................................$85.00 

Survey Field Supervisor ..................................................$106.00 

Project Coordinator..........................................................$121.00 

Field Survey Party 1 Person Crew .................................$111.00 

Field Survey Party 2 Person Crew .................................$152.00 

Field Survey Party 3 Person Crew .................................$216.00 

GPS Mapping 1 Person Crew .........................................$116.00 

GPS Mapping 2 Person Crew .........................................$157.00 

RTK/VRS GPS 1 Person Crew ........................................$121.00 

RTK/VRS GPS 2 Person Crew ........................................$165.00 

 

Subsurface Utility Engineering 

Utility Engineering Sr. Project Manager. ......................$223.00 

Utility Engineering Project Manager.............................$188.00 

Utility Coordinator I ........................................................$159.00 

Utility Engineering Technician I ......................................$79.00 

Utility Engineering Technician II.....................................$94.00 

Utility Engineering Analyst............................................$106.00 

Utility Engineering Specialist .........................................$141.00 

Utility Engineering Party (2 Person Crew)...................$181.00 

 
Geospatial Information Systems 

GIS Specialist ....................................................................$121.00 

GIS Technician II ................................................................$99.00 

GIS Technician I..................................................................$79.00 

GIS Analyst I .....................................................................$115.00 

GIS Analyst II....................................................................$125.00 

LiDAR Field Technician ....................................................$94.00 

LiDAR Technician I............................................................$84.00 

LiDAR Technician II ........................................................$113.00 

LiDAR Technician III .......................................................$135.00 

Photogrammetric Technician .........................................$109.00 

Photogrammetrist ............................................................$160.00 

 

Hydrographic Surveying 

Hydrographic Specialist I ...............................................$101.00 

Hydrographic Specialist II ..............................................$111.00 

 

 

 

 

193



 
Water Market 2021 Schedule of Hourly Rates 

Rates are valid through December 31, 2021   Pg 2/2 
 

  
Expenses 

 

In addition to labor, McKim & Creed bills for the following project related costs  at a contractually agreed markup: 

printing; conference calling charges; document review, permit or recording fees paid on behalf of the client; shipping; 

bid advertisement; specialty materials, software or equipment rental; sub-consultant fees; costs of project related 

employee travel including meals, lodging, airfare and miscellaneous travel costs such as tolls, parking etc.; mileage for 

all company-owned vehicles (trucks) will be billed at $0.85/mile; employee owned vehicles used for transportation 

related to the project will be charged at the prevailing federal mileage rate allowed by the IRS at the time the travel 

occurs. 

 

McKim & Creed also bills for the cost of internal reproduction and the use of specialized equipment related to 

subsurface utility vacuum excavation, mobile scanning (LIDAR), and hydrographic surveying. 

194



Smith

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 3,000 ft 195



City of Concord, North Carolina 
Preliminary Application — Extension of Concord Utilities outside Concord City Limits 

(Please type or print in black ink) 

1. Name of development: 'Pap 4.A ta_ 	En I L.s 

2. Name and address of owner(s)/developer(s): 	  
SC A 	.(3/ /-oak (ZA-ic. f  C eicn/>h,(t)C ZEOZ.7  

17044411.. 

3. Owner(s)/developer(s) telephone: 7 	6  2  ?  78  Fax: /1145 204e_ a/ iictecg. 

C A  qk/h) 4. Name and address of surveyor/engineer: 4)/17.  iiPPL i CA'RLX 02 b  

5. Surveyor/engineer's telephone:  (p/A 	A14) 	Fax: 	  

6. Name, telephone and fax number, and address of agent (if any):  (Y.44 tf) 2 A/4) 	 

7. Name and address of person to whom comments should be sent:  / a Sc #4  

78 :5c.441...'7- 	aV_ 1124a_ C-"od • 0•2:b AIL.. Z6)02:7  

8. Telephone number of person to whom comments should be sent: 
a MALL 
Fax: 	4  5 20.1,4 Gl2 Pc.(4 Pl2crepm OsitA 1L e 

4o-r /42 
9. Location of property: 7F? 55-ch (7-V3 A AK. 1 AA I I-, 1  Co COP-V. A.) 	2g30 	PoPcpoil TA/es 

10. Cabarrus County P.I.N.#:  ?/4 ors Let = 'V4 8 t 3,8)1(32 as Z4 	iodel2 
A#5142(  

11. Current zoning classification: 	Z Gc:J• *.b 11N-s crt-  Efl-s(Z fis1/4.7--crA 	(4b  

12. Total acres: 	5. // 	Total lots proposed: 	2  
13. Brief Description of development:  C.44k.Q.fr k) 01.-jk) 	Zcopi rq to //41,6  

/6ck.) kJ& 	 rr //ow 	 5' 0/J  11.; 12- ckt.o.-1)16 .41E  

14. Proposed Construction Schedule  ;OK.1...rbt 	flo V ✓ L — .PLA /0 AAth  

-7)cV E.LO-P 	 NI 677 	Le:s..(Z-N Cl f' r 	NC0t2.1 /(1  

15. Type of Service requested 	4-7>< 	iv' o s= !•_)/Qc._c 	Z/r7LCrt 

b 	Gibc_alg-b 	(T 	(141 

9/2 2. 0 2  
Date 

W/9 	cc:44 112-(0  
Name (printed) 

NOTE: By affixing his or her signature hereto, the owner/developer acknowledges understanding of and 
agreement to comply with all provisions of the Concord City Code section 62. 

Received by: 

Staff Use Only: 

Date: 

   

Signature of Owner/Agent 

196



Schroeder

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 2,000 ft 197



City of Concord, North Carolina 
 Preliminary Application – Extension of Concord Utilities outside Concord City Limits 

(Please type or print in black ink)  

1. Name of development: 

2. Name and address of owner(s)/developer(s):  

3. Owner(s)/developer(s) telephone:                                               Fax: 

4. Name and address of surveyor/engineer:  

5. Surveyor/engineer’s telephone:                                             Fax: 

6. Name, telephone and fax number, and address of agent (if any):  

7. Name and address of person to whom comments should be sent:  

8. Telephone number of person to whom comments should be sent: 

Fax: 

9. Location of property: 

10. Cabarrus County P.I.N.#: 

11. Current zoning classification: 

12. Total acres:                                           Total lots proposed: 

13. Brief Description of development: __________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Proposed Construction Schedule ___________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________  

15. Type of Service requested  ________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________  

Date                                                                    Signature of Owner/Agent        

    ___________________________________________       
     Name (printed)  

NOTE:  By affixing his or her signature hereto, the owner/developer acknowledges understanding of and 
agreement to comply with all provisions of the Concord City Code section 62.   

Staff Use Only: 

Received by: ____________________________     Date: __________________________   

198

green
Typewritten Text
1.29



Thornridge Investment

DAVIDSON HWY

HARRIS RD

POPLAR TENT RD

ODELL SCHOOL RD

LOCKWOOD RD

DRY STONE DR

MOSS PLANTATION AVE NW

FITZGERALD ST NW

MOSS FARM ST NW

ANASTASI ST NW

CR
US

AD
ER

 W
AY

ESTRIDGE LN

BERKELEY PL

BRIDGEFORD DR NW

SHILOH CHURCH RD

JIM JOHNSON RD
CAPELLA AVE NW

ISA
AC

 ST

MID
DL

EC
RE

ST
 DR

 NW

OV
ER

LE
A P

L N
W

WE
LL

ING
TO

N C
HA

SE
 D

R

NAPA ST NW

DUCKHORN ST NW

PRAIRIE RD

LA
UR

EN
S D

R

COLD CREEK PL

RIVE
R OAKS D

R NW
MARQUETTE ST NW

SPUR LN

INDIAN BEECH AVE NW

BRIARFIELD DR NW

VALENCIA AVE NW

EDGEPINE LN NW

SANDY BOTTOM DR NW

DA
RT

MO
OR

 AV
E N

W

SAMUELS WAY DR

VILLAGE COMMONS ST NW

COFFEETREE DR NW

RUSTIC ARCH WAY
THOUSAND OAKS DR

SHANACLEAR AVE

ASTORIA LN NW
LAURIE AVE NW

RAVENSCROFT LN NW

RENAISSANCE DR

SKIPPING ROCK LN NW

SHUMACHER AVE NW

SKY CHASE AVE NW

HUNTERSVILLE-CONCORD RD

BA
Y M

EA
DO

WS A
VE

 NW

ASPEN RIDGE LN
 NW

REFLECTION AVE NW

RU
ST

IC 
BA

RN
 DR

HILLS DELL DR

KI
NG

SW
AY

 R
D

OAKLA
WN BLV

D NW

OLIVE HILL AVE NW

HORSEBIT LN

BU
RR

EL
L A

VE
 NW EMORY LN NW

MARTHAS VIEW DR

DR
AG

ON
S L

AI
R 

DR

ELSFIELD AVE NW

GRAND OAKS ST NW

VISION PATHEVANSTON ST NW

ODELL CIR

TR
AN

QU
ILI

TY
 AV

E N
W

MAHLAND CT NW

STONEWALL RD

APRIL KNOLL CT

SK
YG

RO
VE

 PL
 NW

PERTH CT

VIC
KE

RS
 R

D

DUNCAN DR NW

CODDLE CT NW

MALDEN ST NW

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 1,000 ft 199



200



201



 
 
 

 
 ORD. #  ______ 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING SPEED LIMIT 
MODIFICATIONS AND REQUEST FOR 
CONCURRING ORDINANCE BY THE  

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord duly enacted on the 14th 
day of October, 2021, an ordinance based upon an engineering and traffic investigation 
pursuant to authority granted by G.S. 20-141 (f) declaring the following speed limit 
modifications as set forth below on the following described portion of a State Highway 
System Street: 
 

Declare the Following Speed Limit 
 
 

Speed Ordinance 
Limit  Number         Route   Description 
55                    1077179                  NC 49 NC 49 between 0.0148 miles 

west of SR 1139 (Old 
Charlotte Rd.) and 0.087 
miles west of SR 1484 
(Lippard Ln.). 

 
 WHEREAS, said ordinance shall become effective upon adoption of the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation of a concurring ordinance and the erection of 
signs giving notice of the authorized speed limit. 
 
 Adopted this 14th day of October, 2021 
 
       CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
___________________ 

       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim J. Deason, City Clerk 
 

202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



  
 
   
  
  
  

MEMORADUM  
  
DATE: Monday, September 27, 2021 
TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 
FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  
SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 
PROJECT NAME: Heritage at Moss Creek Subdivision 
PROJECT NUMBER: 2020-024 
DEVELOPER: Forestar Real Estate Group, Inc.- USA 
FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: 1-14, 36-55, 70-84 
INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water and Sewer 
COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, October 14, 2021 
ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Thursday, October 13, 2022 
  

  
 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 1460.00 

8-inch Valves 6 

6-inch in LF 1268.00 

6-inch Valves 4 

Hydrants 3 
 

 

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 2251.00 

Manholes as EA 11 
 

220



  
 
   
  
  
  

MEMORADUM  
  
DATE: Tuesday, September 28, 2021  
TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 
FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  
SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 
PROJECT NAME: Concord Medical Office at Afton Village 
PROJECT NUMBER: 2020-025 
DEVELOPER: Bigfoot Ventures, LLC 
FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: Site 
INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water 
COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, October 14, 2021 
ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Thursday, October 13, 2022 
  

  
 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

6-inch in LF 12.00 

6-inch Valves 2 

Hydrants 1 
 

 

221



  
 
   
  
  
  

MEMORADUM  
  
DATE: Wednesday, September 01, 2021  
TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 
FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  
SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 
PROJECT NAME: Popeye's-US29 
PROJECT NUMBER: 2020-071 
DEVELOPER: Table Rock RE LLC, 
FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: Commercial Site - Restaurant 
INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water and Sewer 
COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, October 14, 2021 
ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Thursday, October 13, 2022 
  

  
 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 39.00 

8-inch Valves 1 
 

222



 

 

 

  STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
ROY COOPER  J. ERIC BOYETTE 

GOVERNOR   SECRETARY 
 

Mailing Address: 

NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
DIVISION OF AVIATION  
1560 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 
RALEIGH, NC  27699-1560 

Telephone: 919-814-0550 

Fax: 919-840-9267 
 
 

Website: www.ncdot.gov/aviation 

Location: 

RDU AIRPORT 
1050 MERIDIAN DRIVE 

MORRISVILLE, NC  27560 
 

 

 
 
 
Ms. Pam Hinson, Finance Director 
City of Concord 
P. O. Box 308 
Concord, NC  28026-0308 
 
RE:   NOTIFICATION OF FUNDING ALLOCATION 
  § 63-74 Airport Improvement Program 
 
Dear Ms. Hinson: 
 
On behalf of the State of North Carolina, the Department of Transportation, and Transportation 
Secretary J. Eric Boyette, this notification serves as official verification that State funds have been 
allocated for Concord-Padgett Regional Airport.  Pursuant to the authorizing legislation, the 
Department of Transportation provides to the Authority funding outlined below for the purposes of 
funding improvements to the airport and paying debt service or related financing costs and expenses 
on revenue bonds or notes issued by the airport.  The Authority hereby represents and warrants that 
all funds shall be utilized exclusively for the purposes listed in the authorizing legislation and in 
compliance with all other applicable laws, rules, regulations, and requirements.   
 
The specific work elements and funding allocation is noted below: 
 

Award ID Description  State Funds 
36244.41.8.1 Airport Improvements and Debt Service                $2,056,051 

 
The Department of Transportation shall not allocate funds prior to receiving a report (please use the 
attached AV-104 form) outlining their use in conformance with the purposes of the program. No later 
than 45 days from the date the Department receives the report the Department shall make a 
determination whether the intended use of the funds matches the purposes of the program and, if so, 
allocate funds under this section to the airport. An airport that receives funds under this section shall 
return the funds to the Department if the funds are in the possession or control of the airport and not 
expended or encumbered by August 31 of the year following the fiscal year in which the Department 
makes the allocation. All funds returned to the Department under this section or retained by the 
Department for failure of an eligible airport to submit a report under this subsection, shall be credited 
to the fund from which they were appropriated and shall remain unexpended and unencumbered until 
appropriated by the General Assembly.   
 
The Department of Transportation shall disburse funds to a compliant airport on a quarterly schedule. 
For the Concord-Padgett Regional Airport this amount will be $514,013 for the first three 
payments and $514,012 for the fourth and final payment. 

9/29/2021

223

http://www.ncdot.gov/aviation


 
 

The application for the funding will be delivered through the NCDOT Enterprise Business System 
(EBS). Please contact your Interim Airport Project Manager, Rachel Bingham, PE, for further 
guidance.  
 
The NCDOT Division of Aviation appreciates your commitment and contribution to our state aviation 
system, and we are excited to partner with you on this grant. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Bobby L. Walston, P.E. 
Director of Aviation 
 
BLW/sg  
 
cc:  Dirk Vanderleest, Aviation Director 
      Susan Green, Assistant Aviation Director 

224



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  
 

  
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 

that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the State Aid to Airport Projects. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation of the project within terms of a grant agreement with the N.C. 
Department of Transportation – Division of Aviation. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City 

of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

451-4357000 
451-4357000 

State Aid 
 
 

1,991,256 
 
 

4,047,307 
 
 

2,056,051 
 
 

 Total    2,056,051 
     

SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   
         

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

6300-5800449 
6300-5800449 Long Term Parking Upgrade  162,000 2,218,051 2,056,051 

     
     

Total    2,056,051 
  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
14th day of October, 2021. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA     
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

225



ORD.  #  

GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following grant project ordinance is hereby amended: 

SECTION 1. The project authorized and amended are the projects included 
in the CDBG 2021 Grant 

SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 
implementation and amendments of the projects within the 
terms of the plans and specifications for the projects. 

 SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 
City of Concord for the completion of the projects: 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease)  
Increase 

310-4334558
310-4334558 CDBG 2021 $675,769 $685,728 $9,959 

Total $9,959 

         SECTION 4. The following amounts are 
appropriated for the project 

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease)  
Increase 

3116-5483200 
3116-5483200 Clearwater Artist Studio $343,866 $353,825 $9,959 

Total $9,959 

SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the project agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this grant projects 
ordinance shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 

226



  
     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 

of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 

 
Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this      

     14th day of October, 2021. 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA  
    
                                                                  __________________________  
        William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_____________________  ______________________________ 
              Kim Deason, City Clerk   VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

227



Tax Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022
FINAL REPORT August

Property Tax Receipts- Munis
2021 BUDGET YEAR 6,481,273.82      
2020 74,322.90           
2019 17,826.87           
2018 6,480.85             
2017 2,339.06             
2016 117.02                
2015 58.08                  
2014 77.60                  
2013 32.03                  
2012 31.64                  
Prior Years 40.83                  
Interest 9,529.52             
Refunds

6,592,130.22      

Vehicle Tax Receipts- County
2021 BUDGET YEAR 540,643.73         
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
Prior Years 51.58                  
Penalty & Interest 4,894.54             
Refunds

545,589.85         

Fire District Tax - County
2021 BUDGET YEAR 25,027.17           

   Less: Collection Fee from County
Net Ad Valorem Collections 7,162,747.24      

423:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Impr Fund 40,525.70           
100:Vehicle Tag Fee 164,543.60         
292:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Fund 40,525.70           
   Less Collection Fee - Transit 
Net Vehicle Tag Collection 245,595.00         

-                      

Privilege License 140.00                
Prepaid Privilege Licenses
Privilege License interest
Total Privilege License 140.00                

 

Oakwood Cemetery current 525.00                
Oakwood Cemetery endowment 1,850.00             
Rutherford Cemetery current 1,283.34             
Rutherford Cemetery endowment 991.66                
West Concord Cemetery current 699.98                
West Concord Cemetery endowment 2,800.02             
Total Cemetery Collections 8,150.00             

Total Collections 7,416,632.24$    

228



Current Year
Original Scroll
    Levy
    Penalty
    Adjustments
Public Service 
    Levy
    Penalty
Discoveries/Annex 68,538.75           
Discovery Penalty 13,218.95           
Total Amount Invoiced - Monthly 81,757.70           
Total Amount Invoiced - YTD 64,646,931.06    

Current Year
Less Abatements (Releases)
    Real 3,657.61             
    Personal
    Discovery
    Penalty - all
Total Abatements 3,657.61             

Adjusted Amount Invoiced - monthly 78,100.09
Adjusted Amount Invoiced - YTD 64,641,931.20    

 
Current Levy Collected 6,481,273.82      
Levy Collected from previous years 101,326.88         
Penalties & Interest Collected 9,529.52             
Current Month Write Off - Debit/Credit -                      
Total Monthly Collected 6,592,130.22      
Total Collected - YTD 7,411,298.72      

Total Collected - net current levy -YTD 7,179,451.37      
 

Percentage of Collected -current levy      11.11%

Amount Uncollected - current year levy 57,462,479.83    

Percentage of Uncollected - current levy 88.89%

100.00%

229



CITY OF CONCORD

RELEASES 
CITY OF CONCORD 3,657.61$             
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

REFUNDS 
CITY OF CONCORD 4,040.53$             
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

DISCOVERIES
CITY OF CONCORD

TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties
2016 0 60,196 60,196 0.0048 288.94 173.36
2017 0 1,528,870 1,528,870 0.0048 7,338.58 3,659.38
2018 350 1,442,632 1,442,982 0.0048 6,926.31 2,754.05
2019 350 1,608,007 1,608,357 0.0048 7,720.11 2,218.35
2020 78,780 2,004,493 2,083,273 0.0048 9,999.71 1,687.64
2021 1,875,759 5,679,469 7,555,228 0.0048 36,265.09 2,726.17

Total 1,955,239 12,323,667 14,278,906 68,538.75$        13,218.95$   

DOWNTOWN 
TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties

2017 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2018 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2019 0 2,238 2,238 0.0023 5.15 1.03
2020 0 17,393 17,393 0.0023 40.00 4.00
2021 0 10,416 10,416 0.0023 23.96 2.40

Total 0 30,047 30,047 69.11$               7.43$            

Summary of Releases, Refunds and Discoveries for the Month of August 2021

230



Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Cost Value Maturity Date YTM @ Cost % of Portfolio Settlement Date Cost Price Days To Maturity

CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 9/14/2021 2254EAWE9 5,000,000.00 4,997,666.67 9/14/2021 0.140 1.36 N/A 99.953333 14
CP BCI MIAMI 0 9/20/2021 05990CWL4 5,000,000.00 4,993,611.10 9/20/2021 0.230 1.36 N/A 99.872222 20
CP SALVATION ARMY 0 10/14/2021 79584RXE3 5,000,000.00 4,993,875.00 10/14/2021 0.180 1.36 N/A 99.8775 44
CP JP MORGAN 0 10/18/2021 46640PXJ7 5,000,000.00 4,994,900.00 10/18/2021 0.170 1.36 N/A 99.898 48
CP NATIXIS NY 0 11/1/2021 63873JY12 5,000,000.00 4,995,038.90 11/1/2021 0.190 1.36 N/A 99.900778 62
CP BANCO SANTADER 0 11/19/2021 05970RYK5 5,000,000.00 4,997,723.61 11/19/2021 0.110 1.36 N/A 99.954472 80
CP CHESHAM 0 11/23/2021 16536HYP0 5,000,000.00 4,996,125.00 11/23/2021 0.150 1.36 N/A 99.9225 84
CP BARCLAYS US CCP FUNDING LLC 0 12/7/2021 067425XMG9 5,000,000.00 4,998,000.00 12/7/2021 0.120 1.36 N/A 99.96 98
CP COLLAT V CO LLC 0 12/22/2021 19424HZN3 5,000,000.00 4,996,966.67 12/22/2021 0.120 1.36 N/A 99.939333 113
CP LMA S A DISC CP 0 1/19/2022 53944RAK4 5,000,000.00 4,997,450.00 1/19/2022 0.120 1.36 N/A 99.949 141
CP ING US FUNDING 0 2/14/2022 4497W1BE5 5,000,000.00 4,994,022.22 2/14/2022 0.160 1.36 N/A 99.880444 167
CP CHESHAM 0 2/25/2022 16536JBR7 5,000,000.00 4,996,081.95 2/25/2022 0.130 1.36 N/A 99.921639 178
CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 3/25/2022 2254EBCR0 5,000,000.00 4,993,672.22 3/25/2022 0.170 1.36 N/A 99.873444 206
Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper 65,000,000.00 64,945,133.34 0.153 17.72 99.9156 97

FFCB 1.7 9/27/2022-21 3133EKS31 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/27/2022 1.700 1.36 N/A 100 392
FFCB 0.14 5/18/2023-21 3133EMZP0 5,000,000.00 4,997,000.00 5/18/2023 0.170 1.36 N/A 99.94 625
FFCB 0.32 8/10/2023-21 3133EL3E2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/10/2023 0.320 1.36 N/A 100 709
FFCB 0.19 9/22/2023-21 3133EMLE0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/22/2023 0.190 1.36 N/A 100 752
FFCB 0.31 11/30/2023-21 3133EMHL9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/30/2023 0.310 1.36 N/A 100 821
FFCB 0.23 1/19/2024 3133EMNG3 5,000,000.00 4,997,850.00 1/19/2024 0.244 1.36 N/A 99.957 871
FFCB 0.25 3/1/2024-21 3133EMSD5 5,000,000.00 4,990,000.00 3/1/2024 0.317 1.36 N/A 99.8 913
FFCB 0.46 8/19/2024-21 3133EM2U5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/19/2024 0.460 1.36 N/A 100 1,084
FFCB 0.43 9/10/2024-20 3133EL6V1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/10/2024 0.430 1.36 N/A 100 1,106
FFCB 1.89 9/27/2024-21 3133EKU20 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/27/2024 1.890 1.36 N/A 100 1,123
FFCB 0.71 4/21/2025-22 3133EMWH1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/21/2025 0.710 1.36 N/A 100 1,329
FFCB 0.53 9/29/2025-21 3133EMBH4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/29/2025 0.530 1.36 N/A 100 1,490
FFCB 0.625 6/16/2026-21 3133EMKV3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 6/16/2026 0.625 1.36 N/A 100 1,750
FFCB 1.55 3/30/2027-23 3133ELUN2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/30/2027 1.550 1.36 N/A 100 2,037
FFCB 1.4 3/10/2028-22 3133EMSW3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/10/2028 1.400 1.36 N/A 100 2,383
FFCB 1.5 3/23/2028-22 3133EMUB6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/23/2028 1.500 1.36 N/A 100 2,396
FFCB 1.04 1/25/2029-22 3133EMNL2 5,000,000.00 4,986,250.00 1/25/2029 1.076 1.36 N/A 99.725 2,704
FFCB 1.55 3/15/2029-22 3133EMSX1 5,000,000.00 4,960,000.00 3/15/2029 1.658 1.35 N/A 99.2 2,753
Sub Total / Average FFCB Bond 90,000,000.00 89,931,100.00 0.838 24.54 99.923809 1,401

FHLB 0.3 9/29/2023-21 3130AK3S3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/29/2023 0.300 1.36 N/A 100 759
FHLB 0.22 10/5/2023-21 3130AKAF3 5,000,000.00 4,992,500.00 10/5/2023 0.270 1.36 N/A 99.85 765
FHLB 0.3 11/27/2023-21 3130AKGL4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/27/2023 0.300 1.36 N/A 100 818
FHLB 0.3 2/9/2024-21 3130AMHP0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 2/9/2024 0.300 1.36 N/A 100 892
FHLB 2.5 2/13/2024 3130AFW94 520,000.00 554,662.30 2/13/2024 0.225 0.15 N/A 106.665827 896
FHLB 0.45 4/29/2024-21 3130ALYE8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/29/2024 0.450 1.36 N/A 100 972
FHLB 0.375 5/24/2024-21 3130AMPB2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5/24/2024 0.375 1.36 N/A 100 997
FHLB 0.4 5/24/2024-21 3130AMEP3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5/24/2024 0.400 1.36 N/A 100 997
FHLB 0.4 6/7/2024-21 3130AMKX9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 6/7/2024 0.400 1.36 N/A 100 1,011
FHLB 0.5 7/15/2024-21 3130AMXL1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/15/2024 0.500 1.36 N/A 100 1,049
FHLB 0.5 7/29/2024-21 3130ANCU2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/29/2024 0.500 1.36 N/A 100 1,063
FHLB 0.45 8/27/2024-20 3130AJZH5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/27/2024 0.450 1.36 N/A 100 1,092
FHLB 0.4 7/15/2025-21 3130AKM29 5,000,000.00 4,999,000.00 7/15/2025 0.405 1.36 N/A 99.98 1,414

City of Concord
Portfolio Holdings
Monthly Investments to Council
Report Format: By CUSIP / Ticker
Group By: Security Type
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 8/31/2021

Commercial Paper

FFCB Bond

FHLB Bond

231



FHLB 0.5 10/20/2025-21 3130AKNK8 5,000,000.00 4,999,000.00 10/20/2025 0.504 1.36 N/A 99.98 1,511
FHLB Step 12/30/2025-21 3130AKLH7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/30/2025 0.764 1.36 N/A 100 1,582
FHLB Step 1/29/2026-21 3130AKRA6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1/29/2026 1.002 1.36 N/A 100 1,612
FHLB 0.53 2/17/2026-21 3130AKWS1 5,000,000.00 4,995,000.00 2/17/2026 0.550 1.36 N/A 99.9 1,631
FHLB 0.8 3/10/2026-21 3130ALFS8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/10/2026 0.800 1.36 N/A 100 1,652
FHLB 1.02 3/30/2026-21 3130ALSX3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/30/2026 1.020 1.36 N/A 100 1,672
FHLB Step 4/29/2026-21 3130ALZA5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/29/2026 1.432 1.36 N/A 100 1,702
FHLB 0.825 8/17/2027-21 3130AJXH7 5,000,000.00 4,986,250.00 8/17/2027 0.866 1.36 N/A 99.725 2,177
FHLB 2.32 11/1/2029-22 3130AHEU3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/1/2029 2.320 1.36 N/A 100 2,984
Sub Total / Average FHLB Bond 105,520,000.00 105,526,412.30 0.660 28.79 100.008318 1,348

FHLMC 0.19 11/16/2022-21 3134GXAX2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/16/2022 0.190 1.36 N/A 100 442
FHLMC 0.375 4/20/2023 3137EAEQ8 1,290,000.00 1,291,301.24 4/20/2023 0.341 0.35 N/A 100.100871 597
FHLMC 2.75 6/19/2023 3137EAEN5 1,225,000.00 1,317,965.25 6/19/2023 0.244 0.36 N/A 107.589 657
FHLMC 0.25 6/26/2023 3137EAES4 3,220,000.00 3,219,567.60 6/26/2023 0.254 0.88 N/A 99.986726 664
FHLMC 0.25 9/8/2023 3137EAEW5 2,120,000.00 2,120,844.05 9/8/2023 0.236 0.58 N/A 100.039854 738
FHLMC 0.3 9/28/2023-21 3134GWTL0 5,000,000.00 5,003,190.00 9/28/2023 0.273 1.37 N/A 100.0638 758
FHLMC 0.3 12/14/2023-21 3134GXEW0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/14/2023 0.300 1.36 N/A 100 835
FHLMC 0.8 7/14/2026-21 3134GV5T1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/14/2026 0.800 1.36 N/A 100 1,778
Sub Total / Average FHLMC Bond 27,855,000.00 27,952,868.14 0.354 7.63 100.375392 873

FNMA 2.25 4/12/2022 3135G0V59 960,000.00 969,734.40 4/12/2022 1.871 0.26 N/A 101.014 224
FNMA 1.375 9/6/2022 3135G0W33 300,000.00 298,497.00 9/6/2022 1.568 0.08 N/A 99.499 371
FNMA 2 10/5/2022 3135G0T78 3,805,000.00 3,857,482.35 10/5/2022 1.511 1.05 N/A 101.379763 400
FNMA 2.375 1/19/2023 3135G0T94 1,820,000.00 1,884,180.01 1/19/2023 1.134 0.51 N/A 103.531596 506
FNMA 0.31 8/17/2023-22 3136G4K51 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/17/2023 0.310 1.36 N/A 100 716
FNMA 2.875 9/12/2023 3135G0U43 1,170,000.00 1,263,483.00 9/12/2023 0.221 0.34 N/A 107.99 742
FNMA 0.3 10/27/2023-21 3136G46A6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/27/2023 0.300 1.36 N/A 100 787
FNMA 0.25 11/27/2023 3135G06H1 3,705,000.00 3,707,833.90 11/27/2023 0.223 1.01 N/A 100.076557 818
FNMA 0.28 12/29/2023-21 3135GABN0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/29/2023 0.280 1.36 N/A 100 850
FNMA 2.5 2/5/2024 3135G0V34 1,500,000.00 1,590,870.00 2/5/2024 0.225 0.43 N/A 106.058 888
FNMA 1.75 7/2/2024 3135G0V75 1,510,000.00 1,571,618.47 7/2/2024 0.361 0.43 N/A 104.080727 1,036
FNMA 0.455 8/27/2024-21 3136G4Y72 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/27/2024 0.455 1.36 N/A 100 1,092
FNMA 0.5 12/16/2024-21 3135G06M0 5,000,000.00 4,989,850.00 12/16/2024 0.560 1.36 N/A 99.797 1,203
FNMA 0.7 7/14/2025-21 3136G4YH0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/14/2025 0.700 1.36 N/A 100 1,413
FNMA 0.55 8/19/2025-22 3136G4H63 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/19/2025 0.550 1.36 N/A 100 1,449
FNMA 0.58 8/25/2025-22 3136G4J20 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/25/2025 0.580 1.36 N/A 100 1,455
FNMA 0.73 10/29/2026-21 3136G46F5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/29/2026 0.730 1.36 N/A 100 1,885
FNMA 0.8 11/4/2027-22 3135GA2L4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/4/2027 0.800 1.36 N/A 100 2,256
Sub Total / Average FNMA Bond 64,770,000.00 65,133,549.13 0.593 17.77 100.586907 1,157

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT599 54,135.50 54,135.50 N/A 0.010 0.01 N/A 100 1
NCCMT LGIP NCCMT481 2,647,233.24 2,647,233.24 N/A 0.010 0.72 N/A 100 1
NCCMT LGIP NCCMT271 100,880.22 100,880.22 N/A 0.010 0.03 N/A 100 1
Sub Total / Average Local Government Investment Pool 2,802,248.96 2,802,248.96 0.010 0.76 100 1

PINNACLE BANK MM PINNACLE 10,196,289.82 10,196,289.82 N/A 0.100 2.78 N/A 100 1
Sub Total / Average Money Market 10,196,289.82 10,196,289.82 0.100 2.78 100 1
Total / Average 366,143,538.78 366,487,601.69 0.558 100 100.101682 1,021

Local Government Investment Pool

Money Market

FHLMC Bond

FNMA Bond

232


	Agenda
	I. Call to Order
	II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer:
	III. Approval of Minutes
	IV. Presentations
	IV. 1. Presentation of Proclamation recognizing the week of October 3-9 as Public PowerWeek.
	IV. 2. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing 30 years of the Concord Sister CitiesAssociation.
	IV. 3. Presentation from Glenda Steele, and members of the Concord Wildlife Alliance,recognizing Concord for receiving the Chapter of the Year award from the NCWildlife Federation.
	IV. 4. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing the 65th anniversary of Logan Daycare.
	IV. 5. Special recognition of former Electric Systems Director, Bob Pate.
	IV. 6. Presentation of the Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular FinancialReporting and Triple Crown Award from the Government Finance OfficersAssociation of the United States and Canada.
	IV. 7. Presentation of the FY21-22 budget video.
	V. Unfinished Business
	VI. New Business
	A. Informational Items
	B. Departmental Reports
	C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
	D. Public Hearings
	VI. D. 1. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance annexing one (1) parcel located at 789 Bartram Ave, owned by Elmin Joel Reyes Perez and Juan Jose Reyes Perez.
	789 Bartram Staff Report
	Annexation Petition
	ANX-12-21 Subject Property Map
	789 Bartram - Annexation Ordinance

	VI. D. 2. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending Article 7 (Section 7.9.4.H.) of the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) relative to Center City Design Standards.
	Staff Report - Metal in Center City
	TA-09-21 Ordinance for Council

	VI. D. 3. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending Article 8 (Sections 8.1.8. and 8.3.5.Q.) of the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) relative to Food Trucks.
	Staff Report - Food Trucks
	TA-08-21 Ordinance for Council

	E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
	VI. E. 1. Consider approving the City of Concord's Downtown Municipal Service District Facade Grant Program.
	MSD Facade Grant Program

	VI. E. 2. Receive a presentation on the Norcott Mill-Cannon Mills Company Plant No. 10, concerning the property owner's request to list the property on the National Register of Historic Places. (Work Session - action needed)
	NR-01-21 - Staff Report
	NR-01-21 - Full Staff Packet
	Letter Not to Recommend
	Letter to Recommend
	Map

	VI. E. 3. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the sale of a 0.08 Acres parcel off of Melrose Drive SW.
	290-294 Melrose Drive ROW; SURVEY
	21 09 30 Contract; Melrose Drive SW
	21 09 24 Resolution; 0.08 Acre Melrose Drive SW
	VI. E. 4. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an eminent domain action for certain easements on property located on parcel PIN 5519-21-4980, 4400 Concord Pointe Ln SW.
	2020-007 THE GROUNDS AT CONCORD - CONCORD POINTE EASEMENT PLAT - REVIEW
	21 10 05 Resolution; Concord Pointe Limited Partnership


	VI. E. 5. Consider accepting a donation of an easement from Epworth United Methodist Church of 0.854 acres (approximately 37,220 sq. feet) for future McEachern Greenway development along Three Mile Branch.
	Easement Map
	Master Plan Map
	Loop Map

	VI. E. 6. Consider accepting the conveyance of 13.733 acres located at 385 Transport Place NW Concord from Cabarrus County. (PIN) 5620-45-9496-0000
	OSCA Map
	Map of Transport Place
	BOC minutes
	Exhibit A
	Deed

	VI. E. 7. Consider approval for the acquisition of 2 parcels from Murdock Holdings LLC for the future development of Irish Buffalo Creek Greenway.
	Capital Project Ordinance Amendment
	P&R Capital Reserve Ordinance Amended 
	OSCA Irish Buffalo Creek Greenway Maps
	Murdock Parcel 1
	Murdock Parcel 2

	VI. E. 8. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract withC Design for pre-design services of the new Fleet Services Facility.
	VI. E. 9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate a contract with Stewart Engineering Inc. for Construction Materials Testing and Special Inspections related to the new Electrical Operations Center.
	Stewart Proposal

	VI. E. 10. Consider awarding bid for twelve (12) steel transmission poles, and 100 Kv switches and miscellaneous hardware to Klute Inc and WESCO Distribution, Inc.
	Bid Review Form
	Bid Recommendation

	VI. E. 11. Consider awarding a bid to Blythe Brothers Asphalt Co LLC in the amount of $332,237.00 to make emergency repairs to the Runway at Concord-Padgett Regional Airport, authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract and adopt the capital project ordinance amendment.
	EMERGENCY RUNWAY REPAIR 2106 BIDTAB 09-30-21
	Project Budget Ordinance Runway Repairs

	VI. E. 12. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Ike's Construction, Inc for the renovation of the former Cabarrus County Maintenance building located at 242 General Services Dr S.W., Concord, NC to become the new Administrative offices of the Transportation Department.
	Bid Tabulation
	Budget Amendment

	VI. E. 13. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with McKim & Creed for Design Services for the Hwy 29 Pump Station Project.
	Scope_fee

	VI. E. 14. Consider approving a modification to the Interlocal Agreement with Cabarrus County administering the Central Area Plan.
	Smith Map

	VI. E. 15. Consider a Preliminary Application from Mark Schroeder
	Schroeder application
	Schroeder map

	VI. E. 16. Consider a Preliminary Application from Thornridge Investment Group, LLC.
	Thornridge application
	Thornridge map

	VI. E. 17. Consider approving a reduction in the ABC Board's pay.
	VI. E. 18. Consider making appointments to the Historic Preservation Commission.
	VII.Consent Agenda
	VII. A. Consider approving one additional "Personal Day Off" to be raffled for the City'sUnited Way fundraiser.
	VII. B. Consider adopting a concurring Municipal Ordinance (Reference Ordinance No. 1077179) with the North Carolina Department of Transportation for speed limit modifications declaring a 55-mph speed zone on NC 49 between 0.0148 miles west of SR 1139 (Old Charlotte Rd.) and 0.087 miles west of SR 1484 (Lippard Ln.).
	Certification
	Ordinance NC 49 Speed Limit

	VII. C. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of an access easement and approval of the maintenance agreement.
	Niblock agreement
	Concord Greenway

	VII. D. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of utility easements and public rightsof-ways in various subdivisions.
	VII. E. Consider accepting an offer of infrastructure at Popeye's-US 29, Heritage at Moss Creek Subdivision, Phase 1, Concord Medical Office at Afton Village.
	Infra Acceptance to ENGR Heritage at Moss Creek PH 1
	Infrastructure Acceptance to ENGR Concord Medical Office Site Water Only
	Infrastructure Acceptance to ENGR Popeyes

	VII. F. Consider authorizing Housing Department staff to submit an application for theFamily Self-Sufficiency Program grant.
	VII. G. Consider accepting North Carolina Department of Transportation - Division of Aviation (NCDOT) grant award and to adopt a budget ordinance to amend the FY2021/2022 budget for the Airport capital projects to appropriate NCDOT grant funds received.
	Notification of Funding Allocation Letter
	BA

	VII. H. Consider adopting a project ordinance amendment for the CDBG 2021 grant to reflect an increase from budgeted to actual amount awarded.
	Budget to Actual Grant Awarded FY22

	VII. I. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of August 2021.
	TAX COLLECTIONS AUG21

	VII. J. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for the month of August 2021.
	RELEASE REFUND DISCOVERY AUG21

	VII. K. Receive monthly report on status of investments as of August 31, 2021.
	Investments as of Aug 31 2021

	VIII. Matters not on the agenda
	IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
	X. Closed Session (if needed)
	XI. Adjournment



